201 3ANNL{$AL R%’ORT




& Tﬁ$ﬁ$uﬁ%&£ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%iﬂﬂ%§
MRRRAES TEBREREEEARAT B2
40 T 12 1% ¥ 2 461 B8 10 FR S o




GONTENTS
B %



Yichang
==

Wuhan
i E

Wanzhou Fengjie
M =

Yibin Jingzhou

FM

Huangshi

A
Jiujiang

Yueyang 3

=1 i

7-

—
-'i'-.r 0
' e
H y AR '"I_"_. Vgt fot
=== —_,,u .
Yangkou Port Nantong Port Group Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal
p=Aul: MEBOEEH IREFEEERABR
Nantong, Jiangsu Nantong, Jiangsu Jiangyin, Jiangsu

AHEEED AREEBE™ IHBEIR™



Nantong

Nanjing Jiangyin
® -
Maanshan L |Z%
BRIl

Wuhu . ]
- R Hangzhou JIAXING o
Tongling i == =i
o P&Z. AR -

Im & 55 Bl =31 &A =4

) -

LY
bt

-5 £ Al
e t—r LT ¥

Jiaxing International Feeder Port Minsheng Gas Yichang Port Group
EERIEMRITE R4EAH EEBKEEH

Jiaxing, Zhejiang Wuhan, Hubei Yichang, Hubei
AIEREE™ WML B ES HMitEHEE™




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Hil ¥5 Hi 2

2013 2012
Turnover (HK$m) e (HEBT) 6,497.6 5,159.1
Gross profit (HK$m) EF (BEBT) 329.2 415.9
Earnings before interest and taxation (HK$m) KRHFERBANER (BEET) 489.1 638.3
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$m) BEELRT (FESBT) 262.3 334.1
Shares in issue (m) DT (BB 4,577.4 4,558.5
Net asset value per share (HKS) FINEERE (BT) 1.06 1.01
Earnings per share (HK$) BEEF CBIT) 0.057 0.074
Dividend per share (HK$) AEpE B (389T) 0.015 0.025
Total assets (HK$m) wEE (§85T) 9,625.3 11,827.8
Quick assets (HK$m) BEFEE (BBET) 2,562.5 5,042.8
Net current assets (HK$m) REBAETE (BEHET) 985.8 1,208.3
Net debt (HK$m) EEE (EEET) 419.7 648.3
Shareholders’ funds (HK$m) BEE4S (AEAT) 4,841.2 4,609.9
Current ratio ME L 1.36 1.24
Quick ratio WE LR 0.92 1.02
Net debt/equity ratio SRAE BN R 0.09 0.14
Gearing ratio BARBEH R 0.53 0.58
Return on equity AR RE U 26 5.4% 7.2%
Total shareholder return A5 B8 48l 2% -3% -18%
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Hil ¥5 Hi =2

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN Netes 142
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Figures for the year ended 31 March 2010 and prior years have been adjusted for rights issue in July 2009

2. Total shareholder return represents change in share price (ex dividend) over each financial year plus dividend paid during that year
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3. Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI shares in

Hong Kong on 21 September 1993
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MAIOR
CORPORATE
EVENTS

A ol B8

2012

MAY 5EH

Land Bureau granted the land use right of
allocated land with a total area of 608,055
sq m located at Zhicheng Town, Yidu City
to Yichang Port Group for its own use at
total consideration of RMB60.83 million.

BEtROEEBKEERENMRE T HHE
8 BHERG08,055F H KB FE Ltz +
mERE - (FEERAAE AREAARY
6,083 It °

NovV +—H

PYI’s subsidiary, Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (now known as Louis Xlll Holdings
Limited) (“Louis XIII”"), proposed placing of
its shares for financing acquisition of a plot
of land and development of a luxury hotel in
Macau which constituted a deemed very
substantial disposal for PYI.

REEECHBLAREREEEARD
A(ABARS T=SBARIA) (BKS T+
ZNEEAERMBE -—ELHREZ R
EEEEBREESMETROES  BHR
EEE-HAFFEEALESH-

DEC+_—H

PYI received an aggregate of RMB657.8
million cash in Hong Kong, being full
settlement of all outstanding deferred
consideration of RMB602.8 million for the
disposal of 50.1% interest in Yangkou
Port Co and accrued interest (after tax) of
RMB55 million.

RESEEREBBRHUBHBEEXDELT
2501 %R ZiIBEREFHECREAR
#56.028 18 7t & IR Bt & FE ST FI 2 A K #5,500
Ex EHARMG578ET2ES -




JAN—H
PYI paid an interim cash dividend

of HK1 cent per share to
shareholders.

REKERTER1BLUFIHRER
ETFR=E-

FEB _H

PYI completed the deemed disposal of
Louis XllI, following which PYI’s interest in
Louis XIII diluted from 61.92% to 10.60%
and Louis XllIl ceased to be a subsidiary
of PYI.

REEEZRBELERZ =% RE
SEBERS T=2EFEH61.92%EEE
10.60% MK ZT=NFTBAREEBE 2K
BATE -



CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT
TRESE

Tom Lau El& R
Chairman and Managing Director X E#E&
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report our annual results for the year ended

31 March 2013. Turnover for the year amounted to HK$6,498
million (2012: HK$5,159 million), an increase of 26% from

that of the preceding year, while gross profit reached HK$329
million (2012: HK$416 million). Net profit after taxation was
HK$262 million (2012: HK$334 million) and earnings per share
reached HK5.7 cents (2012: HK7.4 cents). Shareholders’ funds
increased by 5% or HK$231 million to HK$4,841 million (2012:
HK$4,610 million), representing a NAV per share of HK$1.06.

The Board proposed a final cash dividend of HKO.5 cent per
share, together with the interim cash dividend of HK1 cent
per share paid in January 2013, amounts to a total dividend
of HK1.5 cents per share (2012: HK2.5 cents per share),
representing a payout ratio of 26% for this financial year.

PYI received an aggregate of RMB657.8 million cash in

Hong Kong, being full settlement of all outstanding deferred
consideration of RMB602.8 million for the disposal of 50.1%
interest in Yangkou Port Co and accrued interest (after tax)

of RMB55 miillion in December 2012. In February 2013, PYI
completed the deemed very substantial disposal of an interest
in Louis Xl Holdings Limited (formerly known as Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited). A detailed review of our operations
this year is set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section.

BBRRK:

RAMRAR ETE2MAEEEE2013F3HA31H b
FEME2FEE - FREET A64.98(E%8 L (2012 ¢
51598 L) * BMEF L FA26% ° £ FE3.208 %5
7L (2012 : 41688 L) - B E &% A A2.62EE T
(2012 : 3.341B /& L) - MBRAFES. 7EL (2012
7.47%Al)  IREE £ 18 N5%sk2.3118 7 T £48.4118
B0 (2012 461188 70) © AIEREEFE1.068TT -

EEREZRRNTREE SR ESROSBN  ERER
2013F1 AR 2 BFBRABILF RSB E - BB E
BERA5E (2012 : FRR2.58) - NERFEZ
& B R B26% °

REDR2012F12AREBBHEEBALEFOER
Al 250 1% 5 2 T A AEFBEEREAREG.028(E
TRBHERSFEARBS5008 T A AR
6.578BITZIRE - M2013F2A r REXKEER S
T=SEBERAR (ARREZEEBBRAR) #x
CHREFEEANNESTH FHASEFAZEKD
B HR(EEEN BRI -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FREEE

Corporate governance fosters a sustainable growth path for
the Group and is vital for business success. We continued to
uphold high standards of corporate governance, maintained
transparent communications with investors and stakeholders
and devoted in developing and implementing best practices.
We also persisted to implement consistent internal control and
audit programs, and offered relevant trainings across our offices
in the Mainland.

As a committed corporate citizen, PYI demonstrated a strong
commitment to corporate social responsibility with a particular
focus on education and youth development. In addition to the
sponsorship of educational activities, PY| and its subsidiary
donated HK$1 million to Friends of Hope Education Fund

in this year again to support their educational works in the
Mainland and Hong Kong. We were awarded the title of “Caring
Company” for the fifth consecutive years by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service in recognition of our ongoing effort in
building better communities we serve.

Details of our corporate governance practices and corporate
social responsibilities are included in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Economic and financial uncertainties continue to affect the
global markets and trades. China recorded GDP growth of 7.8%
in 2012, the slowest in more than a decade, with a flattening
trend for 2013. The Yangtze shipping indices are showing signs
of little to moderate growth.

CEEA/AKERB —RAUSEERNER  HK
NEEFARR - AEBEERFTRKFOLEER -
MEEERERSAGFAEAENER IR HER
RETHRESR AEBRSHEEERANNFEE
—HHAMEENEF DR - WRHEAREZF -

REERBEANECEAR —HBHIETLEMR
GEL LEMIBERBLFZER -BREBDHE
BB REBRABAEMBARNRAFEAHBX
100BELTHREZCRHAEES  XEEARALKE
BZBEI AEEBEENFRSHBTELER
BHERR MAREEIRE  UEILAEE-—BH
HEBMAEMELEFHEMNTHNEN -

ERARBZOEEREARCELGRME  FR(L
RERHKE) °

KENSBOTHETMEEYERRMBEMNES - £
2012%  FEIBREEREERIGT8% B TEZF
R EZIBIEER - BE2013F HERF/LBE - RITHM
BEH2HEUMEZBEMNEER -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Looking forward, our Yangtze port units will continue to pursue
operating growth through optimization and consolidation.
Facing another problematic year in 2012, non-profitable
business of Minsheng Gas will be a priority divestment target for
this year. PY! will also focus on the land and resort development
potential at Xiao Yangkou. PYI remains positive on the outlook
of the Yangtze River region and will stay in line with China’s
national policy and development directions on implementation
of our Yangtze Strategy. Barring any unforeseen material
adverse circumstances, PYl is strived to facing the challenges
and achieving these objectives.

| wish to express my sincere gratitude to my fellow Board
members for their valuable guidance and monitoring. | would
also like to take this opportunity to appreciate our executives
and staff across the nation for their dedication and contribution.
I am most grateful to our shareholders, customers and business
partners for their continuous support and trust in our strategic
vision throughout the years.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013

FREEE

RERFE RMOKIHEOEE GEERBELCNE
BEBEREERR -EHH2012FX —HRESF  REA
MZFBNEBERSF—ABLEHENRE - RE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEREH RN IR

PYI REMAINS POSITIVE ON THE OUTLOOK OF THE YANGTZE RIVER REGION AND WILL
STAY IN LINE WITH CHINA'S NATIONAL POLICY AND DEVELOPMENT DIREGCTIONS ON

IMPLEMENTATION OF OUR YANGTZE STRATEGY.

i 38 ¥l = 31 555 ok %0 = {75 28 494 @ - O 2 B o B N0 B 3R 0GR D 33 R X3l B i
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Ports Development
Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

There was no contribution from Yangkou Port to the Group’s
operating profit for the year following the disposal of 50.1%
interest in Yangkou Port Co in May 2011 (2012: HK$390 million
mainly represented the gain on the disposal of 50.1% equity
interest in Yangkou Port Co).

PY! continues to enjoy the future growth of Yangkou Port
through the remaining 9.9% equity interest, which is intended to
be held for long-term investment purpose and is classified as an
available-for-sale investment.

Ports and Logistics

PYI achieved satisfactory progress in implementing its Yangtze
Strategy during the year. The Group’s network of cargo ports
was strengthened and was generating synergy value.

Nantong Port Group (45% owned)

Nantong Port Group contributed about HK$53 million (2012:
HK$35 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
The higher contribution was due to growth in foreign bulk cargo
leading to higher revenue and gross margin.

ERORE
BORE
FAE(FRLI%ER)

2011 A& ¥ OB A RS0 1% % - £ 0%
HARBEAFREZEERFZFRER (2012 3.90
EETETERAEEFABRAL01%K AR 2K

%) o

RELBEBBEHBIIWR AR D F)FOH 2 RIRK
WS ERBERERE  By{EHEERE -
BORYRK

FR REEENRIXBREREE -AEEEE
BOMREAER MR WEEHREE-
MERBOEE (FH45%ER)

FR - -ERBOEEAAS P ZEE R AR 45,300
B0 (2012 : 3,5008%87L) cBEREMEFZERA A
IHERREELEESWARER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Nantong Port is a major river port in the Yangtze Delta, one of
China’s category-one national ports opened to foreign trade and
an important hub port of the country. The main cargoes handled
by Nantong Port Group are iron ore, minerals, cement, steel,
coal, fertilizers, grains and edible oil. Nantong Port provides
easy access to the Yangtze region by road and waterway and

is a hub port for cargo trans-shipment in the Yangtze Delta
Region.

Annual cargo throughput of Nantong Port Group maintained at
about 58 million tonnes in 2012 (2011: 59 million tonnes), while
the container throughput in 2012 increased by 6% to 473,000

TEUs (2011: 446,000 TEUSs).

Yichang Port Group (51% owned)

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$25 million (2012:
HK$33 million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year.
Its operating result was affected by the drop in revenue due
to lower demand for bulk cargo trans-shipment and logistics
services from western Mainland customers. During the year, a
write-back of overprovision of deferred consideration payable
in relation to the prior year acquisition of about HK$10 million
(2012: Nil) had been recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Yichang Port Group is principally engaged in transport logistics
and minor properties investments, providing transportation,
cargo loading and discharging, storage, shipping agent, cargo
agent, port logistics and port equipment rental services in
Yichang Port, which is situated on the Yangtze River near the
Three Gorges Dam in Yichang, Hubei Province.

Annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the

year ended 31 March 2013 dropped by 17% to about 6.3
million tonnes (2012: 7.6 million tonnes). Its annual container
throughput increased by 34% to 83,000 TEUs (2012: 62,000
TEUSs).

EHE5GRE R

MAAER=-AMEN—EERAE  HET—ER
BEEIIENRR —FOE RABEA—EAEENH
BEOD -IRENSERBENIZENREED B
A AOREE - #M KRR LR RUREH-E
BEREEREARTHENER KKK  IRk=
AEAN—EENEEFEEQ -

FEBOEER2012F 2 2FEMEM E4#15495,800
&8 (2011 : 5,900& ) » M2012F EHHEHE L = 8
EF6%ZE473,0001Z %48 (2011 : 446,0001Z%45) °

HEBKEE (BAS1%EH)

FN - HEBKEE AR DB 2 & EEFER 42,500
B (2012 : 3,300 7T) - R R AF EF 4
HETHEERMRRE 2 E TR HEEEET IR
A BTRE - B - Fh LA F E U B A A B B IR ST
MRERZ ZIREEN1,00088 T (2012 : £) 2R
AR SERPER -

HEAKEEIRGEHSENFTERM AN ERE
ERE RHEEH BORH ERRT EOMMN
RE EERE BOYRREORBEHERE -H
ERBURNRIIRE  BEIBILEEETZIRKE -

BEEABEEHE2013F3A3IBLEEZ22FEY
BHETHKI7%ZE #630E ME (2012 : 7608 HE) &
EHRBEZ2FAULE ) EFA34%ZE83,000{Z %445 (2012
62,0001Z%7§)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEREH RN IR

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)

Jiangyin Sunan contributed about HK$9 million (2012: HK$12
million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year. Its
operating result was affected by the lower demand of container
terminal services for foreign trade from the regional customers.
During the year, an allowance for other receivable in relation to
the prior year acquisition of HK$37 million (2012: Nil) had been
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Jiangyin Sunan is principally engaged in containers loading
and discharging as well as the storage, maintenance, washing
and leasing of containers. The container terminal operated by
Jiangyin Sunan is the only container terminal in Jiangyin. Its
annual container throughput in 2012 decreased by 14% to
419,000 TEUs (2011: 485,000 TEUSs).

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port multi-functional zone is a core
pilot feeder port in Zhejiang Province under the plans of Ministry
of Transport.

Situated at Nanhu District of Jiaxing City, Jiaxing International
Feeder Port occupies a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass

of 326,000 sg m. Currently, the port has 10 berths with total
annual throughput capacity of 200,000 TEUs. A customs office
is located in port area for efficient consignment, declaration
and clearance at one stop. The port also features a range of
integrated logistics supporting services such as examination,
quarantine, storage and information services etc.

The port declared soft open in mid 2010 and is still in the stage
of trial run. As such, no operating result was contributed by the
port during the year. The port is expected to start commercial
operation in third quarter of 2013 and is targeted to become the
first container feeder port on the canal system in the Yangtze
Delta with comprehensive customs and logistics services.

14 WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2013 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LPG and Logistics (100% owned)

The LPG distribution and logistics businesses of Minsheng

Gas recorded an operating loss of about HK$48 million (2012:
HK$24 million) for the year. Competition from compressed
natural gas continued to put pressure on sale volume as well as
margin of Minsheng Gas in Wuhan. Although a slight operating
profit was maintained by its LPG retail and distribution business,
such profit was insufficient to cover losses in the logistics
business, resulting to the overall operating loss. Minsheng Gas
currently operates 14 LPG fueling stations in Wuhan. It has
successfully obtained qualification for natural gas operation in
March 2013 and scheduled to transform 4 of the LPG fueling
stations into natural gas fueling stations within the coming year.
Such transformation is expected to improve the overall sale
performance and profitability of Minsheng Gas.

Engineering Business — Paul Y. Engineering (47.5%
owned)

For the period from 1 April 2012 to 5 February 2013 (the

date of completion of the deemed disposal of Louis XllI
Holdings Limited (“Louis XIlI”)), Louis Xlll (which operates the
engineering business through PYE BVI (which was renamed
as Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”)
on 7 June 2013)) contributed turnover of HK$5,951 million
(2012: HK$4,280 million) and operating profit of HK$43 million
(2012: HK$48 million) to the Group respectively. The increase
in turnover was mainly attributable to the significant increase in
order book for construction of infrastructure projects during the
year as benefited from the Hong Kong Government’s drastic
increase in capital investment. For the period from 6 February
to 31 March 2013, Paul Y. Engineering also contributed about
HK$3 million to the segment’s operating profit.

During the year, the Group has (a) undergone deemed disposal
of its interest in Louis Xill from about 61.92% to about 10.60%
(further reduced to 9.98% by disposal on 7 March 2013 at a
gain of about HK$3 million) which resulted in a gain of about
HK$164 million (2012: Nil); (b) received about 30.34% interest
in Paul Y. Engineering under the distribution in specie by

Louis XllI; and (c) acquired about 17.18% interest in Paul .
Engineering from other Louis XlII shareholders who accepted
cash alternative offer. As a result, the Group’s interest in Paul V.
Engineering increased to about 47.52% and a bargain purchase
gain of about HK$58 million arising therefrom was recognised.

EHE5GRE R

RICREWR (FH100%E5)

FR - REABEMNREISERYAEBESEED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHREHRRER IR

Following the completion of the above transactions,

(a) the Group’s interest in Louis Xl is accounted for as an
available-for-sale investment; and (b) the Group’s interest in
Paul Y. Engineering is accounted for as an associate through
which the Group will continue to enjoy the future growth of the
engineering business.

During the year, Paul Y. Engineering has benefited from the
increase in capital works expenditure in both Hong Kong and
Macau markets and secured new contracts totaling HK$13,225
million (2012: HK$8,891 million) in aggregate value. As at

31 March 2013, the total value of contracts on hand of Paul Y.
Engineering was about HK$23,506 million (2012: HK$15,106
million).

Property

The property business contributed about HK$225 million
(2012: HK$156 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the
year. The profit was mainly attributable to (a) gain on revaluation
of investment properties from about 0.65 sg km (2012: 0.35

sq km) of Land Being Formed (as defined in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements at page 166 of this annual
report) located at Xiao Yangkou of about HK$137 million

(2012: HK$73 million) before deferred tax charges of about
HK$63 million (2012: HK$34 million), and gain on revaluation

of various investment properties located at Nantong, Yichang
and Hangzhou of a total amount of about HK$88 million (2012:
HK$11 million) before deferred tax charges of about HK$35
million (2012: HK$2 million); (o) operating profit from sale of units
of Nantong International Trade Center and Wanhua Zijin Garden
amounted to about HK$18 million (2012: HK$72 million);

(c) gain on deemed disposal of Meilian Group (as defined in
note 44(b) to the consolidated financial statements at page 202
of this annual report) of about HK$6 million (2012: Nil); and

(d) net project pre-development costs incurred in Xiao Yangkou
of about HK$24 million (2012: Nil).

EMLARSERE  @QAKERES T=2#%5C
ERAREEREAR  ROAEERREZRX 2R
BEERBERAAR AEERBERE D EXEHE
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#490.65F FRAE (2012 : 0.35F R E) FEPR 1+ (F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2013, about 2.96 sq km (2012: 2.31 sq km)

of the 11.5 sg km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou had
reached the forming stage or formed and serviced stage. About
1.89 sq km of the Formed Land (as defined in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements at page 166 of this annual
report) and 1 sg km of the Land Being Formed at Xiao Yangkou
were classified as investment properties and measured at fair
value of about HK$750 million (2012: HK$575 million). The
remaining 0.07 sq km Formed Land at Xiao Yangkou is under
the development as a regional tourism site and was classified
as trading stock as at 31 March 2013.

During the year, a gross floor area of about 6,000 sg m

of Nantong International Trade Center rented out for hotel
operation had been transferred to investment properties and
contributed rental income of about HK$5 million (2012: Nil) to
the Group’s turnover.

In the main urban district of Yichang City near Yangtze River, the
Group holds certain commercial and residential properties of
about 33,000 sg m through Yichang Port Group. Total turnover
contributed from the rental of Yichang investment properties
amounted to about HKS$6 million (2012: HK$4 million).

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of
Bingjiang, Hangzhou City, the Group jointly holds an office
building, the Pioneer Technology Building, with Paul Y.
Engineering, which has gross floor area of about 20,000 sg m.
The building contributed rental income of about HK$8 million
(2012: HK$10 million) to the Group’s turnover until the
completion of the deemed disposal of Louis Xlll as subsidiary
of PYl on 5 February 2013. It was almost fully leased out as at
31 March 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHREHRRER IR

Treasury

The treasury investments contributed about HK$71 million
(2012: HK$95 million) towards the Group’s operating profit for
the year. The trading securities recorded a fair value gain of
about HK$4 million (2012: loss of HK$22 million) during the year.
The interest income derived from high-yield loans and RMB
bank deposits in Hong Kong amounted to about HK$20 million
(2012: HK$17 million), while the interest income derived from
the deferred consideration receivable for disposal of Yangkou
Port Co amounted to about HK$28 million (2012: HK$54
million). The foreign currencies translation gain amounted to
about HK$19 million (2012: HK$46 million) during the year,
which was mainly derived from the RMB monetary assets such
as bank deposits kept at Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2013, total value of the Group’s portfolio of
trading securities amounted to about HK$64 million (2012:
HK$60 million), equivalent to about 0.7% (2012: 0.5%) of the
Group’s total assets. Portfolio of high-yield loans receivable
amounted to about HK$106 million (2012: HK$103 million),
equivalent to about 1.1% (2012: 0.9%) of the Group’s total
assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RERA IR

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

In February 2013, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries,
namely Louis XlIl and the Meilian Group, were deemed disposed
of and resulted in a gain of about HK$170 million. Louis Xlll and
the Meilian Group ceased to be subsidiaries of PYI and their
financial results were deconsolidated from the Group during the
year.

Following the deemed disposal of Louis XlII during the year,

PYI holds about 47.52% interest in an associate, Paul Y.
Engineering, of which about 30.34% interest was received
from the distribution in specie declared by Louis XlIl and about
17.18% was acquired from other Louis XlIl shareholders at an
aggregate consideration of about HK$64 million under the cash
alternative offer to the distribution in specie.

Apart from the above, there are no other material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries and associates during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no major subsequent events since the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this report.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recorded

a consolidated turnover of about HK$6,498 million (2012:
HK$5,159 million), representing an increase of about 26%
when compared with that for last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the rise in turnover of the engineering arm — the
Paul Y. Engineering Group, which was the engineering business
held by Louis XlIl Holdings Limited (“Louis Xlll”). During the

year, Paul Y. Engineering Group contributed turnover of about
HK$5,951 million (2012: HK$4,280 million) to the Group until the
completion of the deemed disposal of Louis Xlll as subsidiary of
PYl on 5 February 2013.

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 21% to about HK$329
million (2012: HK$416 million) as compared with that of last
year and represented a gross margin of 5% (2012: 8%) of the
consolidated turnover. Such drop in gross profit and margin
was mainly caused by a substantial decrease in sale of property
stock with higher margin by 73% during the year (dropped from
about HK$364 million of last year to about HK$100 million of
the current year). Profit before taxation of about HK$419 million
was achieved as compared with about HK$561 million for last
year. The Group’s profit before taxation was composed of:

(i) net gain of about HK$271 million in Paul Y. Engineering
Group mainly engaged in management contracting and
property development management businesses (2012:
HK$48 million);

(ii) net gain of about HK$12 million in ports and logistics
business (2012: HK$56 million);

(iii) net gain of about HK$225 million in property business
(2012: HK$156 million);

(iv) net gain of about HK$71 million in treasury business
(2012: HK$95 million);

(v) nil contribution from the ports development business
(2012: HK$390 million) following the disposal of 50.1%
interest in Yangkou Port Co in last year;

(vi) net corporate and other expenses (including
inter-segment profit eliminations) of about
HK$90 million (2012: HK$106 million), which included
acquisition-related costs of about HK$19 million
(2012: HK$18 million); and

(vi)y  finance costs of about HK$70 million (2012: HK$78
million).
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Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of PYI was
about HK$262 million (2012: HK$334 million) and basic
earnings per share was HK5.7 cents (2012: HK7.4 cents). The
decrease in net profit for the year was mainly attributable to the
substantial decrease in net gain from deemed disposal/disposal
of subsidiaries as compared with that for last year.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at 31
March 2013, total assets decreased by 19% to about HK$9,625
million (2012: HK$11,828 million), which was mainly attributable
to the deconsolidation of assets of Louis Xl as subsidiary of
PY! during the year. Net current assets decreased to about
HK$986 million (2012: HK$1,208 million), which current assets
increased to 1.36 times (2012: 1.24 times) of current liabilities
as at 31 March 2013. After accounting mainly for the net

profit of about HK$262 million, surplus from RMB exchange
translation of about HK$33 million, and dividend distribution of
about HK$69 million to PYI's shareholders, equity attributable to
owners of PYl increased by 5% to about HK$4,841 million (2012:
HK$4,610 million), representing HK$1.06 (2012: HK$1.01) per
share as at 31 March 2013.

Net cash outflow from operating activities was about HK$427
million (2012: HK$496 million) and the net cash outflow was
mainly attributable to (a) the utilisation of more funds for
mobilising new construction projects by the Paul Y. Engineering
Group before it was deconsolidated from the Group in February
2013 (subsequently and until 31 March 2013, its operating
cash flow had largely improved owing to more funds collected
from debtors and advance receipt from customers); (b) the
substantial decrease in sale of property stock in Nantong, the
PRC during the year; and (c) maintain a higher level of LPG
inventories at lower cost to control the price risk. Net cash
inflow from investing activities was about HK$335 million
(2012: HK$29 million) and that from financing activities was
about HK$312 million (2012: HK$309 million), resulting in a

net increase in available cash and cash equivalents of about
HK$220 million (2012: decrease of HK$158 million) for the year.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had total assets of HK$9,625
million (2012: HK$11,828 million) which were financed

by shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of

credit facilities were maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure, which bore
interest at market rates and had contracted terms of repayment
ranging from on demand to seven years. The Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi, and no financial instruments had been used for
hedging purpose during the year. The Group adopts a prudent
funding and treasury policy and manages the fluctuation
exposures of exchange rate and interest rate on specific
transactions.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to about HK$2,555 million (2012: HK$2,653 million) with
about HK$1,775 million (2012: HK$1,715 million) repayable
on demand or within one year and about HK$780 million
(2012: HK$938 million) repayable after one year. Borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollar of about HK$1,184 million
(2012: HK$1,255 million) bore interest at floating rates.
Borrowings denominated in Renminbi of about HK$925 million
(2012: HK$1,071 million) bore interest at floating rates and
about HK$446 million (2012: HK$327 million) bore interest at
fixed rates. The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.53 (2012: 0.58),
which was calculated based on the total borrowings of about
HK$2,555 million (2012: HK$2,653 million) and the Group’s
shareholders’ fund of about HK$4,841 million (2012: HK$4,610
million).

Bank balances and cash of the Group as at 31 March 2013
amounted to about HK$1,882 million (2012: HK$1,740 million),
of which about HK$1,516 million (2012: HK$1,289 million)

was denominated in Renminbi, about HK$366 million (2012:
HK$428 million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
about HK$0.2 million (2012: HK$23 million) was denominated
in other currencies. Also, about HK$647 million (2012: HK$732
million) had been pledged to banks to secure general credit
facilities granted to the Group, which included about RMB516
million (equivalent to about HK$644 million) (2012: RMB575
million, equivalent to about HK$709 million) deposited in Hong
Kong to secure banking facilities denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and available in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2013,

the Group had a net debt position (being bank balances and
cash net of bank borrowings) of about HK$420 million (2012:
HK$649 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had contingent liabilities in
respect of guarantees given to banks for banking facilities given
to third parties of about HK$69 million (2012: HK$70 million)
and an investee of about HK$195 million (2012: HK$336
million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, certain property interests, property,

plant and equipment, trade receivables and bank balances of
the Group with an aggregate value of about HK$1,963 million
(2012: HK$2,246 million), as well as the Company’s investment
in certain subsidiaries of about HK$361 million (2012: HK$296
million) were pledged to banks and financial institutions to
secure general credit facilities granted to the Group.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had expenditure contracted for
but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment
and project under development in the amount of about HK$15
million (2012: HK$97 million).
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Located on the Yangtze River near the Three Gorges Dam in Hubei
Province, Yichang Port Group is principally engaged in transport logistics
and minor properties investments, providing transportation, cargo
loading and discharging, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, port
logistics and port equipment rental services in Yichang Port.

Yichang Port devotes to capture the opportunity afforded by growing
demand on logistics and transportation services along the middle and
upper reaches of the Yangtze. Yunchi Port Terminal consists of 17
berths with total annual throughput capacity of 10 million tonnes and
400,000 TEUs. The 200-acres Linjiangping Logistics Park comprises of
six service zones. The coal blending center at Zhicheng Port is in the
stage of trial operation with annual gross capacity reaches 20 million
tonnes.

In this financial year, the annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group
recorded about 6.3 million tonnes and annual container throughput
increased by 34% to 83,000 TEUSs.
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Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal operates the container terminal in
Jiangyin Port which is the only container terminal in Jiangyin. The terminal
occupies a land area of 0.49 sg km, a shoreline of 589 m long with 3
berths of 50,000 tonnes maximum capacity and a secondary shoreline
of 1,090 m long with 8 berths for barges of 5,000 tonnes capacity each.

Jiangyin Sunan is principally engaged in containers loading and
discharging, storage, maintenance, washing and leasing of containers.
Its annual throughput capacity reaches 550,000 TEUs.

In 2012, the annual container throughput of Jiangyin Sunan recorded
419,000 TEUs.
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Located at Nanhu District of Jiaxing City, Jiaxing International Feeder
Port owns a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass of 326,000 sq m. The
port currently has 10 berths with total annual throughput capacity of
200,000 TEUs. A customs office is situated in port area for efficient
consignment, declaration and clearance at one stop. The port also
features a range of integrated logistics supporting services such as
examination, quarantine, storage and information services etc.

u.-F—--.l
Jiaxing International Feeder Port multi-functional zone is a core pilot F—— .
feeder port in Zhejiang Province under the plans of Ministry of Transport.
Jiaxing International Feeder Port declared soft open in mid 2010 and is

still in the stage of trial run. The port is expected to start commercial
operation in third quarter of 2013 and is targeted to become the first

container feeder port on the canal system in the Yangtze Delta with
comprehensive customs and logistics services.
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Based in Wuhan, Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest liquefied
petroleum gas (LPG) river terminal and storage tank farm in mid-stream
Yangtze. It is dedicated to boost its leading position in the infrastructure
and logistics facilities for LPG, oil and liquid bulk chemicals market in
Central China.

Minsheng Gas is a leading player in the Wuhan LPG market for
automotive consumption, and wholesale and distribution of LPG
products. It established a Vehicle Conversion Research and Development
Center to support the application of its research and development on the
construction of LPG fueling stations, conversion of motor vehicles to
LPG vehicles and gas fueling. Minsheng Gas currently operates 14 LPG
fueling stations in Wuhan. It has successfully obtained qualification for
natural gas operation in March 2013 and scheduled to transform 4 of the
LPG fueling stations into natural gas fueling stations within the coming
year. It also provides high quality industrial, commercial and domestic
LPG products serving Wuhan and peripheral cities through its retail
brand “Good Luck”.
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PYI captures the opportunities to extract revenue arising from property
development and investment. —

Xiao Yangkou is situated about 35 km west of Yangkou Port and will -
become an infrastructure and resort development in support of the
Yangkou Port industrial zone.

Nantong International Trade Center is a commercial and office
development in the heart of CBD of Nantong City with a gross floor area
of about 80,000 sgq m.

Wanhua Zijin Garden is a residential property development near Yangkou
Port with a gross floor area of 65,000 sgq m.

Pioneer Technology Building is an office building with gross floor area of
about 20,000 sg m situated in the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry
Development Zone of Bingjiang, Hangzhou City which is jointly held by
PYl and Paul Y. Engineering. It was almost fully leased out by the end of
this financial year.

The Group holds certain commercial and residential properties near
- Yangtze River in the main urban district of Yichang City of about 33,000

sg m through Yichang Port Group.
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Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated to
providing full-fledged engineering and property services with operations
in Hong Kong, the Mainland, Macau and Singapore. For over 60 years,
Paul Y. Engineering has played a significant role in shaping Hong Kong'’s
skyline with its world-class infrastructure, including major commercial
and residential buildings, public housing, institutional facilities, highways,
railways, tunnels, port works, water and sewage treatment facilities etc.

The demand for engineering and construction services remained strong
in both Hong Kong and Macau as a result of a significant increase in
capital investment by governments and investors. Paul Y. Engineering
successfully secured new contracts of HK$13,225 million for this financial
year. As at year end, the total value of contracts on hand amounted to
HK$23,506 million.

REZXUEBAEN FOARHESUNTIERYEHBERY  *%E
RER A BPFIRHFINKR  ATZFER REZEXTEZBRETBHE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EER

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 62, is the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company. He is also a member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Share Repurchase Committee, and a director

of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr Lau has over 40 years’ international
corporate development and management experience in infrastructure
developments as well as construction and engineering services involving the road,
rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in the Asia
Pacific Region. He joined the Company as executive director in 1993 and was
appointed as Deputy Chairman in 1995. Mr Lau was also appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in 2005 and has been responsible for the Group’s
corporate development strategy, and overall performance. He had been changed
MR LAU KO YUEN, TOM from Deputy Chairman to Chairman since 26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the

S E L4 deputy chairman and an executive director of Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (formerly

known as Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited) (0577.HK) and the deputy chairman

Chairman and Managing Director and a non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK).
ERmFAH He was an independent non-executive director of China National Building Material

Company Limited (3323.HK) until November 2011.

BEmREE GRF62) AR RRIIERAH - ARRRAFNEZES  REZE8Y
EBRHOEEZEERE  URAEEZZWEBRARZES - JAEET AR QK
B0 BR - Bl RBENEREENEMRER BEIBRRBHEESI0FHE
RO ¥ERAEIRLCR - M998 FMAXRR BRITES W19 FEZE AR
REIRIERF - BIEER2005FEEZT AL RBBE  BELAEEMBEREBURER
R o A201159A26H®E - hABFFERAEIFE - RIELEERARI T=SBERA
AI(AMBREREEFEAR AR (0B577THK) ZBITERATES  hanERERKRE
FRAF (0310.HK) ZBIEERIFNTEE - b BEEPREEMRMHER QT (3323.HK)
BN IEHITEETEZ2011F11A o

Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 29, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in November 2011. Mr Chan is also the director of corporate finance
of the Company and an alternate director to his father, Dr Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles, in the Company. He graduated from Trinity College of Arts and Sciences
of Duke University, United States of America, with a Bachelor of Arts Degree

in Political Science — International Relations. Mr Chan previously worked in the
investment banking division of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. He is currently
an executive director of ITC Corporation Limited (0372.HK) which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and
Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in the Directors’
Report, an executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK) and a
director of Burcon NutraScience Corporation (“Burcon”), the securities of which

MR CHAN YIU LUN, ALAN .
o s S A are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (BU.TSX), the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(WKN 157793-FWB) and the NASDAQ Global Market (BUR). Mr Chan is also an
Executive Director adviser of Bisagni Environmental Enterprise (BEE Inc.).

HITEF

PRAE RS SE £ (GRE295%) R2011F11 AR T AARRIATEE - REENABEARAD
E¥RMEREREXAMBEBEINARAZEAES - MRENEEH 7 K2 (Duke
University, United States of America) Z Trinity College of Arts and Sciences ' # & K
REBEBRERYEE LB - RAELTHMNSKSEE (The Goldman Sachs Group,
Inc.) ZIRERTH - MR ARRAEZREEHELCEEEFR LA (0372.HK) (40
EERVEENETBRE EMALZESRAR] e 2HITES - B8
E£EARAA (0199.HK) Z #17E = K& Burcon NutraScience Corporation ([Burcon |)
(EBFNZMEEFRXHM(BUTSX) ZHREREF R H P (WKN 157793-FWB) &
METER 2 M5 (BUR) EH) v EF - REENMAREELGRAF (BEE Inc.) 2R °
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 58, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a member of the Company’s Nomination Committee (alternate
to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom). Dr Chan holds an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws
and a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering and has over 33 years’ international
corporate management and strategic investment experience in a diversified range
of businesses including construction, property, infrastructure, entertainment

and media, hotel and related business, information technology, pharmaceutical
and health products. He joined the Group in 1987 and was the Chairman of the
Company until July 2005. Dr Chan is also the chairman and an executive director
of ITC Corporation Limited (0372.HK) which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions of

Substantial .Shar.eholders/Othe.r Persons” in the Qireptors’ Report and a ‘ DR CHAN KWOK KEUNG, CHARLES
non-executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited (0511.HK). Dr Chan is CAE i

also the father of his alternate director, Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan who is an executive

director of the Company. Non-Executive Director

FERTTEE

PREI S8 1 - GRF585%) AR ARIERITES - MMALARIREEZEERE (B
BREL) BMIBLIHEBELIELEHITEUNIATRELTEN  REENTEENY
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Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in September 2004. He is also the Chairman of the
Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee and Share Repurchase
Committee. Mr Chan has over 36 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management services. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, as well
as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr Chan is a partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive director of PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited (0850.HK).

MR CHAN SHU KIN
PR EE

BRAS BRS04 (IR F585%) M2004FOA B Z X AR RRIBYIERTES - AR R F
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EER

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August 2006. He is
also a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee and
Share Repurchase Committee (alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin) and an independent
non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr Leung previously
served the Hong Kong Government for over 32 years until his retirement as the
Director of the Office of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in Beijing (“Beijing Office”) in November 2005. He joined the Administrative
Service in June 1973 and rose to the rank of Administrative Officer Staff Grade
A A1 in June 1996. During his service in the Administrative Service, Mr Leung had
MR LEUNG PO WING, served in various policy bureaux and departments, including Deputy Secretary
BOWEN JOSEPH GBS, Jp for District Administration (later re-titlied as Deputy Secretary for Home Affairs);
RERFLE GBS, P Deputy Secretary for Planning, Environment and Lands; Private Secretary,
Independent Non-Executive Director Government House; Secretary for Planning, Environment and Lands; and Director
B ITEE of the Beijing Office. Mr Leung has extensive experience in corporate leadership
and public administration. During his tenure as the Director of the Beijing Office,
Mr Leung had made commendable efforts in promoting Hong Kong in the
Mainland, as well as fostering better understanding, establishing closer links and
facilitating exchanges in various spheres between Hong Kong and the Mainland.
Mr Leung is also an independent non-executive director of Paliburg Holdings
Limited (0617.HK), North Asia Resources Holdings Limited (0061.HK) and Quali-
Smart Holdings Limited (1348.HK), and a special adviser to the board of directors
of Sands China Ltd. (1928.HK).

RELE L aBs, Jp (R F635%) R2006F8ABEZ T AR RABYIENITES - A
ARABEZZES FHEES REZES LEEBRRERZES  UKKRMHE
BZES (BIBBEBEE)KE YARRA—ZKWBRAR ZBYIENTEE - 2%
HH2005F 11 ARKAT - BEBFRTHREERAEILZHER ((FER]) 4 R
BT EI2F - b 1973 F6 AMABRB R B EEE - WN1996F6AEAAE K
LR—GBBE CHEBREARGHHE RELESTBRSEIRBMEBI SHEZ
FTEBUAE ABRER (ANBREEEAEAE) BRERBMEKA - BEFL
AME BEARBHWRANUEEERET  RPAEECEBERARTR I AHE Y
B RMIEAERANETHME  REERNEAMERSS - REFBRAMAER
BEUMMEZRTNBE  THPIMBESEHNRIR RAETABFNRERERA
7 (0617.HK) ~ b T ERIE/RE R AT (0061.HK) B3RESEEIRBR A 7 (1348.HK)
ZEBUIENTES  UREDPPEERAA (1928 HK) EEH 2 HFRIER -
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Mr Li Chang An, aged 78, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in January 2007. Mr Li was the Vice Secretary of
Shangdong Provincial Party Committee from 1983 to 1987 and was further
appointed as the Governor of Shangdong Province in June 1985. He was the
Deputy Secretary-General of the State Council between 1987 and 1993, and
was elected as an alternate member of the Eleventh CPC Central Committee
and a member of Twelfth CPC Central Committee. Mr Li was the executive vice
chairman of China Poly Group Corporation from 1993 to 2001 and was also the
chairman of the board of China Orient Telecomm Satellite Company, Limited from
1995 to 2003.

TELEE CRF785) N2007TF1 A BEZ T AR R A BILIERNITES - FTHERM1083 MR LI CHANG AN
FEISTFMEMEALES SR EE EA1085F6ARI R ALELEE R - 1 FERRE

1987 F 21903 F B AR KR MER  URGEEATHNEFRERMEZE K12 Independent Non-Executive Director
EFREE - FEARI9BFEZ2001 F B ETHERNEBE R FHAEER I By TEE

R1995F E2003F I AT BEIR T BEHEERETRFIESRK -

Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2012. She is also a member of the
Company'’s Audit Committee and Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee. Ms Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree and a Master’s Degree in Law
from The University of Hong Kong, as well as a Master’s Degree in Corporate
Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong and the Supreme Court of England and Wales and
holds the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Ms Wong has over 23 years

of experience in the legal profession, with majority years working as corporate
counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong listed companies (including the
Company during the periods from February 1995 to January 2000 and from

May 2003 to December 2007). Ms Wong is currently employed as Senior Legal MS WONG LAl KIN ELSA
Director of Alibaba.com China Limited. She is also an independent non-executive EEB4+

director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK).

Independent Non-Executive Director
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BREEEMMEEARERZECNE - ERIREEAAREEEE LT ENAERE
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MS YANG YAN
BERLZL

Chief Representative — China

mEHEREEFEEAR —FE

MR WONG YIU HUNG
ERESE

Chief Financial Officer

BERAIHE

Ms Yang Yan, aged 45, joined the Group in 2003. She is the Chief Representative
of the Company in China and is responsible for originating and monitoring the
performance of the Group’s investments in the Mainland, and holds directorship in
a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Yang has many years of experience
in corporate development and general administration and holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration.

B Z T GREF455%) R2003F MAAEE  BAARAIZEBEBHEZRPEZERER
ZOMWTEEAEMMLREEALEEEPRACCEREER  YECARAZEHWER
FIZBEERM BLIROELERRE THREEBFAREEZFLS  YHEIFE
BB B -

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 48, joined the Group in 2004. He is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and is responsible for all financial management and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr Wong holds directorship in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 26 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management in both international accounting firms
and listed companies. Mr Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese Law

from Peking University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

=R S AE GRF485R) R2004F IMAAREE  BARRAICEEVEE BEAKEFAA
EUKEENEHEK EAEHAIARAZEWBRARIZEERM - R BEBELES
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MABBRESEAD -
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CORPORATE SUPPORT TEAM
1 5% Nk 5 B B

LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL

MR KO HIU FUNG
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary

MS MEI HONG
Legal Counsel, China

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM
Financial Controller

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH
Assistant Financial Controller — Treasury and Investment

MR LEUNG HO MAN
Chief Accountant

INVESTMENT

MR ZHU YONG MING
Investment Director, China

MR SU ZHI JUN
Investment Consultant, China

INTERNAL CONTROL

MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN
Senior Manager — Internal Control & Risk Management

INTERNAL AUDIT

MR CHU WAI YEUNG, WALLACE
Group Internal Audit Senior Manager

MR WANG BAO GUO
Senior Director of Internal Audit, China

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

MS LAM LEE LEE
Corporate Communications Manager
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OPERATION TEAM

MR WEI WEN KUI
Director and General Manager

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MR WANG WEI GUO
Director and General Manager
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR CHEN FA YI
Chairman
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR WANG HONG
General Manager
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN BAO Xl
General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN
Director and General Manager

Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WANG JIN JUN
Director and General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited

MR LIU DONG
Financial Controller
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR WEI JIANG TAO
Financial Controller

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MS TSANG SAU YING
Financial Controller
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR JIANG JIANG MIN
Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR LI YONG
Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

40 WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2013 Annual Report

BB E
EEREEE
THTEEARRERRAT

IEBELE
EFRBEE
FEEBOSKEARLAF

RBELE
EER
BEEKEEERETAT

FAKE
AT
HEBBEBBREEAT

REEXE
HE
AT ER SR AERRERD T

ARELE
EEREEE
TReHEEREREREERAF

BEXE
EEFEMTE
Mt REBBRIERERAH

BRAEE
HBRE
MEEOEEERAF

FEIIRTE
BIBRE
IEFBERABRRERRLF

BHERLL
HBRE
BERKEEEREEAT

EIR%E
BHEE
RERTBREEERERRR A

FERE
HBRE
Mt REBBRIERERAH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PY!1 Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold high
standard of corporate governance and maintain well-established
corporate governance practices for the benefit of shareholders
of PYI and other stakeholders.

In the corporate governance report published in PYI's 2012
annual report (which can be viewed on PYI's website: www.
pyicorp.com), we reported that, save for certain deviations
disclosed therein, PYI has applied the principles and complied
with all applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Old Code”, formerly contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)), and adopted some of the
recommended best practices for the year ended 31 March
2012. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, PYI
continued to comply with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”, the new edition
of the Old Code) and adopt some of the recommended best
practices, except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be
separated and performed by different individuals. Following the
retirement of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September
2011, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, the Managing Director (equivalent
to CEQ) of PYI, has been appointed as chairman of PYI
(“Chairman”) and has performed the roles of Chairman and
CEO with effect from 26 September 20171.

The board of directors of PYI (the “Board”) believes that it is
appropriate and in the interests of PYI for Mr Lau Ko Yuen,
Tom to take up both roles at the present stage as it helps to
ensure consistent leadership within the Group and enable
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board also believes that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and
is adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with more than half the
number thereof being independent non-executive directors.

In addition, to demonstrate PYI's continued commitment to
high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted
a Board Diversity Policy in June 2013 to comply with a new
code provision on board diversity which will be effective from
September 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERBRS

PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI
directors as well as relevant employees of PYI. After having
made specific enquiries, all directors and relevant employees of
PYI have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during this financial year 2012/2013.

Since the launch of PYI Code of Conduct in October 2009, all
PY! directors, senior management and staff have been under
specific obligations to comply with the ethics and principles
under which our business is conducted and have been allowed
to report actual or potential violations of the Code through
stated procedure. Non-compliance with the Code will result

in disciplinary action. During the year, we are not aware of any
non-compliance with the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEEREE
The structure below shows the key parties involved in our REBEZREEERERRIE SR 2EEKEER
corporate governance practices and policies within the Group. m
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SHAREHOLDERS
Communication with Shareholders

As part of corporate governance, PYl is committed to
safeguarding shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PYI has
established a Shareholders’ Communication Policy (which
can be viewed on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com) setting
out various channels of communication with shareholders and
investment community for ensuring effective disclosure of the
Company'’s performance and business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for PYI
shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to
attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from
shareholders. Also, simultaneous translations in English and
Cantonese are arranged during the meetings to ensure that the
shareholders understand the content of the issues discussed
during the conduct of the meetings.

During the year, PYI held three general meetings. Voting on
resolutions put forward at the general meetings has been
taken by way of poll and all poll results have been published
and posted on the websites of PYIl and the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”). All resolutions put to
shareholders were passed at the said three general meetings.
The resolutions and the percentage of votes cast in favour of
the resolutions are set out below:

PYI'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

EXAFEETHRERRAE

Special General Meeting on 11 June 2012

B R
HRRERE

EREEEAN—BD REBAREREFNZMHE
F-RTERE—BE REZIRIBAMEE (7]
PREMIL - www.pyicorp.comBIE) - REKERE
HEERIEEALER UBRABEERADAEE
EF X

REGEHRRAGARERRNEZTRREHEZRARR
MEAN-—EEETE -MARENESE SRER
BMIBEZBEMRARERERTHERRERE - U@
ERCREGER - o HEHRME RS T HRZ
FERFNNREZRY  UERRRTHRESHAE
TRFT A R AR o

RER  REBITTZRREAR - REAR RS
EUUBEOFRER  FARENSERDERERN
EERFRAEFARAF (EERHM]) 2 @%T
B FARNAS RREAR LREZ BRWESR
B RRRERABRR ERLE SR
mF

% of Votes Cast For

R2012F6 A1 B BITHRRESIAE EREHMEE

v/ Approval of the Business Services Agreement and the Annual Caps 100%
HEXEBREHERFELR

v/ Re-election of Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as an executive director 99.97%

ERRBBEERNTES
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PYI’'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR (continued)
ERFEETHRERRAS (00)

Annual General Meeting on 10 September 2012 % of Votes Cast For

M2012F9A10H BTHRREBEFAE BEREHMNLE R

v/ Approval of the 2012 audited accounts 99.99%
MIB2012FEMLEZERE

v/ Declaration of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 100%
SREZE2012F3A3IBIEFE 2 RERKRE

v/ Re-election of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles as director 99%
EEREBELIRES

v Re-election of Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph as director 99.02%

v Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000 per 99.99%

annum for all directors
BRAGRTEEEZRBE T BETF4,000,0008 THEEHEE

v/ Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to Board 99.91%
to fix their remuneration
BEZARYH -MERASHMITIARBMEREREERETANS

v/ Grant of general mandate to directors to issue shares 70.40%
BTESBTRON —KRERE

v/ Grant of general mandate to directors to repurchase shares 100%
GTESEDERNON —RERE

v Extension of the share issue mandate to directors 70.37%
BABTESEHITRMDZESN

v/ Adoption of a new share option scheme 89.96%
RN IR ST 2

v/ Approval of amendments to the bye-laws 99.99%
BEERT R R4 A

v/ Adoption of the amended and restated bye-laws 99.99%

RIS 55T R B 52 2 7R

Special General Meeting on 18 January 2013
M2013F1A18HBTHRRFEIKE

v/ Approval of the deemed disposal of a very substantial interest in Paul Y. Engineering 99.84%
Group Limited
HERFELEREZEEEARARIZIIEERNER

v/ Re-election of Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa as an independent non-executive director 99.92%
ERFEBBRLTRAEYIFNTES
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ERERBRS

Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PYI also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders
through other channels such as the publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements, circulars as well as news
releases (all in bilingual languages) so as to provide extensive
information on the Group’s activities, financial position, business
strategies and developments to enable them to make informed
decision on matters relating to their investment and the exercise
of their rights as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also
available on PYI website: www.pyicorp.com and the HKEx’s
website.

Our website is an effective mean of communication with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or
comments on what we are doing are most welcome to contact
us at any time through the website. We will try our best to
answer the questions in a short time.

At pages 68 to 72 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYI and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI and details of top shareholders as at the year end.

Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In accordance with PYI's bye-laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI‘s shareholders are entitled
to attend or be represented by proxy and vote at general
meetings. PYI's shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of PY! carrying the right of voting at general
meetings have the right to require a special general meeting to
be convened and propose transaction of business.

All PYI's shareholders have the right to propose person for
election as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing
a person for election as director of PYl is set out in the Letter
from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors and in
our Shareholders’” Communication Policy.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
Board’s Role and Delegation

The primary role of the Board is to maximize long-term
shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility for providing
effective and responsible leadership and control of the
Company, and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors
group-wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance
of the Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated the Managing
Director the day-to-day leadership and management of the
Group. The senior management of the Group, on the other
hand, is responsible for the management and administrative
functions and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the
supervision of the Managing Director. The corporate governance
structure of PYI as disclosed in this report at page 43 shows the
detailed relationship between the Board, the Managing Director
and the senior management as well as other stakeholders.

Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for
the Board:

PREBRS

EZRRESRZEES
ESRNAERELER

EERNIZACRRARRFMEAZERENR B
BRTHARNARENEAERERARAZEE
ATEREEARAZEBREARENREIEE
RERE -

EERATEMNEST  HEMEEREEBENRE
MEE  FAEARENRR  UREREEETE-

RREAMRE EEREHAEEATEAGREENE
ATHTREARE -Z—FE ARESREEEHE
REEET BREEMITHBENET UKET
AEERRLENRE HRNABREFBANRED
XEARE BREER A SREEEUARE
fhiE AR FABIRE -

NTREZREAEHENME -

SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD

ESREEEENREE

v/ Financial reporting and control
B 75 T SR A0 BE

v/ Equity fund raising
BERER

v/ Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions

BEHEMDIKHEFELT IR

v/ Notifiable and connected transactions under the Listing Rules and inside information under the Securities and Futures

Ordinance

(EFRADRMAT AHRBER S R(BHRBE G A REHE S

v/ Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group

BABHESAAEBEAEBNEMERNNE
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ERERBRS

Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable standards.

The statement of the auditor of the Company concerning

its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 89 and 90 of this annual report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, there are 7 directors in our Board
consisting of 2 executive directors, 1 non-executive director and
4 independent non-executive directors. Non-executive directors
accounted for a majority of the Board members whereas
independent non-executive directors represented more than half
of the Board members, thus exhibiting a strong independent
element which enhanced independent judgment. Mr Chan Shu
Kin, an independent non-executive director of the Company,
has the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under the
Listing Rules.

EERUGAMBERNER

EERERAEIRIASEGFAMB]RE  LER
ERtIAEESAMBHRRFZBEZTRANNAERN

g -

ARBZHMRARBEGAM B RRERABEEBR

BER B - #5504 F B F89 R 90E 18 37 4% BB 1%
FER -

EsRAMX

RAREAH EFRACNEFAK  BHEMAH
TEE —NUFATESRUBIIFNTES - 3F
HOTEFHEFTRRENKRSE MBUFRTES
HEERKEBBFE HMRRBUNBL TR
BT HE - ARFBYFRTEEREREER
BCEMMAD ERMEENFERER G
MM BEERR -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS E£ 5
(as at the date of this report P 23R 5 H 2f)

4 Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin BR# B 5% 4

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Non-Executive Director

FHUITES

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 8 & % 4 + AmREAE PREIRIE L
Mr Li Chang An ZE&%Z %4 (Chairman & Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan FR8 %t &
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa & B8 &+ Managing Director (Alternate to
TERAER) Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

BEREEEL)

59 = ¥ied
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Each of the Board members is totally unrelated to each other
and the senior management in every aspect including financial,
business, or family except the father and son relationship
between Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr Chan Yiu Lun,
Alan.

There was no change of directors and committee members
during the year except that with effect from 1 November 2012,
(i) Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company and a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee of the Company; and (i) Mr Li Chang
An resigned as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.

Brief biographical details of each director (including his/her age,
gender, term of office, professional qualification and experience)
are set out on pages 34 to 37 of this annual report and also
available on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com.

PYI has also maintained on its website and the HKEX’s website
an updated list of its directors identifying their roles and
functions and whether they are independent non-executive
directors. Independent non-executive directors are also
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose
the names of directors of the Company.

Each independent non-executive director is required to

inform PY| as soon as practicable if there is any change in

his or her own personal particulars that may affect his or her
independence. No such notification was received during the
year. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation on independence
from each independent non-executive director. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

All Board members have complied with the requirement of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PYI and its associated corporations,

if any, during the year. Interests and short positions of PYI’s
directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of PYI
and its associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’
Report on pages 81 and 82 of this annual report.

PREBRS

BRTRESEIERBBAESRTIN EERE—
BRBERECHAARESREEBZH £ TEE
EWE EBRRFXEZ AP EERE -

RER EERZBEERERAED R BE2012F
IMTATEENERR LT EZERARAEIULIFNTE
ERECZEENEEEARERZBEZERE ¢+ K(i)
FELRAEREARABREZEGRE -

BUEENEHEFE (BEAFR - ER - -E£8H - &
EEMRERH) BN AFRWEBIMEITE - U ERATR
IR YL+ www.pyicorp.comA 2 E o

RENEERURBERSMBU EREFRINES
PRERE YHBREAEMBR URTHEZE
RBUFNTEZ EMBERBEARAESFHEZOR
BUBAT - B RABULIERITEREMS -

METAEAZBARAEEYELRBIIE 2%
VHHTEFEAEYVEANTHNREAZRBANRE -
RER - RERBWEEREEA - RIB(ETRAD
ZEF ARrlE W ERBUFNTEEHELS
UM EHHER - ARRBRAEBLINTEERS
AL

RERN FMEEERKEEBT(RAFRBMEGKI) 2
2R BREEEZERRERLEEREE (NEF) BT
o RESENRERIABOAE 2R - AEKRN
REFHRBERARERAFHFESINENEER
WEERN -

) rzsmaraa 20nsn 49



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role

in steering the Group to do businesses in the interest of
shareholders, a schedule of Board and Board committees
meetings to be conducted within the next financial year are
issued well in advance to all members, thus well-facilitating
more participation by the directors in every meeting. Within the
year, 7 Board meetings were held and most directors recorded
over 80% attendance in, and five directors recorded 100%
attendance in, regular Board and Board committees meetings.

The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than
14 days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each
meeting and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or
other reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited

to attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues
considered by the Board where appropriate. In the event where
independent professional advice is required, the seeking of such
advice was abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded
in sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a
reasonable time period after meetings for their comments and
were kept in the minute book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his/her
interests or potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed
transactions or issues discussed by the directors at Board
meetings. Any director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Board approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he/she is materially interested nor shall he/
she be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.

Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI’s bye-laws, all directors (including
non-executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at
least once every three years and seek for re-election at annual
general meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third

of the directors for the time being shall retire from office. Any
new directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board during the year by the Board following the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee are subject to
re-election by shareholders of PYI at the next following general
meeting after their appointment.
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All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered
into letters of appointment with PYI for a term of three years
subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting.

In the annual general meeting of PYI held on 10 September
2012 (the “2012 AGM”), Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph, being retired by rotation,
were successfully re-elected as directors of PYI for a term of
approximately three years until conclusion of the annual general
meeting to be held in 2015.

On 11 June 2012, Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, being a new director
appointed with effect from 23 November 2011, was successfully
re-elected as director of PY| for a term of approximately three
years until conclusion of the annual general meeting to be held
in 2015.

On 18 January 2013, Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa, being a new
director appointed with effect form 1 November 2012,

was successfully re-elected as director of PYI for a term of
approximately three years until conclusion of the annual general
meeting to be held in 2016.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Chan Shu Kin and Mr

Li Chang An will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The retiring directors, being eligible, seek
re-election and their respective biographies are set out in the
Letter from the Board in the circular for re-election of directors.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devoting sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PYI
the identity of public companies or organizations in which they
have held offices, and the number and nature of the offices, as
well as other significant commitments and are required to notify
PY! of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of their biographies
and time commitments to the affairs of PYI as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments on an annual basis.
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Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of director’s duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, PYIl Code of Conduct, the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements and the business and governance
policies of the Group.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional
training for directors and management and believes that

it is effective to enhance corporate governance through

regular trainings within the Group. Apart from reading

monthly management updates since April 2012, directors are
encouraged to keep up to date on all matters relevant to the
Group and attend briefings and seminars at the expense of PYI
on an ongoing and regular basis.

This year, our directors and management continued to keep
abreast of any updates on the governing laws and regulations
of the jurisdictions where PY| operates businesses and
applicable guidelines and rules issued by regulatory authorities
and attended seminars organised by professional bodies
and/or been provided with materials of such seminars. In
June 2012, we set up a training centre in Hangzhou office
that is responsible for organising regular internal trainings for
management of the Group. In addition to regular attendance
at Board and Board committees meetings and in order to
have a better understanding of our business operations,
directors including all independent non-executive directors have
participated in field trips to Nantong and Jiaxing in May 2012
and Wuhan and Yichang in October 2012.

Since June 2012, all directors and senior management have
been required to provide PYI with their training records on

an annual basis, and such records have been maintained

by the Company Secretary for regular review by Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee. The training records
of the directors and senior management were reviewed by the
Committee in June 2013.
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According to the records, PYI directors received the following
trainings with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a director of a listed company in compliance with Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the year:

Directors

=

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIYFHITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin BR#S 8 % &

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph & 48 % &
Mr Li Chang An & & %4

Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa BB+
(appointed with effect from 1 November 2012)
(B2012F 11 A1ABREZT)

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2l& R EL 4
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan B #2845t &

Non-Executive Director
HTES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles R B 5818 +

Board Committees

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI shareholders, the Board has established
five Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee, and the
Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles,
authority and functions as detailed in the respective written
terms of reference which are available on PY| website:
www.pyicorp.com. A majority of members of all Board
committees are independent non-executive directors.

The Board may also establish committees (including

independent board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve

projects as it deems necessary.
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PEREIRES

All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board
and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties. The Board committees will make recommendations to
the Board on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS
EELELE

Board Audit
EZR E5
Number of meetings held during the year
RERETEEREY 7 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin [ 8 % 4 1y 4/4
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2& 4 % & 1y 4/4
Mr Li Chang An 2 E% 7t 4 1y 2/2
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa EBE % £ 4/4 2/2
(appointed with effect from 1 November 2012
B2012511516EBZH)
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2|8 & % 4 7
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan B 5% & 6/7
Non-Executive Director
FHTES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles BBl %+ 5/7
(with Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
EELEBERNANE
Mr Ko Hiu Fung BEE L £ 1y 4/4

*

REB S ARER LR EES 2 S DR —REEREH -
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Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan attended a board meeting in the capacity as the alternate director of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
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The following tables show the composition of the Board UTNEKRBETRFANEERZEGMEN  HAB N
committees, their respective roles and functions and a summary B RETHERMER SRE
and/or report of the works performed by them during the year:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
FHzEg

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director

R BYFHTES BITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 18 B 5% & (Chairman% &) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 215 B %4
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 28 4850 &

Role & Function* v Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company
bRl g G RANYNETE= k= 1 12 65

v Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for developing a policy on such remuneration
RAEEERSREEENTMECE AR URAKFTZSHMEER Ry —EERM
HERENEF MEERREHESR

v Determines or makes recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment
AEKMEZREZERRATESNSRELENFTCHINGE  2EEYHE  RKk&
RARFECHE (BEAR AR AR ZEMENNIAHEESR)

v Makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors

RAEEREHIFNTEENIHM

Summary of work Ve Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2012
performed AGM
THERE BREFHSETE  HRRE202FRTBFERE LHE

Ve Approved the grant of additional incentive bonus for achieving debt financing below the
standard rate of the People’s Bank of China

HAERBUSER T BARRITEEN KB B E M HBINMEA

v Reviewed the share incentive schemes

wmat Bt BB AT &

Ve Reviewed and determined the remuneration packages of Managing Director and Senior
Management for the financial year 2012/13
WE REE2012/130 HERER RS NEREENFHITSE

v Considered granting of share options to certain executives and staff

ERREBRETETITRABRESR

v Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the director’s fee of a newly
appointed independent non-executive director

EZHRRMEZREZTRZEBIUFATEENERES

v Approved the grant of year-end bonus for the year 2012 to Managing Director
M B ZIE H2012F EHFRIEA

Ve Considered and approved the key performance indicators of Managing Director and Senior
Management for the financial year 2012/13
ZERIER2012/B3UBFEEARANBHLGREEENE 2ERER

*

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.
* BRE— ST BB LEHMRERL - www.pyicorp.comZ HMZ E W iEHE -

) ResEEsRAT 2013588 09
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Performance-based Remuneration Policy

Director’s fee is determined with reference to factors including
the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, the duties and responsibilities of a director,
employment conditions elsewhere and the time committed by
the director.

A performance-based element is considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and
has been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an
integral part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future
awards to employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy
include:

v to attract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v 1o support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term
and long-term performance-based rewards will be
emphasized;

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the
performance-based rewards will either be equity-based
and/or cash-based; and

v equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in light
of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence on the
Group’s performance and share price.

PY| effectively deploy an appropriate mix of its existing
equity-based reward vehicles, including the share option
scheme, share award scheme and share financing plan as well
as cash bonus.

Details of remuneration of directors and senior management are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZEY

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
R BYFHTES BITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin 18 & % 4 (Chairman £ /&) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2|5 R 54
i P 1k
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 % %%+ Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles B34 1§ +
(Alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
BEEZmRLE)
Role & Function* v Reviews the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
A e R Board at least annually and makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
ELEFRIEZTROEE  ABRAEK (BERE  MERERAIE) U EABREZSHRE
ERIELEZ
v Identifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or makes

recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships

NEABEERNABARREIESRKE  AIEIAESRELEZEBALHEIES

v Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors

ARBULIFATERN BT

v Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and
Managing Director

RESFZAERENZE UREF(LERIFEGR)BIFIENEZRREER

Summary of work Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2012 AGM
performed RERFTEFHE202FRRBEFAG LREST
THERE

v Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of
independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

ZH R RBIUENTESRRCETRR)E3 135 R 2 FEBILMER K

v Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board

BANEERNRE  ABKERK

v Considered and recommended to the Board the appointment of Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa as an
independent non-executive director of the Company

ERIRNEFRERZCERBRULARARARZBUIFNTES

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.
* BRE—HEE BT LEHNRERI  www.pyicorp.comZ REZESHIEHE -

) grzemaRam 2035® 91
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESS AND CRITERIA
REREF BREURER

Nomination Committee Nomination Committee Nomination Committee The Board makes formal
makes recommendations identifies individuals selects or makes invitation to selected
to the Board on any suitably qualified to recommendations to the persons for appointment
proposed changes become directors Board on the selection to the Board

of persons nominated

for directorships

REZSEMEMHE REZEEWEARE REZSEHRESGMD EERMEERKEAL
EEHEAEEREL BEAERTREE ESREHESRLER BHEFEEMER
fe= BEMAL ERALTHEES BB

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

TtEERREREES
Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Company Secretary
# B BYFHTES RAEWE

Mr Chan Shu Kin BR 1 B % & (Chairman% ) + Mr Ko Hiu Fung S B2 1& % 4
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2% 4 % &
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa B & 7 £
(appointed as member with effect from 1 November 2012

B2012611 F1HREZTERE)

Role & Function* v Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
A& mEEaE recommendations to the Board
HETRBAARANCEEARERER UMNEZRELES

v Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management

BRREREERSRAEEENRIIRFETEXER

v Reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and meets regularly with the management of the Company to assess the
Company’s compliance policies, programs and procedures
A MEEAAREETERLEERTTEHNBRELER  THEARNANEREETHETER
AFHEAR DB TREGEK - HEIRERF

v Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)

applicable to employees and directors of the Company

BIE - R ERERBEHEARARARERESNETATALENRARTM(WE)

*

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on PYI’s website: www.pyicorp.com for
further details.
* BRE—HFHE BHELENRERI  www.pyicorp.comZ DEERREMEZESHESHE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (continued)
TEERREIBEZEES )

Role & Function v Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or
(continued) potential compliance violations that are reported to the Corporate Governance and Compliance
A& E Committee

(&) AERLHFAEACEERARERZEGRMNEMERERNELTERBR

v Reviews the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as contained in the Listing Rules and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
B ARARETCETRADAZEETFUANBRARBE(EEERRE) NH B E

Summary of work / Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2012
performed EMHZ202F3A3MBLFEZ(REERRE)
IERE

v Reviewed updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries
EHARAREPEFEMNBERARNERZRELRS

v Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the Group’s policy on disclosure and
public relations

ZHRMEFRREREAEE 2 RERQAHABEREEE

v Reviewed and adopted the form for confirmation of directors’ participation in training and the
form for disclosure of time involved in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments by directors in compliance with the CG Code
EHRRMEE2EEI 2 ERRBERBESN AR DA RABETRE R EMEAENR
B REEEZ KRG BT RE TR

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE

ROEBZES
Composition Independent Non-Executive Director Executive Director
#H B BYFHTES BITES

Mr Chan Shu Kin B 18 8 5% & (Chairman® &) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 215 & %4
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 £ 4 5 4
(Alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin & & &/ % 4£)

Role & Function* v Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYI
A& mRE e in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda
BEBECETRED  READMANRBEEEREZE  TERIETESREBRERO ZES

Summary of work v/ During the year, no meeting was held by the Share Repurchase Committee.
performed RER BODBZESYEAFIH -
IHERE

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Share Repurchase Committee on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.
BRAE— LB BFHE LHMRERL - www.pyicorp.comZ RN EIEZ B @& E -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
BERZEERY

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors
R BAKFHITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 16 8 5 4* (Chairman % /&)
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 28 & 7t &£
Ms Wong Lai Kin Elsa # B2 & +
(appointed as member with effect from 1 November 2012
B20126 11 A1AREZTARE)
Mr Li Chang An ZE % k4
(resigned as member on 1 November 2012

Ro012F11 A1AEHI AR E)

* Mr Chan Shu Kin is currently a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management services.

PRI LB R — S HREIEN  ERE - SARMBEERE T HERE LR -

Role & Function* v Makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of external auditor

ABEBE REEINEBRBMAEERRHER

v Reviews the Group's financial information

EZHAEETBEHR

v Oversees the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures

ERAKEMBERGIEMAREIZRERF

v Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval

ERXEFERIEZH  BHAKERHNRARE

v Meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has
unrestricted access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors
THRGEMNVBERMALEZEE - ZEG A AU B &M EEMRAR B INE R A ZE
AN B 45 Bk 22

Report on work v Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated
performed financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
IS EHAEERCECNTREEUBRRANLCEZNFEGAVBRE TEZEERB

v Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group
EHAEEABEERERERESR

v Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit
actions implemented/planned by the Group

EREEMANEE RREERASEMETRAINABESF TENERRE

v Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group’s
2012 final results
HEINEZEE R ERAEE20128 RPEEMEENZHE

v Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the review of the Group’s
2013 interim results

HESNEZBM A EENAEE2013F R MREMZENRHE

* Please refer to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee on PYI's website: www.pyicorp.com for further details.
* ERE—PHIE BB FHAMRERL - www.pyicorp.comZ BEREZE SR EHE -

60 PVIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2013 Annual Report



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEXEIRKRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

EREEE W)
Report on work v Approved the engagement of external auditor to provide non-audit services with service fee over
performed HK$500,000
N \ fE8 =] 7y N
(continued) 38 25 {F 91 IS 4 AT 1R 42 AR 75 %% 1B 18.500,00075 7T 2 3F X BUR 75
e
TAF#RE () v Reviewed connected transactions of the Group
EHAEEHERS
v Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor
at 2012 AGM
BER0NFRREFRG FEHEEEY  MERD AT /AREEIMNEZEAED
v Met with external auditor in the absence of executives of the Group
EREREEITHAEESNERLT - & RIMNEZERD
v Reviewed the implementation procedures for Enquiry and Complaint Policy
FERHEDRIRFRE 2 ERAR
v Reviewed the Group's policy on disclosure and public relations
EHAREE 2 KERDHBERBCK
INTERNAL CONTROL ok e
==
BE

Responsibility

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control to ensure that PY| shareholders’ investment and PYI’s
assets are safeguarded. Such system of internal control

was developed by making reference to the Internal Control
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in the
United States in 1992 and the Guide on Internal Control and
Risk Management issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the internal control system of the Group to achieve the
following business objectives:

v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v Reliability of financial reporting

v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Such system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aims to

provide a reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance in
this respect.

EERERAHAEENBEITRAGHNRE HER
BEEARENEL  UREBRERROHKRE RIRE
BEMNZZE - LN EE R K2 Z X BECommittee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO)A 1992w il 2 W Bl Es i iz A 1E
EREFBGAMAGRM 2 WA EEIEEREREIEIES
FT I ET#) ©

EEERAER AT AEENAREERS  NE
BTAERBER:

BB RARERNEE
v OAERE M BER
v ESTTEREDFIRA

HRSEEEEMIFEREBARREELRHTRERHNEA
@ Bt WESERE - ESEM IR MRE

ml» rEzmsRad 205w 01
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The Audit Committee performs review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s system of internal control and reports to the Board
regularly. This review covers areas of material control including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management systems.

Risk Management and Internal Control

To cope with the risks associated with the achievement of its
business objectives in a continually changing environment, the
Group has recognized the importance of risk management
and has performed risk assessment to evaluate the nature
and extent of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk
assessment process, the Group was able to identify the key
risks facing the Group. The risks are prioritized according to
the likelihood of their occurrence and the significance of their
impact on the businesses of the Group and risk management
measures are in place to manage the risks to an acceptance
level.

To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, regular trainings
are provided to our management to strengthen their awareness
of risk and capability to manage risks. The trainings provided

to management this year mainly included topics such as
connected transactions and inside information under the Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance, corporate
social responsibilities, bank financing and fraud management.

In addition, a training centre has been established in Hangzhou
to provide training services in accounting and financial skills,
laws and regulations (such as tax rules and the Listing Rules)
and the Group’s policies and procedures for the management
of PRC business units and to handle the issuance of monthly
training newsletter.

In view of the new statutory requirements for disclosure of
inside information, the Group has revised its Disclosure & Public
Relations Policy to ensure that there is timely and accurate
disclosure of inside information. Moreover, the Group has also
released the implementation procedures for the Enquiry and
Complaint Policy which was enacted last year.
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With the development and implementation of the Enquiry

and Complaint Policy and Implementation Procedures and
Disclosure & Public Relations Policy, relevant workshops have
been provided to the managerial staff of all PRC subsidiaries to

make them familiar with the policies and procedures. In addition,

with the implementation of PRC tax reform in transforming
business tax to value-added tax, external tax consultant has
been engaged to carry out training for relevant business units
and give professional advice regarding their transformation
readiness.

Moreover, PYI (Hangzhou), the Group’s support centre in the
PRC, has completed its annual reassessment on ISO9001
certification and has extended the scope of certification to its
data centre and training centre services.

Review of Internal Control System

Management at business units level is required to perform
control self assessments annually to assess the effectiveness
of their systems of internal control. The control self assessment
is in the form of questionnaire that sets out key factors in

each of the five components of the COSO Internal Control
Integrated Framework. These five interrelated components

are Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities,
Information and Communication and Monitoring. The control
self assessment has been extended to cover business process
level controls since last year.

The control self assessment has not only facilitated the
identification of control deficiencies, it has also enhanced
management’s awareness of risk and control. In addition to
the control self assessment, management has also conducted
an annual review of the Company’s policies and procedures to
ensure that they are still effective and adequate.

During the year, PYI has engaged an external consultant to
perform a follow-up review on the remedial actions taken by
management to address findings from the COSO diagnostic
review performed in 2011, and to review and give comments
on PYI’s paolicies regarding disclosure of inside information and
procedures for raising concern over improprieties in financial
reporting and internal control matters. The objective of these
reviews is to help PYI consciously enhance the effectiveness of
its internal control system.
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COSO has released an updated framework in May 2013, which
will supersede the original framework by end of December
2014. Management is planning to adopt the new COSO
framework in 2014 and is seeking advice from the external
consultant on the approach to practically adopt the new COSO
framework.

Besides, the internal audit department has carried out
independent audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal control according to the approved three-year
internal audit strategic plan for the Group. This audit plan was
determined using a risk-based approach and is re-assessed
annually to ensure adequate audit resources are deployed and
the objectives of the plan are met.

Finally, management has formulated remedial action plan for
gaps and weaknesses identified during control self assessments
and internal audit. The internal audit department has conducted
follow-up review periodically to ensure remedial actions are
implemented on a timely basis and has reported the results of
the review to the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board was not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system of the
Group.

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting Function

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget, and was satisfied with
the results of the review.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of PYI set up in November

2007 is headed by the Group Internal Audit Senior Manager
who reports directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an
important role in the internal governance of the Group. With the
assistance from external internal audit consultant, the internal
audit department is primarily responsible for conducting review
and audit on the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control periodically.
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The internal audit department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data
required in performing the internal audit review. Moreover, the
department comprises well qualified and capable staff and is
provided with adequate resources to perform its duties.

In the year 2013, the internal audit department has completed
internal audit works for the second year’s work plan of its
second three-year internal audit strategic plan, which was
developed by adopting risk-based approach and was approved
by the Audit Committee to guide and direct the internal audit
assignments over the period.

During the year, the internal audit department has conducted
audits and reviews according to the internal audit work plan
as well as ad hoc assignments requested by Audit Committee
and management respectively. During the process of audits, the
internal audit department identified internal control weakness,
made recommendations for improvement, obtained remedial
action plan of management and followed up remedial status
of the management action plan and its timeliness. Besides, in
order to ensure the continuity of the ISO9001 certification in
PYI (Hangzhou), the internal audit department has performed
internal audit review on the compliance of PYI (Hangzhou) with
the certification requirements.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed

as the Company’s external auditor at 2012 AGM until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 20 June 2013 recommended the
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at
2013 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the
same view as that of the Audit Committee.

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and only provides
non-audit services that do not impair their independence or
objectivity and are approved by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

ENRESTFTEGNREARFELBBREH

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

Services Rendered RENRE FTERT FET

Audit services ZH R 7,899 7,584

Non-audit services FEZ B R

Review of interim condensed consolidated EHFEERAERS

financial statements B ISR & 2,258 2,310

Taxation advisory Mg 521 403

Special engagements (Note) FEZRE (M) 5,145 4,564

Total g 4E 15,823 14,861

Note: Mainly represent services for acting as reporting accountants in the
proposed deemed very substantial disposal of Louis Xl Holdings
Limited (“Louis XilI") (formerly known as Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited) for the Company and in the proposed very substantial
acquisition for Louis XIlI.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

To bring the constitution of the Company in line with certain
amendments made to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) and the Listing Rules, to incorporate certain
housekeeping amendments and to consolidate all previous
amendments made to the Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”),
the Board had successfully sought shareholders’ approval on
amendments to the Bye-laws and the adoption of the amended
and restated Bye-laws at the 2012 AGM. Details of such
amendments were set out in the notice of the 2012 AGM. Copy
of the amended and restated Bye-laws (both in English and
Chinese) has been made available on the websites of PYI and
HKEX.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In 2012/2013, the Group continued to discharge its corporate
social responsibility in many areas, both internally and towards
to the community.

Since 2012, we have committed to donating HK$1,000,000
each year to Friends of Hope Education Fund for three
consecutive years as a token of our support to education works
in both Hong Kong and the Mainland China, which include
sponsoring tuition fees for AIDS infected children in Wuhan,
building and repairing schools in Guizhou and helping ethnic
minority in Hong Kong to cope with the community. In October
2012, we donated HK$1,000,000 to the said fund.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year, PYI was honoured to have sponsored two
study tours to Hong Kong for 30 outstanding secondary school
students from Nantong for the sixth year and 30 outstanding
secondary school students from Wuhan for the fifth year
respectively. PYI organised trips to the Legislative Council
Complex, Housing Authority, Monetary Authority, Golden
Bauhinia Square, amusement parks, secondary schools and
universities in Hong Kong with an aim to educating the students
on the educational and commercial operations in Hong Kong as
well as fostering the potential of the next generation.

At PYI, our businesses are intricately connected to the
environment. With a sense of social responsibility towards the
environment, we supported the global “Earth Hour” campaigned
by World Wide Fund (“WWF”) by turning off the non-essential
lights in our office for an hour at 8:30 p.m. on 23 March 2013.
We also encouraged our staff to support “Earth Hour” through
our internal communications. In appreciation of our efforts, PYI
is pleased to have received thanks from the WWEF.

In addition, PYI’s PRC subsidiaries have adopted proactive
measures to use resources (including energy, water and other
raw materials) efficiently for their production facilities and to
reduce noise, gas emissions and discharges into water and
land, thus minimising pollution and related environmental
problems. The Group also makes extensive use of electronic
communications in conducting its business, thus assisting in
the conservation of natural resources.

“Staff” is a valuable asset to the Group. While PYI remains
committed to the good of the society, both locally and regionally,
we also focus on caring for our staff’'s well being. To this end,
workshops have been provided to enhance their awareness
over occupational health and safety issues. Trainings have also
been provided to improve our staff’s knowledge and skills for
discharging their duties at work. We also encourage our staff
to maintain a healthy work-life balance and continue to support
their efforts towards voluntary work. In addition, PYl is proud

to be awarded, for the fifth year running, the title of “Caring
Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

As we progress into the new financial year, PYI would like to
maintain our focus to be a responsible and caring corporate

citizen, contributing to the community while driving profitability
for our shareholders.

By Order of the Board

Ko Hiu Fung
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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PYI AND SHAREHOLDERS
fm % B iz FR

The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
cash dividend of HKO.5 cent per share (which, together with
the interim cash dividend of HK1 cent per share paid in January
2013, amounts to a total dividend of HK1.5 cents per share,
representing a payout ratio of 26%) for the year ended 31 March
2013 to shareholders whose names appear on PYI’s register

of members as at the close of business on Wednesday, 18
September 2013. Subject to the approval of PYI’s shareholders
in the 2013 Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday, 6
September 2013, the final dividend in cash is expected to be
paid to shareholders by post on or around Wednesday, 25
September 2013.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of PYI will be closed during the
period from Monday, 16 September 2013 to Wednesday,

18 September 2013, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of share(s) of PYI will be effected. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by
the relevant share certificate(s) with the completed transfer
form(s) with overleaf or separately, must be lodged with PYI’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited
at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday,
13 September 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings as recorded in the PYI register of members as at

3

1 March 2013 are as follows:

B R

M201343H318 -

EmT

Approximate

PYIAND SHAREHOLDERS
fin & B iz FR

AHRERERRAMZBREKR

Approximate

% of % of issued
No. of shareholders share capital
Size of registered shareholdings shareholders ERREE No. of shares HEBRTRA
BERRERE BREHAE ZHMABE D vgrig =] ZHABE D
500 or below ¢ AT 336 56.86% 43,293 0.00%
501 - 1,000 33 5.58% 24,355 0.00%
1,001 - 10,000 115 19.46% 396,283 0.01%
10,001 - 100,000 72 12.18% 2,590,415 0.05%
100,001 - 1,000,000 22 3.72% 5,459,924 0.12%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 9 1.52% 27,740,837 0.61%
10,000,001 - 100,000,000 - - - -
Above 100,000,000 3 A 4* 0.68% 4,541,105,465 99.21%
Total &5t 591 100.00% 4,577,360,572 100.00%
*  The four shareholders were: ZOARERE D R A
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited EEPREE(REAN)BRAA
Direct Clearing Participants,” HEgE2EE
General Clearing Participants rHEESEE 2,239,039,969 48.92%
Custodian Participants AEmLEE 908,053,015 19.84%
Investor Participants HEEFPOERA 40,054,445 0.87%
Hong Kong Securities BB RESR
Clearing Company Limited BRAF 576 0.00%
3,187,148,005" 69.63%
Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 21.74%
Jadeview Limited 201,210,772 4.40%
Rich Concept Investments Limited 157,692,718 3.44%
4,541,090,564 99.21%

The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC
Nominees Limited was obtained from the record shown in the
CCASS Participants Shareholding Report (“PSH Report”). The
number of shares registered in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown
in the PSH Report is different from that shown on PYI’s register of
members because some shares withdrawn from or deposited into
the CCASS depository had not yet been re-registered.

AN OBRRPREE(REA)ERATA TREMARZERE
BCCASSZ B E R L lmk ([2RERNHEHERD -
SEEROBRATAETEPREE (RBA)BRAQF
BHEBREZBNBEERERREMAREGEZN &
F £CCASSE 7 17 & i f2 Bl 3k 17 ACCASS®E 5 17 & 2
ZEOBROERERERL
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Top three shareholders according to disclosure of interest under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at 31 March 2013 are
as follows:

Name of shareholders

MR2013F3A31H  REBE(EFLBHEKRODEZHE
TZRZBBREMT :

Approximate

% of issued

share capital

No. of shares HERTRA

BREER K& E ZHMAE D
1 Hollyfield Group Limited 1,226,971,695 26.80%
2 CIM Investment Management Limited 278,500,000 6.08%
3 Hof Hoorneman Bankiers N.V. 274,149,990 5.99%
Total # 5t 1,779,621,685 38.87%
FINANCIAL CALENDAR B B &

Event Date
515 =i
2012 final results and final dividend of HK0.5 cent/share announced 22/06/2012
S M2012F REAEE R E RSB 2 KRERE

2012 PYI AGM 10/09/2012
0RFRERRBFREG

2012 final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share paid 09/11/2012

IR20126 G058 1 2 R M &

2013 interim results and interim dividend of HK1 cent/share announced

EM2013F P HIEERERUBIIZFHERE

16/11/2012

2013 interim dividend of HK1 cent/share paid 07/01/2013
IK2013F BR1B L 2 R HR S

2013 final results and final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share announced 21/06/2013
B M2013F RENEE R F KR0S 2 RERE

2013 PYI AGM 06/09/2013

013 F REBEBFAE

2013 final dividend of HK0.5 cent/share payable
IEA2013F §RR0.5B 1L 2 RER &

Around#]#25/09/2013
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SHARE INFORMATION

Share Listing

PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
on 21 September 1993.

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
American Depository Receipt
Frankfurt Stock Exchange

Board lot

Securities In Issue
Shares

As at 31 March 2013
As at 21 June 2013

498
PYIFY
PYW

2,000 shares

4,577,360,572 shares
4,577,360,572 shares

B4 £

RERMDPI993FI AN BB R ER BB LT -

R 3 1 5%
BB
XEEFES
R R BRI
BEEEM(BF)

BRITES
B
7201343 A31H
7201356721 A

498
PYIFY
PYW

2,0008%

4,577,360,572M%
4,577,360,572%

Share Price
— Share price (cum dividend) *
IR E BB GER)
= Share price (ex dividend)
BB (R E)
HK$
BT
1.0 —
0.8 —
———__ f’,v—\/,\_‘_.m
0.6 —
0.4 —
02 = N~ ~—
0.0
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ™ ™M %)
o o o o o o o o o o o o
N N\ N N o N N N\ N N N\ N
< LN (o) ™~ 0 o o — ~ — o~ o0
o o o o o o — — — o o o

* Share price (cum dividend) represents the aggregate of share price (ex dividend) and cumulative dividends paid from the date of listing of PYI

shares in Hong Kong on 21 September 1993

* REEBRRERE (BB RARERNESRE LT 2B (1993F9A21H) AT 2 RS Z £
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MARKET CAPITALISATION miE

Total Market Capitalisation wmhE

As at 31 March 2013 HK$861 million #2013F3A31H 8.611E8 T
As at 21 June 2013 HK$893 million #2013F6H21H 8.93(E%& T
Public float capitalisation* DR FF T E

As at 31 March 2013 HK$591 million 7201343 H31H 59184 T
As at 21 June 2013 HK$613 million 7201356 H21H 6.13(E%8 T
*  Public excludes all connected persons (including substantial O RABRUTEEREMEEEAT (BEFERRRES) ©

shareholders and directors) of PYI.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of PY| Corporation
Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities as at 31 March 2013 are set out in note 54 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 91 of this annual report and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim cash dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of
HK1 cent per share amounting to a total sum of approximately
HK$45,774,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors have resolved to recommend for shareholders’
approval payment of a final cash dividend for the year ended

31 March 2013 of HKO.5 cent per share to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on 18 September 2013.
The estimated total sum payable in respect of this final dividend is
approximately HK$22,887,000.

Details of the distribution are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 58% and 19% of the turnover of the Group
respectively. The five largest suppliers and the single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 35% and 25%
of the total purchases of the Group respectively.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors and their
associates within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), or those shareholders who to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, has
an interest in any of the five largest customers and/or five largest
suppliers of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

EFERESE

BEEMARERELEEFRAA([RE]IHK[ARQA])
MEWBAR (RBIAEE]) HE2013F3A31H 1E
FEZFRREEZBEAVHRE -

IBRK
ARBER—RBEZBATF -

ARABESEBEWB LR B E QR REREH#ER
2013F 331 H 2 &SN ER G I IE KM 5154 ©

XBERMNBDE
B ZE2013F3A3IB L FEAKREZ ¥ERARE 2
FESEHIAARNFREIIE 2R E MR RESZ
RAEMBHREME -

RER - ARQR) MR EIRSEZ£2013F3/31H 1F
FEZHHB R ESRE - 2FEH B45,774,000
BT e

EEERAEZMEM AR EH E2013F3A318 £
FEZAHREKE SRS FHR2013F9718H
B/ R AWM AR - st REARR B AT N ALY
22,887,000/ 7T °

DIKFIBEII N R A M B RRM L5 -

FEEFREER

HZE2013F3A3IBLEFE AEEB AR HARFP
RE-—ZAEPH MO AREE S EELS58%K19% °
REBEZARSEAEEARE -—SFRAHER S SR
SEBEEEH35%K25% °
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E2HEAN(R(BERABARXIMBERARER LT
AD(KETHRANDD FARE) RBEERANERARQE]
BARBE% s RRMEERAEBMAELRAEL X%
AREREEATEN —REFES
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EERESE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet
its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s
total borrowings amounted to approximately HK$2,554,588,000
with approximately HK$1,774,905,000 repayable within one year,
approximately HK$779,683,000 repayable after one year. Cash,
bank balances and deposits as at 31 March 2013 amounted

to approximately HK$1,882,126,000. The Group’s current

ratio (calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 1.36 and the debt to equity ratio (calculated as
total borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 0.53 as at 31 March 2013.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$142,480,000
in respect of the construction of ports and approximately
HK$89,000,000 on the other property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$34,854,000
on investment properties and transferred approximately
HK$28,670,000 and HK$74,259,000 from project under
development and stock of properties, respectively, to investment

properties. An amount of HK$230,100,000 was derecognised upon

disposal of subsidiaries. All investment properties were revalued at
the year end date.

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEREREE

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES IR R E &
1. Share Option Scheme 1. BRAESTE
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme () 20024 B RR RESH &I
The share option scheme adopted by the Company on RN B R2002F8 A27 B B4 2 BE A% #E =t &l
27 August 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) expired ([2002F BE PR IEET 2 ) JA2012F8 A 27 H @
on 27 August 2012 (the “Expiry Date”) and all the then (BB ) - HIE002FE B IR 2B EM
outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share MR YR TE T AR R B ik o

Option Scheme lapsed on the Expiry Date.
RER - RIE20024F i IR &5 2 T i

Details of the movements in the share options granted under N
prons d 2EBHENT

the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year are as

follows:
Number of shares issuable under the options granted
BRERHBRESTRTHROGHUE
Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
price as at during as at Exercise
Grantee Date of grant  per share 1.4.2012 the year 31.3.2013 period
#1.4.2012 $31.3.2013
AEA REBEH SRITEE te K AT B RERXHN e K AT B 176
HK$
BT
Directors
=
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 28.12.2004 0.43762 18,416,666 (18,416,666) - 28.12.2004 -
Z=E 26.8.2012
28.12.2004 0.52940 18,416,666 (18,416,666) - 28.12.2004 -
26.8.2012
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 0.43762 1,841,666 (1,841,666) - 28.12.2004 -
PR 26.8.2012
28.12.2004 0.52940 1,841,666 (1,841,666) - 28.12.2004 -
26.8.2012
Leung Po Wing, 8.9.2006 0.85762 3,683,334 (3,683,334) - 8.9.2006 -
Bowen Joseph 26.8.2012
Li Chang An 6.2.2007 1.05881 3,683,334 (3,683,334) - 6.2.2007 -
EN-F 26.8.2012
Sub-total /Mgt : 47,883,332 (47,883,332) -
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EERESE

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued BRIDREE — &

1. Share Option Scheme — continued
() 2002 Share Option Scheme — continued

1. BRETE — &

() 2002 EPRFESHE — &

Number of shares issuable under the options granted

BERLBRESTRITHRABE
Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
price as at during as at Exercise
Grantee Date of grant  per share 1.4.2012 the year 31.3.2013 period
#1.4.2012 731.3.2013
ABEA RERE SROTEE tef A AT B RERXH e A AT B T
HK$
BT
Advisers 28.12.2004 0.43762 1,841,668 (1,841,668) - 28.12.2004 -
DN 26.8.2012
28.12.2004 0.52940 12,551,668 (12,551,668) - 28.12.2004 -
26.8.2012
Sub-total /Mgt : 14,393,336 (14,393,336) -
Grand total £zt : 62,276,668 (62,276,668) -

Note: No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled under the
2002 Share Option Scheme during the year.

(i) 2012 Share Option Scheme
A new share option scheme of the Company (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) in replacement of the 2002
Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at its annual general meeting
held on 10 September 2012. A summary of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Purpose

To provide incentive or reward to the participants (as
defined in paragraph (2) below) for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the
Group.

S

Participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time), executives
or officers, directors (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors) of any member
of the Group or any entity in which the Group holds

an equity interest (“Invested Entity”) and any celebrity,
consultant, adviser or agent of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity, who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, have contributed or will contribute to the growth
and development of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEREREE

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued
1. Share Option Scheme — continued

(i) 2012 Share Option Scheme — continued
(8) Total number of shares available for issue

RipEERE — &
1. BRESS — &
(i) 2012 BB IR FETE — &
@) AFBRITZROBH

=

(@) Mandate Limit — Subject to paragraph (b) below, the
total number of shares in the Company, which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s issued
shares as of 10 September 2012, being 455,849,357
shares.

(b) Overriding Limit — The Company may by ordinary
resolutions of its shareholders refresh the Mandate
Limit as referred to in the above paragraph (a)
provided that the Company shall issue a circular
to its shareholders before such approval is sought.
The overriding limit on the number of shares in the
Company, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the Company’s issued shares from
time to time.

(c) As of the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares in the Company available for issue under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme was 455,849,357
shares, which represented approximately 9.96%
of the issued share capital of the Company (that is,
4,577,360,572 shares) on that date.

Maximum entitiement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options (wWhether exercised
or outstanding) in any 12-month period granted to

each participant must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue. However, subject to separate
approval by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with the relevant participant and his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting
and provided that the Company shall issue a circular

to its shareholders before such approval is sought, the
Company may grant a participant options which would
exceed the aforesaid limit.

(5) Option period

The period during which an option may be exercised as
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the
time of grant, save that such period must not exceed 10
years from the date of grant of the relevant option.
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EFERESE

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued R RETTE — &
1. Share Option Scheme — continued 1. BRETE — &
(i) 2012 Share Option Scheme — continued (i) 2012 B IR 5T &8I — 48
(6) Minimum period for which an option must be held before (6) EREREBAVERE ZREHR
it is vested
HEERE2EMBRAENEREREA Y
The minimum period, if any, for which an option must B Y &SR (I0A) - 2012 g
be held before it is vested, shall be determined by the BBAS Y ELETEASEEEHE -
Board in its absolute discretion. The 2012 Share Option
Scheme itself does not specify any minimum holding (7) EMEREANRERY TEN R
period.
ABRARENEREZNREARNADAX
(7) Payment on acceptance of the option and period for 1.008 7T - B4 MERE T BE (BT
acceptance A B 1% 280K 9 ()BEH 2 BT
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company fﬁ%;;ﬁ M2 RFBER 2 B) 2 BIAR
S 43 o

on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be
accepted on or before a date as specified in writing,

F— ‘;7\_-‘\E ™ %%
being a date not later than 30 days after (i) the date on () EERBELE

which the offer was issued; or (i) the date on which the 08 0 2 S U A R B R RS B A
conditions for the offer are satisfied. WiEEE  EAEERLTHE S BSE -
(8) Basis of determining the subscription price () AR 3% L0 AR R ES o BF 2RI ¢ (i)
RARIRMZEE -
The subscription price shall be determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion at the time of grant of the Q) T FH
relevant option but shall not be less than the higher of:
(i) such subscription price as is permissible under the 20125 EIRESTE 2 B MM B10%F - /A
Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the nominal value 201299 A10A R %A » I # 1202249 A
of the share of the Company. 9H & °
(9) Remaining life MRE Z20135F3A31H IEFE » B E R H2012
) ) , FRRESZROERE TEBREREST
The life span of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is 10 L T &
years commencing from 10 September 2012 and will
expire on 9 September 2022. (i) %5 +=.@ARAT (B +=1) (3

During the year ended 31 March 2013, no share options BREZREEARDA) 2BRE B

under the 2012 Share Option Scheme were granted, nor Bot=BkESE ((BSt=f8)) 2&
exercised, cancelled or lapsed. BERNER A R R M543

(iii) Share Option Scheme of Louis XllI Holdings Limited
(“Louis XlII”) (formerly known as Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited)

Particulars of the share option scheme of Louis Xl (the “Louis
Xl Scheme”) are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued
1. Share Option Scheme — continued

(iii) Share Option Scheme of Louis XlII Holdings Limited
(“Louis XIII”) (formerly known as Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited) — continued
As at 5 February 2013, the total number of Louis XllI
shares available for issue under the Louis Xlll Scheme was
60,695,432 shares and there were no outstanding options
granted under the Louis Xlll Scheme.

During the period from 1 April 2012 to 5 February 2013,
no options under the Louis Xlll Scheme were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed.

2. Share Award Scheme

This scheme adopted by the Company on 23 February 2006
allows the Company to make bonus payments to eligible
persons (including employees, directors, consultants, advisers
and agents of the Group) by way of the Company’s shares
acquired by and held through an independent trustee until
fulfillment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the year, no shares of the Company were awarded under
this scheme.

A share award scheme was also adopted by Louis Xlll on 6
September 2006. This incentive scheme allows Louis XllI to
make bonus payments to eligible persons (including employees,
directors, consultants, advisers and agents of Louis XlIl and

its subsidiaries (the “Louis XlIl Group”)) by way of the shares of
Louis XlIl acquired by and held through an independent trustee
until fulfilment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the period from 1 April 2012 to 5 February 2013, no
shares of Louis Xlll were awarded under this scheme.

. Share Financing Plan

This plan, adopted by the Company on 14 February 2006,
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow funds
from the Company to acquire new or old shares of the Company
on a non-recourse basis with the subject shares pledged to the
Company as security, subject always to connected transaction
and other relevant provisions under the Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was provided
by the Group under this plan.

RIDREE — &
1. BREE — &
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R2013F2 A58  IREK H + =581 T #47
25+ = 1) 4 $0560,695,4320% - I £
BRI S+ =581 2 BB R AT -

H2012F4 A1H £2013F2 558 8RS - T &R
BRST=ERLERE  TEBREESD
- EHKB KR -

. RO B S

MN2006F2A23A AR A RM 2 At Bl BT A
RAAEGERAL (BELALEBEZRE EF
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D 1EBIEL -
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% 5+ = MR 2006F9 6 A IR 7T — B K 1n HZE
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued
3. Share Financing Plan — continued

A share financing plan was also adopted by Louis Xlll on 6
September 2006. This incentive plan allows eligible persons
(including employees, directors, consultants, advisers and
agents of the Louis XlIl Group) to borrow funds from Louis Xl or
from a company within the Louis Xlll Group on a non-recourse
basis, for the purpose of acquiring new or old shares of Louis
Xl with the subject shares pledged to Louis Xl as security,
subject always to connected transaction and other relevant
provisions under the Listing Rules.

During the period from 1 April 2012 to 5 February 2013, no
financing to eligible persons was provided under this plan by
Louis XIIl.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2013 amounted to approximately HK$645,628,000
(2012: HK$747,516,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph GBS, JP

Li Chang An

Wong Lai Kin Elsa (appointed with effect from 1 November 2012)

Executive directors
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Chairman & Managing Director)

Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Non-executive director
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (with Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS — continued

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Chan Shu Kin and Mr Li Chang
An retire by rotation and, being eligible, will stand for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of each of
the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, are set out below:

EFERESE

BEx A&
BEARRZABMAEST()IERS7TRE  BleREE
£ RBBREERFTERTERINBRITZBRERASF
ReFWmERIT YRAEKRERET -

HPTERARBARB Z AR RHFERE MH
EEEHMOR=F -

ESZBRBEN
BRAKETZERRAFASLEREEE EZTAE
BAKEIYARER - FATATEDNTHRE CEE
BRERINBER TRIEZRBEAH -

ESEREETHRAERRG  -HERORE
HZEBRAR

M2013F3ABIE  ARRIEERESTHRAEBRAE
REZBD RABROFRHE B ACTHENRE(ES
KB RD) EI26 FTUFE 2B CMARRE(LE
TRADMSEI0ONCLETETAEZTETESFIZINER
EFA)(KBREFRD) BERRRBDREBEBAR
SFTERDR (B B2 ESEAREIMT

Number of shares/underlying shares held

BERG/HBERAHE
(Note [t 1)
Approximate
Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests interests Total  share capital
e BT
EE /85 RAEZHH
TBRABEHE 54 BA#ER REER ARER Hib gz wy BAl
(Note fifit 2)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom  Beneficial owner, family 14,672,605 157,692,718 157,692,718 - 172,365,323 3.76%
2R interest & interest of (Note fif2 3 (Note i3t ) (Note f 4
controlled corporation
EafAA  RIkER
REEGEER
Chan Kwok Keung,  Beneficial owner & interest of 35,936,031 - 1,226,971,695 - 1,262,907,726 27.59%
Charles controlled corporation (Note /2 5)
BE% EGBAAR
REEEER
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES — continued

Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were long positions. None of the directors and the chief executive of the
Company held any short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2013.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,577,360,572 shares as
at 31 March 2013.

3. The two references to 157,692,718 shares relate to the same block of
shares in the Company. Such interests are indirectly held by a company
which is equally owned by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and his spouse in the
proportion of 50% and 50%.

4. This figure refers to an aggregate of the 14,672,605 shares under personal
interests and the 157,692,718 shares under family and corporate interests.

5. Such interests were held by Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC
Investment” which was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Corporation Limited (“ITC”)). Galaxyway Investments Limited (“Galaxyway”),
an indirect wholly-owned company of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
owned approximately 26.08% of the issued share capital of ITC. Dr
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles also personally held approximately 10.30%
of the issued share capital of ITC. By virtue of his aggregate interest of
approximately 36.38% in ITC, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed
to be interested in the shares held by Hollyfield.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2013, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below and elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

82 ch, PYI Corporation Limited 2013 Annual Report

EERBETHRAEBRKRG -HBARORE
HZRERRKR — &
fitet -

1. EAARBRD RABAEBKROD ZERDRIEERE - K2013F
3A31H  ARAREERKRSTRAERERARARRG
RABBMD P RHERR

2. LAR2013%3HA31H 24,577,360,5672f A A Al B 317 &
RNAELE -

3. WEFTIEK157,602, 7180 RN R A (D » B R —H &
BoZERTER FHIRRAERERBUAHSL
Bl50%E50%FT B 2 ARlEERE -

4. BHETEBREA#EZ 214,672,605 K%
KGR R 2157,692, 7180 A% 19 2 48 A »

AT B

5. % Z ¥ #H HITC Investment Holdings Limited ([1TC
Investment | + BMEF X EBEERAR([RBERE] 2
2 EWEBRA) 22 &M E A fHollyfield Group Limited
(THollyfield 1) # & - lRE R B LHZE2EHAZ A A
Galaxyway Investments Limited ([ Galaxyway ) # & 1= %¢
ECEITRAL26.08% - RERE L IMAEAZES
BEECEDBITRAN0.30%  ARKERELES
BB A £LR36.38%E & - MR SR Hollyfield®s 5
2RI EER -

Br EXHTH T &SN R2013F3A31H  ARAIES
SERTHABMERNRARFETAEREZE (F
EZR(EHRBEKROIDETRE) 2B’H - BEAKRN
SEHFFHEBTAATHERBRE(ES REEE)E
3525 BT HFEZ A AR ELMA SRR ESFAD

MAERSITMEARRA LB ZERZERIKE °
EENGEEBCER
MR2013F3HA31H R AKE XK/ ARAEEH

BETMERSAEERASEZERBRGES LA LR
PR T 2 R (e -

EENEEGNT2ESR
BRTIXRERFHERERS | —HRGAHBRERE

ER D IRBEE N AR REEEARR B E AR
BRANFERKIFANEMNERILZEZRNTH

BEERIEERHEEE AR -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Following a repurchase offer completed by ITC Properties Group
Limited (“ITC Properties”) on 10 February 2012, ITC Properties
and its subsidiaries (the “ITC Properties Group”) had become an
associate of ITC Corporation Limited, a substantial shareholder
of PYI, and thus a connected person of PYI pursuant to Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules from 10 February 2012. As such,
certain agreements entered into between the Louis Xlll Group on
one part and the ITC Properties Group on the other part began
to constitute continuing connected transactions of PYI (“CCTs”)
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules from 10 February 2012 with
details as follows:

(i On 29 April 2010 and 28 October 2011, Paul Y. Construction
& Engineering Co. Limited (“PYCECL”") and Paul Y. Builders
Limited (“PYBL”), both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Louis XllI, entered into respective agreements with Archiplus
International (HK) Limited (“Archiplus”) which acted on behalf
of Castle Win International Limited (“Castle Win”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties, pursuant to which
PYCECL and PYBL agreed to undertake and perform certain
construction works; and Archiplus on behalf of Castle Win
agreed to pay HK$18,580,000 and HK$83,400,000 to PYCECL
and PYBL respectively.

(i) On 16 January 2012, Paul Y. Foundation Limited (“PYFL”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Louis Xlll, entered into
an agreement with Keen Step Corporation Limited (“Keen
Step”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties,
pursuant to which PYFL agreed to undertake and perform
certain construction works; and Keen Step agreed to pay
HK$42,800,000 (with a cap of HK$50,000,000) to PYFL, which
was subsequently revised to HK$47,988,000.

On 3 May 2012, Louis Xlll entered into a business service
agreement with ITC Properties (the “Business Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Louis Xlll Group agreed to
provide a variety of construction services to the ITC Properties
Group on normal commercial terms. The annual cap amounts of
the value of services to be rendered under the Business Services
Agreement by the Louis XIIl Group for the year ended 31 March
2013 and each of the two years ending 31 March 2014 and

2015 are HK$200 million, HK$210 million and HK$220 million,
respectively (the “Annual Caps”). The Business Services Agreement
(which took effect retrospectively on 1 April 2012), the Annual Caps
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were duly approved
by independent shareholders of PYI at the special general meeting
held on 11 June 2012.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

— continued

During the period from 1 April 2012 to 5 February 2013, the CCTs
were subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules and the amount of value of services rendered by the
Louis Xl Group under the CCTs fell within the annual cap amount
of HK$200 million under the Business Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 March 2013 with details as follows:

P2012F4 A1HE2013F2 A5 B B - 2 S EHE
RHBEBFCETRADAZBRREFEEZRE - M
HEZ TS BEREEKREHBENEZE201343A
SIEIEFERETRSHERIMREZRGEET
i i8200,000,0008 T2 FE LR - ZERXHZF1E
LU

Name of party Nature of transactions Amount
REHEB ZHEME *8
HK$'000
FAT
Castle Win, an indirect wholly-owned Construction works charged by the Group 62,289
subsidiary of ITC Properties ANEFEWERETRRER
YREL - B E . MEE2EME AT
Keen Step, an indirect wholly-owned Construction works charged by the Group 27,880
subsidiary of ITC Properties ANEFEWEEETRER
IR mEE R BN E AR
90,169

All the CCTs ceased to constitute continuing connected
transactions of PYIl upon completion of the deemed disposal
of Louis XllI as subsidiary of the Company on 5 February 2013.
Details of the deemed disposal are set out in note 44(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong

Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued to the board of directors

of the Company its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the CCTs disclosed above with a copy
provided to the Stock Exchange in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules.

The auditor of the Company has reported its factual findings on

the above procedures to the board of directors of the Company.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
as set out above have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

— continued

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available from

independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(1) Substantial shareholders
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BRI R
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D RBERN T EEECHARB(GERRBAEEN)
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1) EERK

shares/underlying

Number of Approximate

% of the issued

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital
HE#T
BERG BRAZBH
RRER g6 HEROEE ERale
(Note fifzF 1) (Note [t 2)
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Beneficial owner 35,936,031 0.79%
PR B 58 E=EAA
Interest of controlled corporation 1,226,971,695 26.80%
PR E R
(Note ffat 3)
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse 1,262,907,726 27.59%
{F 150 fic (8 #E &5
(Note [t st 4)
ITC Corporation Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,226,971,695 26.80%
EECEEEBRAT R EEER
(Note ffa+ 3)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,226,971,695 26.80%
REEEER
(Note fffax 3)
Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,226,971,695 26.80%

EmlEB A
(Note fffa+ 3)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERESE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS

— continued
(2) Other persons

FERR HAT2ERBZRAE — &
(2 HMA L

Approximate
% of the issued

Number of
shares/underlying

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital
HE BT

BER®G IR A Z B4

REARB g4 HERAHE BaL
(Note ffat 1) (Note M st 2)

CIM Investment Management Investment manager 278,500,000 6.08%

Limited wEKE

Hof Hoorneman Bankiers N.V. Investment manager 274,149,990 5.99%

BEKE
Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions.

2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,577,360,572 shares
as at 31 March 2013.

3. Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”) (which was, in turn, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”)), owned
1,226,971,695 shares in PYI. Accordingly, ITC Investment and ITC

were deemed to be interested in the said 1,226,971,695 shares held by

Hollyfield. Galaxyway Investments Limited, an indirect

wholly-owned company of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr Chan”),
owned approximately 26.08% of the issued share capital of ITC.

Dr Chan also personally held approximately 10.30% of the issued
share capital of ITC. By virtue of his aggregate interest of approximately
36.38% in ITC, Dr Chan was deemed to be interested in these shares
held by Hollyfield.

4. Ms Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr Chan, was deemed to be
interested in the said 1,226,971,695 shares held by Hollyfield and
35,936,031 shares held directly by Dr Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2013, the
Group employed a total of 1,791 full time employees (2012:

3,121). Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well as
performance-based bonus. In appreciation of continuing support of
the Group’s employees, a bonus payment to employees was made
during the year.

Under the Group’s existing emolument policy, pay rate of
employees are maintained at competitive level with reference to
the merits, qualification and competence of the employees while
promotion and increments are based on performance of the
respective employees.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by

the Remuneration Committee, having regard to various factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, the duties and responsibilities of a director, employment
conditions elsewhere and the time committed by the director.

Further, the Company has implemented three share-related incentive
schemes to provide alternative means to motivate employees and
promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s strategy. Such schemes
benefited the Group’s staff both in Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 56 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 41 to 67 of
this annual report.

EFERESE

EEHBERFMEE

M20135%3A31H  AEBEREGH1,791E2BEE
(BEALEEZEE) (2012:3,121%) - HTHAE A
SUARERIBHBIEANAR - ARHAEEES
—EHEUENYE RFRERES ML -

BREASERBZHHBE KEREEZEH &
ERENMEEZREFEKFDIAERESS - RIAE
BESZRRERBARMEF 2 E%E -

AREEE LM RMFMEZESLERZAAEKM
B BEROTTSER  BRIBAMINZEH 2K
FoEERBEEMT Hi T 2BEGHEARES
BAZ R o

o ARBE BT =ZARMBEZREFE - R
KRS RABES YRAEBBERUALALRER
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERESE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the directors acknowledge that
approximately 68.64% of the issued share capital of the Company
are held by the public.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Details of the material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries are
set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND 13.22
OF THE LISTING RULES

(1) Advances to entities
As at 31 March 2013, advances to entities did not individually

exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule
14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

(2) Financial assistance and guarantees given to affiliated
companies

As at 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount of the financial
assistance provided by the Group to its associated companies
and jointly controlled entities (collectively the “Affiliated
Companies” within the meaning under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) and the guarantees given by the Group for facilities
granted to the Affiliated Companies did not exceed 8% under
the assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing
Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$ 1,056,000 (2012: HK$1,125,000).

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company to fix
its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of

PYI Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to
243, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

18 7 % 8 Bl 3k 5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
I 31 % &Y Gl 3RS =

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2013, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 June 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

=\ >
fn B I

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B3 FTExT FHT
Turnover EER
The Company and its subsidiaries AT R EH B AR 6 6,497,590 5,159,142
Share of associates and jointly BHEE S N B R RS
controlled entities 1,527,932 1,132,412
8,025,522 6,291,554
Group turnover EEEER 6 6,497,590 5,159,142
Cost of sales HEMNA (6,168,342) (4,743,208)
Gross profit EH 329,248 415,934
Other income E g A 8 62,936 105,011
Administrative expenses T E A (319,534) (331,742)
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIEEER (81,763) (85,268)
Other expenses HEmER 10 (19,470) (22,527)
Finance costs [EE= DN 11 (70,366) (77,660)
Gain on fair value changes of BEMENTEEZE)
investment properties pal & 19 190,410 83,680
Fair value gain on transfer of ERIHFLEmEEEE
completed properties held for sale wEMEZ N EBERE
to investment properties 19 34,568 -
Gain on deemed disposal/disposal BIEHE HEHE AR
of subsidiaries 2 sk 44(b)(c) 170,021 389,061
Other gains and losses E ks & B8 9 27,217 25,688
Share of results of associates il N 84,914 45,379
Share of results of jointly controlled entities SRR SIME A 10,575 13,056
Profit before taxation BR A% A& F) 13 418,756 560,612
Taxation THIE 14 (114,230) (191,595)
Profit for the year FE A 304,526 369,017
Profit for the year attributable to: ITATEIEFEERF
Owners of the Company VNN 2PN 262,343 334,072
Non-controlling interests IR R 42,183 34,945
304,526 369,017
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Basic and diluted earnings per share GREAREERT 16 0.057 0.074
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SGERMKRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Profit for the year FERF 304,526 369,017
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hit2mE K= (%)
Exchange differences arising from REGINEBMEEZERLEZR
translation of foreign operations 39,137 163,581
Reclassification adjustment of translation BAELE L EMB QR
reserve upon deemed disposal/disposal EHFEEENNFHE
of subsidiaries (24,859) (230,797)
Gain on fair value changes of AHEEREZ A FBEES KRS
available-for-sale investments 28,425 12
Reclassification adjustment on disposal HEAHEEREZEHTAR
of available-for-sale investments (2,596) (365)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEHMEERE (FX)
for the year 40,107 (67,569)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEAEKW=EE 344,633 301,448
Total comprehensive income for the year NTATELRFEZERELEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE RSN 296,712 236,528
Non-controlling interests AR = 47,921 64,920

344,633 301,448
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

&m 8 Bl #5 iIA i 26

At 31 March 2013
H2013F3H31H

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 FHET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - KRR 18 1,517,924 1,561,175
Investment properties REME 19 975,658 855,244
Project under development ZRERPIEAR 20 637,648 493,267
Prepaid lease payments BAEERIE 22 350,582 314,329
Goodwill EES 23 - 61,646
Other intangible assets HivBEE 24 74,680 155,620
Interests in associates /N £ 25 1,549,656 1,189,262
Interests in jointly controlled entities R SR 26 91,696 31,314
Available-for-sale investments AIHBERE 27 667,724 363,726
Loans receivable — due after one year —FRIEZ ERER 28 - 16,020
Other debtors — non-current portion HAb EARR — JEmEN AL 32 - 628,467
5,865,568 5,670,070
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Stock of properties METE 21 1,130,558 1,087,769
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERIE 22 3,307 4,197
Inventories of finished goods AmEE 63,430 22,880
Loans receivable — due within one year —ERNEIEZ EWER 28 106,425 86,616
Amounts due from associates Al /NI 29 19,102 35,819
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities P [R5 8 5K IR 30 19 52,921
Amount due from a non-controlling interest FEMSEIZE AR B 2 B 30 1,248 1,233
Amounts due from customers EREFAEHIRENRIA
for contract works 31 - 376,446
Trade and other debtors, deposits 5 REMERER -
and prepayments HEASENERE 32 400,855 2,688,336
Investments held for trading HIEEERE 33 64,225 60,439
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 27 82 75
Pledged bank deposits EEABRITHER 34 646,520 732,226
Short term bank deposits RERITHER 34 790,593 450,579
Bank balances and cash BITEFERRS 34 445,013 557,656
3,671,377 6,157,692
Assets classified as held for sale DERFIELEZEE 17 88,383
3,759,760 6,157,692
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GIINSIIIIIIATEII STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
|||i|i =] ﬂ-l ig ;lk q ﬁ

At 31 March 2013
#A2013F3A31H

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
k=3 FHET FHTT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amounts due to customers for contract works  EEFE A4 TIZKIE 31 - 716,288
Trade and other creditors and accrued B 5 N H M E AR K FEET R 2
expenses 35 864,736 2,249,521
Deposits received for pre-sale of properties TEEMHE L EH&ZET@ 25,974 41,950
Amounts due to associates JE - Bt & R B RIR 36 110,630 108,059
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities JE1 R4 %IM%*% 37 112 95,401
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JERTFEIE R fE 2R R 38 16,854 7,583
Taxation payable JERTHRIE 9,806 16,030
Bank and other borrowings —FANEE 2 RITREMER
— due within one year 39 1,720,531 1,714,567
2,748,643 4,949,399
Liabilities associated with assets classified as S5 A 1ELE 2 A E R
held for sale ZBE 17 25,331 -
2,773,974 4,949,399
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFRE 985,786 1,208,293
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERRSHERS 6,851,354 6,878,363
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year —# 42|87 $R17 K& E b 5% 39 764,702 920,437
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE ST IR R M 25 3R E 38 17,952 33,144
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIEAE 40 582,582 537,021
Deferred income BIEWA 41 50,896 40,349
Other payables HAb FERTBRR 35 62,873 59,154
1,479,005 1,590,105
5,372,349 5,288,258
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital (%N 42 457,736 455,849
Reserves s 4,383,439 4,154,090
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AR &E#HHE A Z EBERERD 4,841,175 4,609,939
Non-controlling interests FEIERR A 531,174 678,319
TOTAL EQUITY wmER 5,372,349 5,288,258
The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 243 were BN EI1E2438 2 45 & U % W &= B M2013F6 A 21
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on HEESRZEREETE YHTIHNEERERES

21 June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: R#E -

Tom Lau g5 R
Chairman and Managing Director F /& # 2%,

Alan Chan B2
Executive Director $117& %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GHANGES INEQUITY
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
LN N1 5
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share  Share  Specill  Capital revaluation  Other Translation ~payment Retained controllng ~ Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve reserves  reseve  reseve  profits Sub-otal interests  equity
R& HEHRA
Br  ROEE HHRE AR EMRE  ERER  EXRE  ERR  REEA Mt FBREE EREE
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKB00D  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS000
TEr AT TR TEr TR e TEm TR ThT TR TR TR
At 1 Aorl 2011 ROMELAIA 102913 489421 12469  (343,326) U3 674 S0T904 9561 3191398 4500613 1824947 6,325,560
Exchangg dlferences arising from REEENZHT
translation of foreign operations EEZERER - - - - - - 1335% - - 133506 29985 163981
Reclassifcation adjusiment of tranglaion i E-FHBREBES
reserve Upon disposal of a subsidiary G ETHE - - - - - - (280797) - - 230797) - 230797)
(Gain oss) on fair valug changes of THHEREIDTER
avallable-for-sale investments 29005 (BE) - - - - 2 - - - - 2 (10 12
Reclassifcation acjustment on disposa HETHEREZ
of avalable-for-sale investments Bl - - - - (369) - - - - (369) - (369)
Proft for the year EEEH - - - - - - - - 302 %02 M5 389017
Total comprehensive (expense) ERRE(RRYnEE
income or te year - - - ] - m) SOBO B8 G40 3018
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 44(c) HE-FNBA (g - - - U795 - - - - (47959 - (1262559 (1,252,559
Acauistion of additional interests SEWELTER (Wiup)
in subsiciaries (note 44(a) - - - - - - - - 148 w14y (700
Distrbuton (note 15) (K1) - - - - - - - - (13874 (1365874 - (13874
Share of ther reserves of associates BERENT ENER - - - - - 151 - - - 155 - 155
Issue of shares under sorip BENRR BFEIEARA
dlvidend scheme 2%6 40713 - - - - - - - 7009 - T009
Release upon lapse of vested ptions ERRERERIRER - - - - - - - (1100 70 - - -
Transfer ofreserves of a subsidary ER-THELFZGE - - - - - 75 - - (759) - - -
Dividend ditbute by subsidaes HEATATZRS - - - - - - - - - SR R
Contruton from nor-controling RexihEaLE
interests - - - - - - - - - - 04%  504%
At 31 March 2012 H012E3R31A 455849 493494 12469 (95,369) - 6097 410703 2449 3148130 4600939 678319 5286258
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GBEDZHE

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
AAIREARERE
Share-
Investment based Non-
Share  Share  Special  Capital revaluation  Other Translation payment Retained controllng ~~ Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reseve reserves  reseve  reseve  profits Sub-otal interests  equity
RE HEHA
Ra  BHEE GHBR  EARE  EHER  HMBE EXRR  REER  REL M OFBRER  ERfE
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKBOOD  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tan  TEn  TAr AT AT TR TR TEm TAm AT TR TR
At Apr 2012 RotoEafiA 155809 493494 124695 (95,368 - 00987 40708 2449 8148130 4609930 678319 5288268
Exchangg clferences arising rom REEENZHT
translafion of foreign operations EREREE - - - - - - B3 - - 3B 578 01y
Reclassifcation acjusiment of tranglaion~~ B/EHENBRABES
resenve Upon deemed cisposal of G ENHE
subsiciries - - - - - - (24859 - - (4859 - (4859
(Gain on fai valug changes of Tt ERE ATRE
avalleble-for-sale investments B9/ e - - - - B4% - - - - B4 - B4
Reclassiication acjustment on disposa HETHLEREZ
0f avalable-for-sale investments EES - - - - 25%) - - - - 25%) - 25%)
Proft for the year EEEA - - - - - - - - B3 262343 42183 304526
Total comprehensive income forthe year ~ EE2EUREE - - - - B89 - 8540 - 233 298712 4T 3463
Desred disposal of subsidaries (note 44(b) ﬁ WERA (Hiup) - - (1246%) - - - - - 146% - (254470)  (254470)
Distoution (note 15) MKEB) - - - - - - - - (68560 (68,566) - (68560
Share of ther ressrves of associates E’Wﬁ BELTZENEE - - - - - 3 - - - 3 - 3
Issue of shares under sorip BEMRR 83185k
(lvidend scheme 187 1200 - - - - - - - -
Release upon lapse of vested options BSEERERIRER - - - - - - - 49 249 - - -
Transfer ofreserves of subsicaries ERNBLTZRE - - - - -8 - - 690 - - -
Dividend distrbuted by subsiciaries HEATARZRE - - - - - - - - - - (6462 (648
Contrbouton from non-controling interests K& 4 kR LA - - - - - - - - - - 65866 65800
At 31 March 2013 A03E3RIIA 47736 494,604 - (5368 2589 76787 419243 - 3462264 ABdATS  B31TL 5312349

The special reserve of the Group as at 31 March 2012 REBM201243A31B 2 HFRIEBEREHBRRNE

represents the difference between the nominal amount of the
share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries at the date
on which they were acquired by the Group and the nominal
amount of the share capital issued as consideration for the
acquisition.

The capital reserve represents the difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of the underlying assets
and liabilities that are attributable to the additional interests
in subsidiaries acquired by the Group. The amount would be
charged to retained profits upon disposal of interests in the
subsidiary or the relevant assets, whichever is earlier.

Other reserves mainly represent statutory reserve which is the
appropriation of certain percentages of profit after taxation of

subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) as pursuant to the PRC regulations.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RIS X

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHBT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEK
Profit before taxation B %1 Bl s 418,756 560,612
Adjustments for: BT3B EITHRHE
Finance costs A& KA 70,366 77,660
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - RS W
plant and equipment (1,316) (483)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HEBRNHEHERENRIEHA
payments and related other Hith B &EE 2 W
intangible assets - (505)
Gain on deemed disposal/disposal BIELRE LEHE AR 2 W
of subsidiaries (170,021)  (389,061)
Gain on disposal of an associate LE—EEE ARz E - (5,565)
Share of results of associates BB ENRER (84,914) (45,379)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities R LR RIS A (10,575) (13,056)
Release of prepaid lease payments ABEMNEERE 4,060 4,239
Amortisation of other intangible assets EmEpEE#H 3,675 13,376
Depreciation of property, plant and ME WM ERBREZTE
equipment 64,858 58,812
(Gain) loss on fair value changes of BIEEEREZATEEES
investments held for trading z (W) Eie (3,713) 22,023
Fair value gain on transfer of completed ERIFEHEMFERS
properties held for sale to investment WEMEZ A FEERS
properties (34,568) -
Exchange gain arising from deferred PE—HNBARZEBKEERE
consideration receivable from sale FE &£ 2 IE I
of a subsidiary - (25,578)
Gain on fair value changes of investment BREWMELNTFEAEAZ S 2 W
properties (190,410) (83,680)
Interest income FEWA (51,186) (74,873)
Dividend income from investments FEEERE ZIREWA
held for trading (1,264) (262)
Impairment loss (recovered) recognised FE W R IE (Y E]) R R (E & 18
on receivables (881) 4,870
Write-back of overprovision of deferred BB EIRENRE 2 BERE
consideration payable (9,683) -
Gain on disposal of LEAHEERE 2 E
available-for-sale investments (2,596) (365)
Operating cash flows before movements Rt BERE DA EEEBRENRE
in working capital 588 102,785
Changes in amounts due from (to) customers B (B BFE A4 TR KB LT
for contract works (147,625) (344,946)
(Increase) decrease in stock of properties MEFE GEm) R (86,247) 68,071
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable JE W 3k (38 hn) @ A (11,937) 10,511
(Increase) decrease in inventories of s GEm) md (40,550) 6,360
finished goods
Increase in trade and other debtors, B REMBUER - 5] & RIENR FRIBE N
deposits and prepayments (145,669) (679,857)
il gesmsmran conngs 9]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

maHEHlER

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FER FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES — continued REEK-&
Decrease in amounts due from associates JIE s Bt & R R SRIEDR 4,380 12,687
Increase in amounts due from jointly JFEE MK K () 428 o) 48 4 5K TE 3 A
controlled entities (68,845) (29,965)
Increase in investments held for trading FEBEERE LN - (35,520)
Decrease in deposits received for pre-sale MIEEME 2B WIRS R
of properties (16,500) (204,159)
Increase in trade and other creditors and B REMENERR
accrued expenses B 5T 5 S 18 0 210,480 490,959
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to JRE A< B 5 2 B FRIE OBt ) 380
associates (42,057) 41,459
Decrease in amount due to a related company & — & B B & 7] 585 4 - (233)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to jointly JIE A< 3 B4 I e 48 5108
controlled entities Rt 2> 580 (57,275) 901
Cash used in operations BRiEEEB2RE (401,257) (460,947)
Overseas tax paid BAEINEIA (25,721) (35,292)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BREEBNGSH - 2
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ARG %K > 5458 (426,978)  (496,237)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REX®
Additions to pledged bank deposits B RITE RGN (646,520) (732,226)
Payment for project under development BERPIER Z2HK (188,227) (43,655)
Additions to property, plant and equipment Y - MW R RR I N (191,342) (185,323)
Additions to prepaid lease payments B 1 & I E AN (75,095) (6,797)
Net cash (outflow) inflow on deemed disposal/ B{EHE /& E A 7~
disposal of subsidiaries Be O RAFERE 44(p)(c) (66,972) 706,193
Additions to interests in associates NN o g | (63,838) (2,594)
Additions to available-for-sale investments At B R E N (48,620) -
Additions in investment properties 188 1) 2 18 (34,854) (68)
Settlement of deferred consideration payable — BEEMNIELERE (2,647) -
Contribution to jointly controlled entities m) [ 422 I e 1 ) E & (950) (2,050)
Repayment of deferred consideration receivable 18 i& & Ui & (B 743,284 184,909
Release of pledged bank deposits A EARITER 730,911 83,532
Interest received B IF B 85,768 15,889
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease PEBNHEERBRIEEEM
payments and related other intangible assets & & EFS A 31,349 -
Dividend received from associates B E N E R 18,123 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEEREY
available-for-sale investments Frig 3R 17,490 365
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEE - B REREERIE
plant and equipment 15,703 5,186
Government grants received 2 WU T 6 B 10,043 14,205
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RIS X

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FExT FHBT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES — continued REXK-&
Dividend received from investments BRBIEEERERS

held for trading 1,264 262
Proceeds from disposal of an associate s — BB R QR TE A - 34,360
Dividend received from jointly controlled entities & U £ [F1 42 HIl # 15 p% &= - 6,787
Refundable deposits paid for potential projects E#£EBEE Sz AR Bz & - (50,000)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREXEKRESFE 334,870 28,975
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bl & E B
New bank and other borrowings raised MERBRITREMER 3,240,871 2,798,515
Contribution from non-controlling interests REFEZERERLE 65,866 50,496
Advance from an associate —MHE QT 28R 37,453 -
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMER (2,803,982) (2,320,321)
Interest paid 2F & (149,561) (126,903)
Dividends paid B E (65,479)  (128,865)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ERHE A ERER 2 KRE

of subsidiaries (6,462) (2,337)
Repayment of amounts due to non-controlling (& & & < JE35 B 1 25 2 3018

interests (6,368) (4,203)
Advances from jointly controlled entities Fh [R5 Il e 1S 2 B K - 49,500
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries 1% 8 if B A &) 2 S8 /Mg 5 44(aq) - (7,000)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REMETBH2HEFHE 312,338 308,882
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRERLEEEE

CASH EQUIVALENTS EmOEL) F8E 220,230 (158,380)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE SNEERGBHTE

CHANGES 7,141 9,198
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT ®R&REBESEEEE&KA

FORWARD 1,008,235 1,157,417
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED HehERScESEERELSE

FORWARD 1,235,606 1,008,235
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRERSEEEEERIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short term bank deposits RERITER 790,593 450,579
Bank balances and cash wITHEFENES 445,013 557,656

1,235,606 1,008,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn 8 Hil #5 35 2% i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated

in Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are set out in note 54.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of
HKAS 12 Underlying Assets
Amendments to Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HKFRS 7 — Transfers of Financial Assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
in the current year. Under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for

the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using

the fair value model. As a result of the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12, the directors have re-assessed
the amount of deferred tax provision on changes in fair
value of Formed Land and Land Being Formed (all as
defined in note 19) based on the best estimate of the tax
consequence upon sale of these properties directly or sale
through entities holding these properties, and conclude
that the adoption of the amendment has no material effect
on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the Group considers that majority of the
leasehold land and buildings classified as investment
properties are to be consumed substantially all of

the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale, and that
the presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12
is rebutted. The Group continues to recognise deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of these leasehold land and
buildings on the basis that the carrying amounts of these
properties were recovered through use and hence, the
adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12 has no material
effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements.

Other than described above, the application of the
amendments to standards in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE
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NIITES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&x B Wil 75 ¥k 2% biil 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

ERAFAIREERERVBREER
((EBMBHEEEN) &
AEBEYE|BEZRMTICRMERERZH
AIRRERBRBHBREER

effective: EEHBIREEL 2009-20114F B F
(#&153T) BAMBERELER
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to FEBUE
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle' BABHREENETH RE-HKEeMEER
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial (&) =iy
Assets and Financial Liabilities’ BB REENENR BEMBREER
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date RBEBTBREER 95 2 98 £ XK
and HKFRS 7 of HKFRS 9 and Transition ENGACSCHD) A [ 3 % 1 4 280
Disclosures® BB HRE LA REMBRE A8
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial F10% - BRUH ZHRBRREM
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint Arrangements FEAE1IRRK BRI R
and Disclosure of Interests in BEARTBREE] B M3
Other Entities: F125% (&IER])
Transition Guidance' ARMBREENE105 - KREEE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities? Nl ﬁ*i&ii‘i B 128%
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 REB G ERE27H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® (&{&aT)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements' BRI BREERFEIR SHMIAS
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’ EEMBRELENFEI0%  GEUBRE
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in BN BREERE115 BETH
Other Entities! BAMBRELEAE125% BEREMERE
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement' 2!
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits' BEERBRELERFE135 ATEEZFTE
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements' FB e ERIE195 EERA

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures!

Presentation of Iltems of Other
Comprehensive Income*

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?

(201 ELEHR)
BEG LR ETH
(2011@@!@&)
BB G ER F28%
(2011&%&11%3&)
B G ERSER

{5 31 75 WK

REERRRAE
rEZRE
ZIEMBEBEA

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures (&15z:T) HA*
for Non-Financial Assets? ARG ERIEI25% BiEeREERSR
HK(FRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production (5 ﬂ“ﬂ) B 1A
Phase of a Surface Ming' BB ERF365 FepEEkE
HK(FRIC) - Int 21 Levies? ( ,w; 37) HOAR B
&% (BR2EZEE) WERREEEREDN
—RRBE205% FIE A
Bk (ERREEEY) B
—RRE21%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope

of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes

in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in

profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9

in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial assets,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
that effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,
HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK (SIC)-Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10,
there is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control.

In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified.
HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations
of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under
HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements:
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and
jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures
under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for

using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly
controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5
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NIITES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
— continued

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable

to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional

guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier
application permitted provided that all of these standards
are applied at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 10 will have no material impact

on the consolidated financial statements whereas

the application of remaining four standards may have
significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. The application of HKFRS 11 might
result in changes in the classification of the Group’s joint
arrangements, depending on the rights and obligations
of the parties to the joint arrangement. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of those
effects until a detailed review has been completed.

Other than described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments and investment properties which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All'intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to

the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing

control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted

to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (jii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits

as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange

for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, with certain exemptions.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of

the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum

of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made

on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwiill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may

be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in

a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Non-current assets held for sale — continued

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities

of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost

of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress

is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn 8 Hil #5 35 2% i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Property, plant and equipment — continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose, and
land under development for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal

or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Land under development

Land under development for rentals and/or capital
appreciation as investment properties are recognised

and classified as investment properties upon the
commencement of land leveling process. Construction
costs incurred for development are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the land under development. Land
under development is measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the land under development and its carrying amount

is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing
cost capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project
under development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties for sale or property, plant
and equipment or investment properties, as appropriate,
when the intended purpose of the land development can
be determined upon commencement of land leveling
process.

Stock of properties

Stock of completed properties is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and stock of properties under
development for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to complete. Cost of stock of properties
is calculated using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the end of the reporting period
less selling expenses, or, if not yet sold after the end of
the reporting period, by management estimates based

on prevailing market condition. The relevant costs include
acquisition costs, development expenditure, borrowing
costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties.

Stock of properties is transferred at fair value to
investment properties upon the commencement of a lease
as evidence for a change in use.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Interests in associates — continued

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s

share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets

and liabilities of an associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value

of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment

in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Interests in associates — continued

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS
39. The difference between the previous carrying amount
of the associate attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in

other comprehensive income by that associate would

be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that
associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates

On acquisition of additional interest in an existing associate
whereby the Group continues to have significant influence
but not gaining control, the cost of acquiring the additional
interest is added to the carrying value of the associate.
Goodwill or gain arising on the purchase of the additional
interest is calculated as the difference between the cost

of the additional interest acquired and the share of the

net fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate attributable to the additional interest acquired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entities.
When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity, the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of a jointly controlled entity recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value

of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Interests in jointly controlled entities — continued

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in
the Group losing joint control over that jointly controlled
entity, any retained investment is measured at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the jointly controlled entity attributable
to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly
controlled entity. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that jointly controlled entity on the
same basis as would be required if that jointly controlled
entity had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that jointly controlled
entity would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when it loses joint control over
that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

TERHKE A
R BRSO

S HL R IS (SIS S B 4T H A 1 fI i
REHRBEGE) B BRT2REREAZATF
BEGE TREEFEGHEAFEIGREES
BEENERATEERVLHER -AIRBEBERZ
HEZEGIRER TR EEE REATE
BrZR PEEHELRZEHIKE 2 kmsk
BEAN -BE ASERBATEME2EKZ
PRERERNEFAEHNRE 2 2E  mERZEH
MELTR - ERFERHEFUECEEREE -
Et  BETEEME2E RGP ERZ LR ZH
BEZWXEESWEFT O HILERHASE
ERBEzZEZP BREARTH®E &
FEGR AEEENEREEREEETSE
BRERANERYAE -

MEEEREAEE KAEHBIBETIS
AR5 2 BaiG A RASBARRMN LR ZE
HgE oA RAR RASESFAUMBHERD
HER -

il rzzmaraz 2onsm 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn 8 Hil #5 35 2% i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequently accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effective of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised

by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period measured based
on the contract revenue for work performed to date
relative to the total estimated contract revenue. Variations
in contract work and claims are included to the extent that
the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers

for contract works. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract works. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position, as a
liability, as advance receipt from customers. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments.

Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) for
sales, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,

with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, loans receivable, trade and other debtors

and deposits and amount(s) due from a non-controlling
interest/associates/jointly controlled entities) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL or loans and receivables.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified

as available-for-sale investments and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale investments relating to dividends

on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on

a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A31HIFFE
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets— continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors, loans receivable and
amount(s) due from associates/jointly controlled entities/
a non-controlling interest, where the carrying amount

is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to
be impaired, cumulative losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively

to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss

is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
carried at fair value will not be reversed through

profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent

to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity

are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amounts due to associates/jointly controlled entities/
non-controlling interests, other payables and bank
and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Financial instruments — continued
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and

the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event
that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,

the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments

can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is released over the lease term
on a straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model.
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NIITES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Leasing — continued
Leasehold land and building — continued

For those release of prepaid lease payments that relate to
leasehold interest in land and are directly attributable to
the construction of project under development and stock
of properties, the amounts released are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such release
of prepaid lease payments ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other release of prepaid lease payments are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the value of work certified during the year.

Revenue from distribution of LPG is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Development management, project management and
facilities and asset management services income are
recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised
upon the execution of binding sales agreements and
delivery of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to this stage are included
in the current liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Income from port, port logistics and supporting services
are recognised when the respective services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Revenue recognition — continued

The income from contract involving only the use by
customer of the Group’s infrastructure facilities is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
usage granted to the customer.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through

the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets

are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NIITES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on

a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which

the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income

in the consolidated statement of financial position

and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense or capitalised in contracts
in progress, where appropriate, when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated income statement because

it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable

or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there

will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

TERHKE A
BE -
BEEBBENREEVEBRREERAEREE
Rt EEABRFBEME, ZHEBR BT
MEEGEBETEUMAERTERZHER -
i iR AEF 18 & B R R R AR IR A R A ER A =
B 2 ER TR P - shFT A o] 00 R s =
ERRB -EN—EHRZH AHEIREBE
HFUNREREEREMEERBEMSI B2
GREZEMITERERN N TIAZE2g5
wA BT eamRLEEERAE -

BERBERBEREARME QR ZRE RNEE
REARHFAEFRBEZRSEL ZBRRBER
EZHEMBER HEEAREREAEFHERZRZ
BE MZEEEZRAETENAERRRE
BIRIFFEUR - EBZERE LR AR A
MERZBEMELZECHAEEER AL
RABRBEMNATAERBHEBR 2 FEAE
FHIA AT B % 2R AT DA (3 B FE R o

BEERBEELRAEEN S ERE B i
ETERRINN  BEERKRIAEE BHER
Baf<EBEESNEHAIHkE -

EERBREERABNREERBEIBEREE
ZHAMBRZERRE REREHTER
EEMAERER K (RBE)FHE

BERBRBREEZFERMRIZBAEETR
MRS TER TR EEEEERAR
ZEEETAGFEMNSHIHBER -

) gzgmsraa 20nss 131



NIITES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Taxation — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Foreign currencies — continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency

of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal

of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or

a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary

that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving

loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes

a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Foreign currencies — continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed arising on an acquisition
of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2005 are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant

date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period/recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve. When the share options
are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair values of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated

to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which

a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 10ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)

is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect
of fair value adjustments on investment
properties

As described in note 3, for the purpose of
measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted.

Based on the above basis, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the deferred tax consequences
in respect of Formed Land and Land Being Formed
(all as defined in note 19) are assessed based on the
best estimate of the tax consequence upon sale of
the properties directly or sale through entities holding
these properties.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY 4.
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Critical judgment in applying accounting policies (a)
— continued

(@)

Deferred tax liability recognised in respect
of fair value adjustments on investment
properties — continued

For the leasehold land and buildings which were
classified as investment properties, these properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on the leasehold land
and buildings, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of the
leasehold land and buildings measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted.

The relevant amount of potential PRC Land

Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) had been recognised as a

deferred tax liability based on the above judgment.

The amount of PRC LAT of Formed Land and Land (b)
Being Formed as at 31 March 2013 is approximately
HK$208,184,000 (2012: HK$158,136,000), and the

amount of PRC LAT of leasehold land and buildings

of approximately HK$11,092,000 (2012: Nil) has

been recognised and reclassified as held for sale

during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Project under development

Development costs of project under development
include, where appropriate, relevant development
costs and borrowing cost capitalised. Upon
commencement of land leveling process, the
intended purpose of the land development can be
determined and relevant project development costs
will be transferred at the carrying value to stock

of properties for sale if the properties are for sales
purpose during the ordinary course of business or
property, plant and equipment if the properties are
for owned use. Other than that, the properties will be
transferred to investment properties.

’
M

) RESEERQA

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY 4. FEESHHERIBEMGMFZEIERR
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY —&

— continued

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
— continued

(©

Interests in associates

For the recognition of 30.34% interest in Paul Y.
Engineering (BVI) Limited (“PYE BVI”) as detailed

in note 44(b) and of the acquisition of additional
interest of 17.18% in PYE BVI as detailed in note
25, the fair value of PYE BVI was determined based
on the income approach valuation method on

the most recent financial budget approved by its
management. The fair value determination involves

FEREMBRRZETEHE &

(c)

BENTER

Ft # #8Paul Y. Engineering (BVI) Limited
([ PYE BVI|) #930.34%#E 25 (40 B 5£44(b)
B sE) LA B U BEPYE BVIEY17.18%%8 b
R (MM sE25FT 57 i) ™15 - PYE BVIAY
REBEDIRBRAEGEEF ELIREE
EREROMECHBEEET B
NFEES RIEPYE BVIES Z;HXIE%
FHECESEABR -ERBREBE
RAFRARERSBRE TR g ETE) B\J%{
FTHER -

significant assumptions about the estimated amount
of future cash flows to be derived by PYE BVI.

The actual amount of future actual income stream
to be realised may be different as projected if the
conditions change.

TREGMFZEERR

EEABZEERBEABRES HTERFMGEFT

AR Z 2 EMEZRIR (BT EBT — [

HEE EERERREBEHERNRBAELE

RERR) 0T o

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the (a) BEEY

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at P, n

the en,d of the repor)t/ing period, that have a significantyrisk AR EEEEELA E REEARESL

of causing a material adjustme’nt to the carrying amounts BB LED W2 ERERE 02
EHWMA R EH - HAEEERELOBRE

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. B B A 3 T AR A S
BE]  ERBRARKANE  6HZE
BELXSHAFARNE  EREHE
B TRz W KA o

(@) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and

profit of a construction contract according to the
management’s estimation of the total outcome of
the project as well as the percentage of completion
of construction works. Notwithstanding that the
management reviews and revises the estimates of
both contract revenue and costs for the construction
contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue
and costs may be higher or lower than the estimates
and this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

(b)

Deferred tax asset

At 31 March 2013, no deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses of HK$677 million (2012:
HK$903 million) has been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position due

to unpredictability of future profit streams of those
subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future profits
generated by those subsidiaries are more than
expected, a material deferred tax credit would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which the tax losses are utilised.

PRC LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC which has
been included in income tax expense of the Group.
However, the Group has not finalised its LAT returns
with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover the
carrying amount of its assets.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters

is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax expense and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made. As at

31 March 2013, the carrying amount of LAT provision
(included in taxation payable) was approximately
HK$344,252,000 (2012: HK$302,018,000).

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

4. FEEFHERFTBEMTF ZEEZRR

=
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(c)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

(d)

Other debtors

As disclosed in note 32(c), there were advances
and accrued interest in the aggregate sum of
HK$262,865,000 and HK$16,394,000 due from an
independent third party and its related company,
respectively as at 31 March 2012. A subsidiary of
Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (“Louis XIII”, formerly
known as Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited)

had taken legal action in Hong Kong to recover the
amount. However, under the legal proceedings,

a third party claim for damages in a total sum of
approximately RMB780,000,000 for breach of an
alleged oral master agreement (which is denied)
had been lodged against Louis XlIl and two of its
subsidiaries. Taken into consideration of a legal
opinion, Louis XlIl was of the view that Louis XIIl and
two of its subsidiaries would put up a respectable
defence against the alleged claim and that it was
probable that there would not be material adverse
impact on the financial position of the Group.

Management had assessed the uncertainties
surrounding the above dispute together with the
value of the underlying properties under presale
contracts in relation to the above balances and was
of the view that the amounts could be recovered in
full (see note 32(c)).

The relevant subsidiaries were de-consolidated upon
the deemed disposal of Louis Xlll as detailed in note
44(b).
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

EXEmEE

REFEBHER UNBRASEETERH
AFELEEE RRBRELERRRAF
o BIRRFEREAOE - A& E 2 EEBEKK
BEFHR -

AEBZEARBRENGRE LR FER
BR2FEE (BEMEKE2EF) RAR
AREREARGRES (BREETRARSIER
) -

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 39, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and various reserves. RARBESTEHARITEARE ERBT 2 —
By EFEREAKNAREBRBREEARZE
o AEEE@EBRNRKRE  BITHRO RE
THELERRAEE  FEHEEBEREE -

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

6. TURNOVER 6. HEEH
Turnover is analysed as follows: BEHEZOWMOT
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Revenue from construction contracts BEAHKRA 5,945,174 4,246,510
Sale of properties HEME 99,612 363,744
Sale of LPG product HERILAHBRER 240,205 274,905
Income from port related services 78 O AE B AR A UL A 181,307 209,306
Income from usage of EAEERBURA
infrastructure facilities - 9,090
Revenue from development management, #EREIE - IHE BRI REHER
project management and facilities BEBERBKA
and asset management services 5,428 33,605
Property rental and related income MEMRS RABBERA 19,775 12,834
Interest income from loans receivable EWE 2 F B WA 6,089 9,148
6,497,590 5,159,142
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments of the Group is determined based
on information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (the Managing Director of the Company)
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and

its performance is evaluated through organising similar
business units into an operating segment. The Group’s
operating and reportable segments are as follows:

Paul Y. Engineering Building construction, civil

Group engineering, development
management, project
management, facilities and
asset management services
and investment in properties

Ports development - Development of ports facilities
and ports related properties

Ports and logistics —  Operation of ports, LPG and
logistics businesses

Property - Development, sale and
leasing of real estate
properties and Formed
Land

Treasury - Provision of credit services
and securities trading

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of earnings before interest expense and tax
(“EBIT”) and earnings before interest expense, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”).

Inter-segment revenue is charged at market price or,

where no market price is available, at terms determined
and agreed by both parties.

142 ch, PYI Corporation Limited 2013 Annual Report

7 & R
KREBZEEDE DUARAAEEEETLER

KE(RRARAEER) ERABETERSERE
Rz ERBEE -

;ﬁﬂ%ﬂmﬁq:‘ﬁf‘xii%ﬂfiZﬁ B O B

CMERADBESRABAXEHEMARLE
"*BZH‘E.%% AEBZRERAHE DA
mr

+E&+]
A\
i

g

REZEEE — BFRE - LAIR #
REE HEEE R
whkEEERRE MY
XRE

BOERE - B O R Mg O 18R
WME R

BOROR  — BO - R{AmR

RMRES 2 & E

EUES - FHEVMELEFELH
ZER HERHEE

JEE 75 - RH#EERBEREHFEER

ARBBEENH RGN BRI RHENBAMN
(TEBIT)) RARF MBS - BIE - T8 R#H
RI&F ([EBITDA]) Z it EFH B R E DAz &
3 o

o ERE W R TR T E WA IR TT e MR B
ZIEFWR (ML BRI 2EZHE) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&= B Wil 7% ¥k 2% Bl 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A31HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. oHER-&
Segment revenues and results PR EREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and T BIREED MBI AEB NS REE 2D
results by operating segment:
For the year ended 31 March 2013 B ZE2013F3A31ALFE

Pauly. Ports

Engineering Ports and Segment
Group development  logistics ~ Property  Treasury total Eliminations Consolidated

RERXEE  BOYR RORMR LES 1 S Hi R
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TEn TiEn TEn TiEn TEn TR TiEn

TURNOVER EXE
External revenue HiMiE 5,950,602 - 512 119387 6,089 6,497,500 - 6,497,590
Inter-segment revenue pEEhe - - - 4 - 4 (14) -
Total 2% 5,950,602 - 421,512 119,461 6,080 6,497,664 (T4) 6,497,590
EBITDA EBITDA 295,067 - 51,621 229,768 70,995 647,451 (3,652) 643,799
Depreciation and TEREE

amortsation™ (24,470) -y @31 B (685%) - (6853
Segment result - EBIT* HEEE-BBIT 270,597 - 11,873 225,456 70,992 578,918 (3,652) 575,266
Corporate and other expenses™* PEREBRT (86,144)
Finance costs BENK (70,366)
Profit before taxation BEEEH 418,756
Taxation ik (114,230)
Profit for the year eyl 304,526
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. AHBER-E
Segment revenues and results — continued PR BRREEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B ZE201263A31ALLFE
Paul. Ports
Engineering Ports and Segment
Group  development logistics Property  Treasury total  Eliminations  Consolidated
REREEE  B0NYE  EORDE nx ER A8 Faf &a
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn T Tién Thr T Thr Tign Thn
TURNOVER g8
External revenue HoME 4.280,115 9,090 484,211 376,578 9148 5,159,142 - 5169142
Inter-segment revenue PHEkE 24132 - - 208 - 24,340 24,340) -
Total 28 4,304,247 9,090 484,211 376,786 9148 5183482 (24,340) 5,159,142
EBITDA EBITDA 71,354 390,941 102,205 157,028 94,713 816,241 (8,52) 807,718
Depreciation and TERESH™
amortisafion®™ W35 (219 (590 (1,460 B 218 - s
Segment result - EBIT™ AHLE-BIT” 47,777 389,729 56,275 156,562 94,710 744,053 (8,523) 735,530
Corporate and other expenses™ tEREMET (97,258
Finance costs RENK (77,660)
Profit before taxation B#ART 560,612
Taxation fiE (191,508)
Profit for the year ERET 369,017

*

During the year ended 31 March 20183, results of the Paul
Y. Engineering Group segment and the property segment
included gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries before
taxation of approximately HK$164,121,000 (2012: Nil) and
HK$5,900,000 (2012: Nil) (note 44(b)), respectively.

ok

development included the gain on disposal of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2012, segment result of ports

before taxation of approximately HK$389,061,000 (note 44(c)).

amortisation of other intangible assets.

Hokkok

approximately HK$19,470,000 (2012: HK$18,455,000).

Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and

Including acquisition — related costs for potential projects of
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SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

At 31 March 2013

For the year ended 31 March 2013

7. AWER-E
THEERAER

HZE2013F3A31HIFFE

T RIZEENHII A EBEER BB 2N

20133 A31H

Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and Segment
Group development  logistics ~ Property  Treasury total Eliminations Consolidated
RERZEE  BORR BORYR nE E¥ Al H &a
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TiEn THER TiEn ThER TiEn THER TiEn
ASSETS EE
Segment assets THEE 608,108 802,268 3353479 3,176,370 1,580,685 9,520,930 - 9,520,930
Assets classified as held ARERELEYL
for sale (note 17) BE(W#17) 88,383
Unallocated assets AAREE 16,015
Consolidated total assets GREAE 9,625,328
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment liabilties HHAaE - 489,113  1,252216 1,351,353 1,107,726 4,200,408 - 4,200,408
Liabilties associated with ANBARELE
assets classified as held LEEREZER
for sale (note 17) (Hi#17) 25,331
Unallocated liabilities AAEER 27,240
Consolidated total liabilties =L 4,252,979

il rzzmaran 20nsn 149



NI]TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn 8 Hil #5 35 2% i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. AHBER-E
Segment assets and liabilities — continued THEEREE &
At 31 March 2012 "R201253H31H
PaulY. Ports
Engineering Ports and Segment
Group  development logistics Property  Treasury total  Eliminations  Consolidated
REpgEE  BOZE  EORMR nx ER A8 Ea a4
HK$000  HK000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HKSO000  HK$O000
TEn T FiEn TiEn T FiEn i FiEn
ASSETS BE
Segment assets HHEE 3,328,640 79013 3142875 2792697 1945067 11928292  (127,086) 11,801,206
Unallocated assets AOMEE 26,556
Consolidated total assets FRfAE 11,827,762
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment liabilties HH&E 2087589 816378 1209433 1346228 1054803 6,614,426 (96,345) 6,518,081
Unallocated liabities AoNEE 21423
Consolicated total liabilties GRlRR 6,539,504

Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and
liabilities of the operating subsidiaries that are engaged in
different businesses. Accordingly, segment assets exclude
corporate assets which are mainly bank balances and
cash and other receivables, and segment liabilities exclude
corporate liabilities which are mainly other payables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. ABER-E
Other information H i & %
The following is an analysis of the Group’s other TREBREED I TAEEBHMER Z DT
information by operating segment:
For the year ended 31 March 2013 B E2013F3HA31ALFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group development  logistics ~ Property  Treasury Eliminations Consolidated
RERLEE  BORE  AORUHK g Ef He 58
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FhEr TAR TER Thn Th TAx TER
Amounts included in the meastire of A BABEES AT
segment results or segment assets: BELSE:
Additions to non-current assets ERFRDAE
other than financial instruments (SRIAREELNR/
and interests in associates/ ARZHBEERRN)
jointly controlled entities 58,334 263,322 152,284 55,716 - - 529,656
Release of prepaid lease payments REENRENE 480 - 3,580 - - - 4,060
Reversal of impairment loss BEEYTERDAERE
recognised on receivables - - (881) - - - (881)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHLERE A
investments 2,5% - - - - - 2,59
(Loss) gain on dlisposal of property, HENE  EREREZ
plant and equipment (B8) & @ - 1,315 5 - - 1,316
Interest income FEMA 1,065 - 5,214 2,045 42,853 - 51,177
Unallocated interest income RARFEHA 9
51,186
Interests in associates BERAER 342,738 - 1,206,918 - - - 1,549,656
Interests in jointly controlled entities ARZHKEER - - - 91,696 - - 91,696
Share of reslts of associates e YN 61,007 - 23,907 - - - 84,914
Share of results of jointly controlled BIoARARTIRERE
entities 10,410 - - 165 - - 10,575
Gain on fair value changes of BIEEERAZATEE
investments held for trading 2805 - - - - 3,713 - 3713
Amounts regularly provided to the chief ~ TEIR & BEEL RS
operating decision maker but not REEREAGE
included in the measure of segment DEFEHE
results:
Finance costs BERA 10,958 - 34,864 7,186 20,936 (3,578) 70,366
Taxation #E 4,590 - 705 105,978 2,957 - 114,230

i) ReemaRAT
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BIZE20136F3A31 ALLFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. AHBER-E
Other information — continued Hih & —45&
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B ZE201263A31ALLFE
Paul . Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group  development logistics Property Treasury  Eliminations  Consolidated
REREEE  BN%E  BORMA ES E% i e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhL THL T Thr ThL THT T
Amounts included in the measure of SAHEATEERS
segment results or segment assts; BEZEH:
Additions 1o non-current assets ERARHEE
other than financial instruments (SRIAREERR/
and interests in associates/ ARZHREERRN)
jointly controlled entities 52,379 52,314 161,319 8,395 - - 264,407
Release of prepaid lease payments BRBARENE 575 - 3,664 - - - 4,239
Impairment loss recognised EUFERRRESR
on receivables - - 2,221 - 2,649 - 4,870
Gain on disposal of an associate ME-RBENT ha - - 5,565 - - - 5,565
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease MERNAESEREE
payments and related other EHEVEE s
intangible assets - - 506 - - - 505
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETRTERE 2 ME
investments - - - - 365 - 365
Gain on disposal of property, plant HENE ERRREL
and equipment W 22 - 461 - - - 483
Interest income MEMA 1,996 293 4,525 2,252 05,513 - 74579
Unallocated interest income RARFIBHA 294
74878
Interests in associates L E NGy 27,018 - 1,162,244 - - - 1,189,262
Interests in jointly controlled entities AREHERER 12,384 - - 18,930 - - 31,314
Share of results of associates N (552) - 45,981 - - - 45,379
Share of results of jointly controlled BhERAGISEEE
entities 13,056 - - - - - 13,066
Loss on fair value changes of RIEEEREZATER
investments held for trading b o - - - - (22,023) - (22,023)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief ~ THREEEERRA
operating decision maker but not REBRTAGE
included in the measure of segment AEREHE -
results:
Finance costs BENA 13,264 5,263 40,176 5,283 20,868 (7,184) 77,660
Taxation #E 1,527 126,832 (228) 57,756 5,708 - 191,59




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover by
geographical market based on location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

PBER
it EE R

AEEZEBIBUNEE BFAKTE(TE
BEBLRR) -

TRAREFELEER NIRRT IHE D (RE
BEFHRELE  THRER/ RS KR 25
#r

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

Hong Kong e

The PRC other than Hong Kong FE - BRES R
and Macau

Macau B P

Others Hfth

3,353,677 3,354,435

905,694 1,247,930
2,236,253 565,883
2,066 894

6,497,590 5,159,142

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets excluding financial instruments, analysed
by the geographical location of assets:

UTRIRDEERAEREEZMELRE
DTBRREEMIE) ZHH

Non-current
assets excluding
financial instruments
FRBEE
(TEFsmIA)

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FBT

Hong Kong e

The PRC other than Hong Kong R BRES KRR
and Macau

Macau and others SBRPT N H fth

347,589 275,291

4,850,255 4,384,216
- 2,350

5,197,844 4,661,857
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A318ILFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. DEBER-E

FEEFZER

REZEEESBE=-RBEFL (2012: WA)
BEREAEE 2 BEXBRBEI0% BHES
BERMZE X% 54 51,254,000,000% T
(2012 : 783,000,000/ 7t) * 1,165,000,000

Information about major customers

There are three (2012: two) customers from the Paul Y.
Engineering Group segment who individually contributed
more than 10% of total turnover of the Group, having
revenue of approximately HK$1,254 million (2012:

HK$783 million), HK$1,165 million (2012: less than 10%) Bt (2012 1 2 10% ) &758,000,000/8 7T
and HK$758 million (2012: less than 10%), individually (with (2012 : 210%) * B — BB FR2012F &

the other one in 2012 of approximately HK$645 million i #7645,000,000/8 7T (2013 : 2 PA10%)

(2013: less than 10%)).

8. OTHER INCOME

Other income includes:

8. HrA
H WA B

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Interest income from deferred JE WO AE R AE 2 A E U
consideration receivable (note 32(d)) (Hta#32(d)) 27,875 54,451
Other interest income H b A B WA 23,311 20,422
Write-back of overprovision of B O fE IR BB B
deferred consideration payable 9,683 -
Rental income from short term leasing RHEEEMEFSEZHSEBA
of stock of properties 1,252 4,855
Income from an one-off property KE—E—RMEEZREBEE WA
consultancy project - 22,947
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HttzmREE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAT
Change in fair value of investments FHEEBEREZ A TEEY
held for trading 3,713 (22,023)
Exchange gain arising from deferred WU T (B PEE 4 2 B H e
consideration receivable - 25,578
Gain on disposal of an associate ek D N el - 5,565
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - B R s
plant and equipment 1,316 483
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HEEMNEERE R IEEE
payments and related other mpEE B
intangible assets - 505
Gain on disposal of HEAHEERE 2 la
available-for-sale investments 2,596 365
Impairment loss recovered (recognised) — FEURFIBURE (FER) BEEE
on receivables 881 (4,870)
Other net exchange gain EAh[E X 2 ) F 78 18,711 20,085
27,217 25,688
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HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Htt&ERA
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Acquisition-related costs for BAETA B 2 WS AR R A AR
potential projects 19,470 18,455
Others EH - 4,072
19,470 22,527
FINANCE COSTS 11. BERAK
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHBT
Borrowing costs on: BERAE :
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BRAEFRNEHEE ZBITER
within five years 93,972 102,057
Bank borrowings not wholly repayable BERAFAZHEEZRITER
within five years 26,224 19,454
Amounts due to non-controlling interests AR A F N2 HIEE 2 I IEE i
wholly repayable within five years Z RIE - 3,243
Amounts due to non-controlling interests ARAFALEER 2 EMNFERER
not wholly repayable within five years Z, ] 178 215
Imputed interest expense on other HEMEMNERERZHEERN S
payables 2,064 2,310
Amounts due to associates wholly BARAFRNEHEEZENEE AT
repayable within five years ZFE 1,123 -
Other borrowings wholly repayable ARAFRNEHEE 2 EMER
within five years 5,496 5,728
129,057 133,007
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIFERANIREER 2 #EE
contracts in progress (5,582) (2,045)
Amount capitalised in respect of BiERPIBREEAZHE
project under development (2,970) (9,095)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIFERETIIREAR 2 88
construction in progress (BERYE  HBWERE)
(included in property, plant and
equipment) (35,189) (31,569)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIFHHEEREYEER 2 #E
properties under development
for sale (14,950) (12,638)
70,366 77,660
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing BREAZEBEXNAEEBNEERBRZE

costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds
were specifically invested in the project and properties

during the year.

VES

ERA - MENEBEERR

EHRERER R

il rzzmaraz 20nss 191



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&x B Wil 75 ¥k 2% biil 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE - BESTHAEREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (a) EERBEATRASHS
(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments BN ERE (2012 NE)EEZ A
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ZBewmT

seven (2012: eight) directors are as follows:

FAMBERNEEREEMAMN S (2012 :
None of the directors has waived any emoluments &) o
during the year (2012: Nil).

Salaries Retirement

and benefit

other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contribution Total

FHR BIKEA
e At g RiEwL HE 328 &it
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Name of directors ESER TER TET TET TEn TER

(note)
(Hist)
2013
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 25k 360 4,501 668 M4 5,970
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan TR 460 1,200 - 15 1,675
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles BRI 160 - - - 160
Chan Shu Kin** Rt 2 650 - - - 650
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph™* RER 520 - - - 520
Li Chang An*** FER™ 405 - - - 405
Wong Lai Kin Elsa*/** ERR 184 - - - 184
2,739 5,701 668 456 9,564
2012

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2nR 360 4,300 24,850 336 29,846
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan FRi2 267 427 - 5 699
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles FREI% 160 - - - 160
Chan Shu Kin BRI 446 - - - 446
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2EE 362 - - - 362
Li Chang An ZE% 307 - - - 307
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph** [EIER 350 - - - 350
Kwok Shiu Keung, Emest** Y- 189 - - - 189
2,441 4,727 24,850 341 32,359
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments
— continued

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company (which is
equivalent to chief executive) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chairman and Managing Director.

*

Appointed during the year

*k

Retired/resigned during last year

o With effect from 1 April 2012, there is a 30% increase
in each of the directors’ fee to independent non-
executive director (“INED”), the fee to INED who acts
as chairman of each and all of the Board committees
and the fee to INED who acts as member of each
and all of the Board committees.

Remark: With effect from 1 April 2013, there is a 10%
increase in the director’s fee for each director and
the fee for being a member or the chairman of any
Board committee.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included one director (2012: one director) of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out
in note 12(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four
(2012: four) highest paid individuals, who are
employees of the Group, are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

12. EX -BReTBRAEREEME &

() EBERESTRAEME 8
AERAENRARATFERAE EE
RESITTBRAR)  EXAEERZHME
BREESIERABEHRREZME -

* RERNZME
REFRE BT

> H2012F4 1A S/ FRTE
E(BIFNTES]) BEEESES
REESXR BN TESTURE
FEEERLZEEN BB IIINITE
2% EF30% °

fiE . H2013F4A1BE BREECES

BWERETEERZEGKERERZ
Bl E#810% ©

b) EEME

Bl—ZEBEE(2012: —&ZEE)  HEs
BN EXX I E12(@)fTE -

EfBEAEEER 2% (2012 [MA)
RRFABEZEMEMT

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e kEARET 12,342 8,520

Discretionary bonus (note) BB IEAT (fat) 1,839 40,660
Retirement benefit scheme RRAEFFT B

contributions 228 216

14,409 49,396
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A31HIFFE
12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. %

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued b)

(b) Employees’ emoluments — continued
Their emoluments were within the following bands:

CBETRAEREEME &
BEME &
BEMERZAWT

Number of employees

EBEAE

2013 2012

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t — 2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t - 3,500,00078 7T 1 -

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017% 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T 1# 1

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T — 5,000,000/ 7T 1# 1
HK$16,500,001 to HK$17,000,000 16,500,0017% 7T — 17,000,000/ 7T - 1#
HK$23,500,001 to HK$24,000,000 23,500,0015% JT — 24,000,000 7T - 1#
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals and
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Note: The discretionary bonus is an incentive based on
individual performance for the two years ended 31
March 2013. It does not include an aggregate sum
of approximately HK$14 million accrued and payable
(not yet paid) to the Managing Director and members
of senior management in the income statement for the
year ended 31 March 2013 as its allocation has not
been determined as at 31 March 2013.

# The above emoluments represent the remuneration

payable to members of senior management (excluding
directors) classified by band of emoluments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBiANER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation has been arrived B Bil&E A E R
at after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hith @\ & Eg i
(included in distribution and (BERSHEKHEEERA)
selling expenses) 3,675 13,376
Auditor’s remuneration % AT B & 7,899 7,584
Cost of inventories recognised ERRXEZFEKK
as an expense 283,557 516,651
Cost of construction works recognised BRAIH ZBEETIRKA
as an expense 5,767,991 4,115,362
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - W R BT E (T XM iEa)
equipment (note (a) below) 64,858 58,812
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KERNES -
Land and premises T RAEF 22,663 22,485
Plant and machinery IS 4,780 5,641
Release of prepaid lease payments AEBEANEEFIA 4,060 4,239
Staff costs (note (b) below) BT (FXHatDb) 253,612 326,259
and after crediting: WEFA:
Dividend income from investments held ~ #{EE&E®RE 2B KA
for trading 1,264 262
Rental income under operating leases KERHZAEWA
in respect of:
Investment properties, net of HEWE - BBk $§5,237,0007% 7T
outgoings of HK$5,237,000 (2012 : 3,462,000/ 7T)
(2012: HK$3,462,000) 14,538 9,372
Total interest income (included in BRBWA(BEREEBREMBAR)
turnover and other income) 57,275 84,021
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A3NAILEFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION — continued 13. BRBIANER - &
Notes: Bt
2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER FATT
(@)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:  (a) ¥ B RRE 2 INE
Amount provided for the year FERER 69,556 64,997
Less: Amount capitalised in respect B BIEEEANIREAZEE
of contracts in progress (1,338) (2,755)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEERTEBEEAZEE
project under development (7) @)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIERERME B EREA
construction in progress (included ZERIREAR B
in property, plant and equipment) (1,082) (1,027)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEHEEEEMEER 2 HE
properties under development
for sale (2,271) (2,401)
64,858 58,812
(b)  Staff costs: ) BIXZH:
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a)) EEWE (M aF12(a) 9,564 32,359
Other staff costs: HME T -
Salaries and other benefits B & At 78 A 524,094 595,741
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIRAE R ET SRR - RBR 2 M K
net of forfeited contributions of 167,000/ 7t (2012: 83,000/% 7T.)
HK$167,000 (2012: HK$83,000) 18,071 17,681
551,729 645,781
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BIEEEANIREAZEE
contracts in progress (287,908) (308,372)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEERTEBEEREAZEE
project under development (2,101) (156)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIER SR BREERER
construction in progress ZERIREAZ B
(included in property, plant
and equipment) (6,016) (6,659)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEHEEERYMEER 2 Y
properties under development for sale (2,092) (4,335)
253,612 326,259
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
14. TAXATION 14, Bi1E
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FET
The charge comprises: MIEXZ B
Taxation arising in jurisdictions BBENIINEDERRE £ 2 BIE
outside Hong Kong:
Current year REE 27,836 160,213
Overprovision in prior years BAFERBEBRS (1,181) (2,372)
26,655 157,841
Deferred taxation (note 40) EIERLIE (M 7540)
LAT T g E R 49,005 20,352
Others Hi 38,570 13,402
87,575 33,754
Taxation attributable to the Company KRR REWBAREEHIE
and its subsidiaries 114,230 191,595
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the EBNESHDHBEMEEE 2 G ERH R
estimated assessable profit for both years. R R16.5%EE o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BERHRMCERGSHR A ((EMRERE]) KO
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, AR EERMI - H2008F1 10 - K
the tax rate for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% EFNTRWBATZFE E525% o

from 1 January 2008 onwards.

HMelZEREEZHEBENRES BB REE
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the BEBAHESE o
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

14. TAXATION — continued

During the year ended 31 March 2012, taxation arising

in jurisdictions outside Hong Kong included an income
tax charge of approximately HK$126,832,000, which
represented the PRC income tax charged on the gain

on disposal of 50.1% equity interest in Jiangsu YangKou
Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou
Port Co”) (see note 44(c) for details). According to the EIT
Law effective from 1 January 2008 and its Implementation
Regulation, the capital gain derived from equity rights
transfer by a non-resident enterprise, representing the
difference between the transfer price and the cost of
equity rights, was subject to a tax rate of 10%.

According to the requirements of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (R A R HANE £ it
AT E1TIEM) effective from 1 January 1994, and

the Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT (R A R A E T b (E
FRE 1T 5] ZHe 40 8l)) effective from 27 January 1995 as
well, all income from the sale or transfer of land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject
to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%

of the appreciation value as calculated according to the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and its Detailed
Implementation Rules.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
14. TAXATION — continued 14. BIE—4E
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to REF 2 RIEL B4R E U KPR AT
the profit before taxation per the consolidated income Mz EROT
statement as follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Profit before taxation B 5 A 5 A1 418,756 560,612
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREBFEH R E16.5%TE ZFIA
of 16.5% 69,095 92,501
Tax effect of share of results of BB E AR HAEREEE
associates/jointly controlled entities MG (15,756) (9,641)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERBAFETINRRAI 2 MEEE
for tax purpose 29,169 24,466
Tax effect of income not taxable ERBTEBERPRAZ R B E
for tax purpose (31,932) (26,632)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REBRBBEEZHEEE 20,776 19,329
Tax effect of other deductible temporary K IEER AR ER =B MET 2
difference not recognised 29 107
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AT ARRZHBEE CHETE
previously not recognised (5,351) (7,460)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible B 8 5E 3 K #5722 AT F0 8 b5 = 58
temporary difference previously P&y 32
not recognised (191) (94)
Tax effect of different tax rates of REMBERREEEB 2 HBARZ
subsidiaries operating in TRMEZ R E
other jurisdictions 6,262 13,846
Tax effect of capital gain on disposal of HE—BMEBRRRRERTE16.5%18
a subsidiary at applicable tax BRI 2B
rate of 16.5% - (64,199)
Tax on capital gain on disposal HE—BREAR 2 E AR R B
of a subsidiary - 126,832
Effect of recognising LAT in ML EMERFEEZELER
respect of the fair value changes THIREH T E
in investment properties 49,005 20,352
Effect of recognising LAT for HEHEMEFERA T MLET 2 E
stock of properties sold 2,863 9,478
Tax effect of LAT T ER BT E (8,558) (4,922)
Overprovision in prior years BEFERERS (1,181) (2,372)
Taxation charge for the year AFEHER 114,230 191,595
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 40. JEE TR IE S B 540 o

il gzgmaraz 20nss 109



NI]TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&x B Wil 75 ¥k 2% biil 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
15. DISTRIBUTION 15. 2k
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Dividends recognised as distribution RAFEBARD IR RS
during the year:
Final dividend declared for the year HZE2012F3A31AEFE 2
ended 31 March 2012 EEIRAREBRE
- HKO.5 cent (2012: HK1 cent for the — & %0.57%1l (2012 : HZE201143A31H
year ended 31 March 2011) LHFEE AR
per share 22,792 45,291
Special cash dividend declared for the B ZE2012F3A31AEFEZ
year ended 31 March 2012 EERFEANRERE
- HK2 cents per share — &R - 90,583
Interim cash dividend declared for the B ZE2013F3A31BLLFEZ
year ended 31 March 2013 EERFHRERE
— HK1 cent (2012: Nil) per share —F&k1E (2012 : &) 45,774 -
68,566 135,874
Dividends AR B :
Cash Re 65,479 128,865
Scrip dividend AR E 3,087 7,009
68,566 135,874
Dividends proposed in respect NEEBRRE

of current year:

Final dividend proposed for the HZE2013F3A31IAILEE
year ended 31 March 2013 ZERARER B
— HKO0.5 cent (2012: HKO.5 cent) — 80.578 1L (2012 : FH%0.55% 1)
per share 22,887 22,792
The amount of the final cash dividend proposed for the HE2013E3A31H I EERIEREIE ¢ I B &
year ended 31 March 2013 has been calculated by WX E R AL HHIF4,577,360,5720% B 2
reference to the 4,577,360,572 issued shares as at the TG EHE

date of this report.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

16. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BREAXAREBERR
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RAARHEEANBESRERNREFTRNHRIE
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the AT SRS

following data:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Profit for the year attributable to AESRERNRESZT
owners of the Company for & NNSIE X =D 1)
the purposes of basic and FEmM
diluted earnings per share 262,343 334,072
2013 2012
Number Number
of shares of shares
R EE EivE =]
Weighted average number of AEERERREERN
ordinary shares for the 2 E iR ngE T
purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 4,565,885,302 4,541,642,831
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not RNZMEEE TEFREEE NI EEE
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options TEARRNBZERE RAAEZZHEREZITE
because the exercise price of those options was higher BaRARalRkhzFEHHE -

than the average market price of the Company’s shares
for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

17. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 17.

On 8 March 2013, Yichang Port Group Limited (the
“Yichang Port Group”), a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Company which is engaged in port operation, entered into
an agreement with a local government office to transfer
certain properties (the “Resumption Properties”) to the
local government for the development of a composite
project (the “New Premises”), which Yichang Port Group
will receive compensate package including the transfer of
certain construction floor areas of the New Premises within
four years from the date of surrender as compensation.
The major classes of assets and associated liabilities of
the Resumption Properties as at 31 March 2013 were as
follows:

TEARFELEZEE

MN2013F3A8H * AR A HEHBS1%RENEB
NEEZMBRAREESKNEREREETAA
([EEBBER]) Bt FBUSHAZERBE -
BEHEEABEESAEMWRIBIETHE
(T NBEEAEE (TFEM]))
MEEAKEEBEIHMEFREERERZ
HRMNFAESEES TELEERABZHE
FT o M2013F3A31H B MEZTEEE
BRIRABEEERT

HK$’000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment L e 5,165
Investment properties wEYE 26,216
Prepaid lease payments FEfHERE 9,087
Other intangible assets Hihmp & E 47,915
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELNEZEE 88,383
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEAE 25,331
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale HOBARKIELEZEERBZEE 25,331
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - BB RRE
Port LPG Furniture,
infrastructure  logistics and Motor fixturesand  Construction
Plant and Port andrelated distribution vehicles  computer in
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment facilities facilities andvessels  equipment  progress Total
RERBE
BOEER AR BE %E

BT BERRE ADRE  EBRE  D#RR NERME REMRE  ERIR aif
HKB000  HKSO00  HKBO00  HKBOO0  HKSO000  HKSO000  HK§00D  HKS000  HKSO000
TEL TER TER TER ThR TEL TER TER ThR

0ST S
At1 April 2011 HONE4R1A 105,062 202,519 41,663 56,735 513,8%4 129,284 103,757 50,798 1,703,702
Exchange realignment ER% 3,999 333 1627 2187 19,636 4,305 79 2415 55,221
Addltions hE 181 47,056 2,151 218 184 18,981 5817 139,299 213,887
Transfers g 194 - 1632 1,460 - 5414 1,069 (9,769) -
Disposd ue 13 B4 662 - 89 W54 [180%9 IR
At 31 March 2012 R012E3R318 108,081 246,456 46,391 60,600 532,862 163440 93,264 702,743 1943837
Exchange realignment EiAE 1325 113 620 776 6,675 1,696 418 10,208 21886
Addltions hE 999 48443 687 - 2,142 13,232 23497 142,480 231,480
Transfers B 3 - 3,247 6,366 - 2,932 7 (12,590) -
Reclassified as held ENEARE

for sale fnote 17) W& (Hit17) (5,169) - - - - - - - (5,169)
Deemed disposal of RfELENBLE

subsidies 10t 44p) (W) - 79 - - N N I K - B8
Disposd be 85 60%) B (46 09 70 A -2
At 31 March 2013 12013%3A318 102221 9,114 50,634 63,102 541,570 136,797 52,644 842,841 1,798,929
DEPRECIATION b
At1 April 2011 HONE4R1A 18,040 66,932 4,204 2,386 120,300 40822 81,883 - 334,617
Exchange realignment ER% 172 139 19 116 4770 1,053 323 - 7318
Provided for the year FERHE 3,3% 20822 2926 1,814 15,721 13,000 7318 - 64,997
Eliinated on disposd HEB 09 (390 - - B0 R4 {7910 -
At 31 March 2012 R2012E3A31R 21,899 84,503 1375 4,316 140,491 52,464 71614 - 382,662
Exchange realignment Ei#E 314 80 125 74 1,961 537 175 - 3266
Provided for the year AEEHHR 3,722 21,464 2,986 1,747 18,528 13,218 7891 - 69,556
Deemed disposal of RfELENBLE

subsidies 10t 44p) (W) - e - - - 5y 8 - (1686
Eliminated on disposal HERHE - (1,728) - - (%) (671) (3,128 - (5,829
At 31 March 2013 12013%3A318 2593 6,634 10,486 6,137 160,884 42,825 28,104 - 281,005
CGARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 March 2013 120133R318 76,29 2,480 40,148 56,965 380,686 93912 24540 842,841 1017924
At 31 March 2012 R012E3R318 86,182 161953 39,016 56,284 392,371 100976 21650 702,743 1,561,175
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - W RRE — &
— continued M RMEERE (ERIRRN UER
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other EWE - FERMOT
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: ¥ ElEaRiEh ik
E+E(ABEE
Buildings Over the period of the RYE)
relevant leases or fifty MW N & 1 10%
years, whichever is ARy 6%
shorter BAEZKEERE 2% -20%
Plant and machinery 10% BAL BRI R 4% - 10%
Port equipment 6% b2k =9
Port infrastructure and 2% — 20% TE R AR 2.6% - 20%
related facilities @ﬂ&’“ = 8% - 20%
LPG logistics and 4% — 10% B 5% 1 20% - 33"/5%
distribution facilities
Motor vehicles and vessels 2.6% - 20% BFEEE>THOT
Furniture and fixtures 8% — 20%
Computer equipment 20% - 33'/3%
The carrying amounts of buildings are analysed as follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Buildings erected on long-term FERARE T HATEET
leasehold land in the PRC 5,240 5,511
Buildings erected on medium-term FEPHREE T EET
leasehold land in the PRC 71,052 80,671
76,292 86,182
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE

Leasehold land Land

and buildings Formed under
in the PRC land development Total

HEEE

THRETF EFELH# BEPLH &t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET FET

(note a) (note b)

(Ktita) (K1&Eb)

FAIR VALUE AEEE
At 1 April 2011 R2011F4 818 259,736 468,075 - 727,811
Exchange realignment PE 5 P& 10,045 17,893 975 28,913
Transferred from project under BREERTIER

development (note b) (Kt&tb) - - 14,772 14,772
Additions NE 68 - - 68
Increase in fair value recognised in RizalimRkNERZ

the consolidated income statement ANEEEE M 10,648 - 73,032 83,680
At 31 March 2012 12012438310 280,497 485,968 88,779 855,244
Exchange realignment [ 5 FH 4,924 5,917 3,128 13,969
Transferred from project under BRBEERTER

development (note b) (Kt#Fp) - - 28,670 28,670
Transferred from completed BREETIEELENE

properties held for sale 74,259 - - 74,259
Reclassified as held for sale (note 17) & DB ARIELE (H17) (26,216) - - (26,216)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIEHEWB AR

(note 44(b)) (Wi EF44()) (230,100) - - (230,100)
Additions NE 34,371 - 483 34,854
Increase in fair value recognised in REEEWETRNERZ

the consolidated income statement ~ AF{B{E i 53,043 - 137,367 190,410

Increase in fair value on transfer of BROTIRENENES
completed properties held for sale REME 2 RTFEBEEM
to investment properties 34,568 - - 34,568

At 31 March 2013 201353 A31H 225,346 491,885 258,427 975,658
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued

Notes:

a. In prior years, the Group completed the reclamation of
certain area and obtained the certificate of completion of
land reclamation (the “Certificate”) issued by qualified project
engineering and construction manager in respect of certain
land area (the “Formed Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC.
Upon obtaining the Certificate, such Formed Land had been
recognised as land held under operating lease and classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

b. In connection with the reclamation of certain area in Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but not yet
completed, the land leveling process (mainly representing the
sand filling work to achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land
Being Formed”). Upon the commencement of land leveling
process, such Land Being Formed had been recognised
as land being developed and classified and accounted for
as investment properties. The relevant costs, which include
the development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised
and other directly attributable expenses, amounting to
approximately HK$28,670,000 (2012: HK$14,772,000),
have been transferred from project under development to
investment properties during the year.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
the date of transfer, 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out as at those dates by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. In determining the fair value of leasehold
land and buildings and Formed Land, the comparison
method is adopted under which comparison based on
information of recent transacted prices of comparable
property is made. Comparable property of similar size,
character and location are analysed in order to arrive at

a fair comparison of capital values. In determining the fair
value of land under development, the same comparison
method is adopted and valuation has been allowed for
further costs to be expended for the development of the
Land Being Formed into Formed Land. Further costs for
completing the land leveling process as at 31 March 2013
is minimal. During the year, the gain on fair value changes
of Land Being Formed of approximately HK$137,367,000
(2012: HK$73,032,000), resulting from the transfer from
project under development to investment properties and
gain on fair value changes of leasehold land and buildings
of approximately HK$53,043,000 (2012: HK$10,648,000)
have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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19.

BRENE — &

a. RBEFE AEBETHRFEIHEETRE
BHeRBTRE IRETIHEENSHSE
IR TRREFEGBEN 2 ERFAR LN (B
FRIm) EE(ZEE]) - ZEFELH
RERGZEERRAABRBELEHERF 2L
o WHBRARINBIREME -

b. BRREIHEE TEEZABRIREMS @ K
EECERAI W FEIR (ZEHEEAD LU
FTRABES) (PP L))  BERTHK
NER T FRIREE TP LD WE
RAKER T T HDERAKENAKEY
¥ -HERAREERIE BREAEER
A Ko EAth B B FE R B S & 5 4928,670,00008 7T
(2012 : 14,772,000 7T) * ERF A ERE P
BEHBAREME -

REBEREREB - 2013F3H31H K201243 A
SIHZEREMEZ A AFEBERKERHAELASE
BWaEEs BYSEREEMAEMTPHES
EFEBERERARETZHEEFE -REXE
HETHREFROCFEL W AFEER -
FRUNAEEEME AN RBERERBE
LB E HEE HERMISESEZAE
hEMEETON  URERABEERAFL
R -REBTEEPT W ZAFEMEE  EEWH
Al—h&* SHESRETFER HERNK
BB MGHESEE ZE— SRAELES -
R2013F3 A3 1B AN K FE L TEE 2
—SHARBRL - RER BHERPEEHES
BEMENMEL 2 FEP LI AT EEZH K
7 #) 5137,367,0007% 7t (2012 : 73,032,0005%
) MBEELHMEREFIAFEEZHKRED
753,043,000/ 7T (2012 : 10,648,000 JT)
ERERE KR NTER ©



19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&= B Wil 7% ¥k 2% Bl 5

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued 19.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the Formed
Land and Land Being Formed are assessed based on the
best estimate of the tax consequence upon sale of the
properties directly or sale through entities holding these
properties. For those properties which would be subject
to PRC LAT upon disposal, deferred tax on the temporary
difference between the tax base and their carrying
amounts would include PRC LAT in addition to enterprise
income tax.

For the investment properties of the Formed Land, the
Group has to obtain certain appropriate certificates for the
disposal. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company consider that there is no material impediment to
obtain these certificates for the Group.

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The balance as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 mainly relates
to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement
of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying

value to stock of properties for sale or property, plant and
equipment or investment properties, as appropriate.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, additional project
development costs of approximately HK$166,893,000
(2012: HK$52,752,000) are incurred and project under
development with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$28,670,000 (2012: HK$14,772,000) has been
transferred to investment properties.

20.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

RENME — &

FECFEI R FEP LM ZBEERBRR
B REARUERLENEXABBLERAX
EMECERBAEEVNBRR ZKEMR -
HZEANHERGRPE L mIZER 2 YE
RERERFAECHNESERAHITE
T IEER MRS -

HEFRELHREMENS ARBEFREE
TREEFEUNELE -BREUNEFER  AQF
EERRAEENRSZERER L EE KSR

HETIEE

20134 K201263A31H 2 &8 + E H L R
FEIHECERBEAM AKBEEETL
WFBERERAMRE - N FEITEMS
B rAEErER2EHRE  WHABE
BERRARFEEESRESENEFELY
X EEMEREIREDE (WER) -

REBZE2013F3ANB L FE L EEER
Bk 7K #9166,893,0007% 7T (2012 : 52,752,000/
L) ERFREAR - fREEY A28,670,000% T
(2012 : 14,772,000 L) 2 ER P IE B B 8 #
BREVE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

21. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 21. NEFE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Properties under development for sale BRPSEME 481,280 324,353
Completed properties held for sale ExIFEHEME 649,278 763,416
1,130,558 1,087,769
Land Being Formed which is developed for future sale is ERAEBREE2FEFR T R FE
recognised as properties under development for sale in ITRFAEREREREDECETNREETREE
stock of properties upon the commencement of the land L E
leveling process.
M20135F3A31H HIELEWEZEH B
At 31 March 2013, the balance of properties held for sale 5B F E £ #4409,509,000/8 7T (2012 :
included Formed Land of approximately HK$409,509,000 404,460,000/ 7T) - AEBEFERSE TEERE
(2012: HK$404,460,000). The Group has to obtain certain EPHEZEFEL W - BEUNFER AR
appropriate certificates for the disposal of the Formed AESERANEEARDNSZEFERTEEAX
Land. Based on past experience, the directors of the R o
Company consider that there is no material impediment to
obtain these certificates for the Group. M2013F3A31H - MEFEBRBEBRBAFRA
HENTHEBEE T _EAARER 2 2HEY
At 31 March 2013, stock of properties includes an 224,916,0007% 7t (2012 : 208,628,000/ 7T ) °
amount of approximately HK$224,916,000 (2012:
HK$208,628,000) which is expected to be realised after
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.
22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 22. EMNHEENE

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land in the
PRC and Hong Kong held under medium-term and long
leases and are analysed for reporting purposes as follows:

AEBZENEERBERRFELRESRE
PHLRHEHESRE 2T BHMIERE R
BT

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Leasehold land in Hong Kong BEBZHEELH
Medium-term lease FEIEE - 20,262
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong ABAIMIE 2 & T
Long lease RHEEE 2,212 14,083
Medium-term lease FEIEE 351,677 283,281
353,889 318,526
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BN EmRERE
Current assets MEEE 3,307 4,197
Non-current assets JERENE E 350,582 314,329
353,889 318,526
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
23. GOODWILL 23. BHE

HK$’000
FHET

COST A
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 R2011%F4 18 k201243 831H 64,412
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(b)) RIELEHB AR (M it44(b)) (64,412)
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3H31H -

IMPAIRMENT WA
At 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012 201148 1H Kk201243A31H 2,766
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 44(b)) BIEHEH B R (M it44(b) (2,766)
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3A31H -

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 March 2013 R2013F3A31H -
At 31 March 2012 R201293H31H 61,646

As at 31 March 2012, for the purpose of impairment
testing, the carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) representing
the management contracting business of Paul Y.
Engineering Group.

As at 31 March 2012, the recoverable amount of the
above CGU had been determined based on value in use
calculations. The Group prepared cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets approved
by management for the next two years and extrapolated
cash flows for the following five years with a steady
growth rate of 5%. The rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows was 9%. The value in use calculations was
calculated based on the budgeted gross margin, which
was determined using the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

201293 A31H R EAAME mEZE
AENBARRREZEZESEERETEELZ
BIZREENL ([AIZREENL]) ©

M20129F3A31H LA LRIBR &AL 2 af i [al € 58
DRERAEBENEFEMET AEEREE
BEMBERRMEZZTOVBBEE RIS
BE&RE THEBRRAF2ES RS NE
RREYBEER -BARESRZNBELREI% -
CTREBEHNEREZZREATEZENE 5
ZABBEUBARAREREHMIBREZE
HAmETE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24, Htb B EE

Motor
vehicles Club  Premiumon
registration membership  leasehold Rights of ~ Customer Know-  Rent-free
marks in Hong Kong land  operation base how benefits Total
REEZ AELH
RERREE efies BB -7 EFE® RiTRE AR @it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T FiEn T ThT Thr T T Fitn
(note a) (note a) (note b) (note c) (note a (note ) (note )
(Hrita) (Hiita) (Hrtv) (Hiite) (iitd) (Hiite) (i)
CosT A
At 1 Aprl 2011 R2011E4A18 1393 7,062 114,768 43304 2,450 253 19,692 191,204
Disposal/written off HE/HH - - (9,262) - - - - (9,262)
Exchange realignment Ex#z - - 4,284 1,655 93 97 753 6,882
At 31 March 2012 H2012£3831H 1,393 7,062 109,790 44959 2,543 2,632 20,445 188,824
Exchange realignment Ei#z - - 1,003 562 2 2 2% 1744
Reclassified as held for ENARARELE
sale fnote 17) (rzt17) - - (50,643 - - - - (50,643)
Deemed disposal of RENENBAT
subsidiaries (note 44(b)) (Hiztadp) (570) (7,000 - - - - - (7,570
Disposal/written off &/ - - (24,694) - - - (20470) (45,164)
At 31 March 2013 H201353A31H 823 62 35,546 45,521 2,575 2,664 - 87,191
AMORTISATION B
At 1 April 2011 R201154A18 - - 3,787 3,897 1,103 782 9,645 19,214
Provided for the year AEEHR - - 2,01 889 251 260 9,905 13,376
Eliminated on disposal/ HERHE /M
written off - - (266) - - - - (266)
Exchange realignment EiRE - - 165 159 45 33 478 880
At 31 March 2012 #2012£38318 - - 5,757 4,945 1,399 1,075 20,028 38,204
Exchange realignment Effz - - m n 20 16 % 210
Reclassified as held ENPEARELE
for sale (note 17) (hi3#17) - - (2728) - - - - (2,728)
Provided for the year TEEHE - - 1,839 901 255 263 47 3,675
Eliminated on disposal/ HERHE/HH
wiiten off - - (1,380) - - - (20470) (21,850
At 31 March 2013 #R2013E3A31H - - 3,965 5918 1,674 1,304 - 12,511
CARRYING VALUES BaE
At 31 March 2013 R2013E3A31 7 823 62 31,981 39,603 901 1310 - 74,680
At 31 March 2012 H2012£3831H 1,393 7,062 104,033 40,014 1,144 1,567 “r 155,620
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24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS — continued

Notes:

(@) The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of
the opinion that the club membership and motor vehicles
registration marks are worth at least their carrying values.

(b) The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in
Wuhan and Yichang, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group
through the acquisition of the relevant business and the
amount is to be amortised on the same basis as the related
prepaid lease payments over 33 to 70 years.

() Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate
LPG business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the operation licence
period of 50 years.

(d)  Customer base represents the fair value of customers
relationship acquired for LPG business through acquisition of
business. The amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over 10 years.

(e) Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how
for motor vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation is

provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

(U] Rent-free benefits represent the fair value of the benefits in

relation to certain land and property, plant and equipment used

rent-free by Yichang Port Group. The amortisation is provided

on a straight-line basis over the rent-free period of three years.

The rent-free period was expired during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

24, HWBILEE — &
i -

(@) HEEERETRAUEAFH -BEZRR/EM
BELAEECRBEEL2ETSREZDHE
ERHEKEE -

b) ZEBERRAKEELBEBEBHEBUR
FERETREETZEEL W2 EE iR
SRR IANEEFIRERZ BERIBETOF A
B -

(0 KEREAKETPHERETELRLEABRES
ZEMNZATEE BERDUNEREELE
HI505F 8

d EPEMRRBBRBEZMPBREOHA
EBEPREZATEE DAEKEEI0F
S o

e HMRBEARABICAMR AR Z THERIM
RE 2 RTFEE  TYABREEI10F N -

H RENSERXREETEEEBEEL2EERL
THRME EREREBR NG AFE
B DAERZE=ZF2HEHREF -2H8H
ERAFEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Cost of unlisted investments in associates, & 3F & A& Z KA
less impairment (note) MERRVE (K 5E) 845,423 619,520
Share of post-acquisition profits and B R RN R EE
reserves, net of dividends received MBS 704,233 569,742
1,549,656 1,189,262
Note: Bt -
As at 31 March 2013, the unlisted investments include the M2013F3A31H ' LB EREAEERKRET
Group’s 47.52% equity interest in PYE BVI, which is subsequently FREBKZILENRNT PYE BVI 247.52%05# @ %A AlBE
renamed as Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited on 7 June 2013, BNR2013FATH E L AREREERER A A - R

a private company which is engaged in the engineering business.
Following the deemed disposal of Louis Xl on 5 February 2013

(note 44(b)), the Group received 375,826,317 shares (representing
approximately 30.34% interest) in PYE BVI from the distribution in
specie declared by Louis Xlll. The Group acquired a further 17.18%
interest in PYE BVI from other Louis Xl shareholders under the cash
alternative offer to distribution in specie declared by Louis XlIl at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$63,838,000. A gain of
approximately HK$58,162,000 is resulted from the excess in share of
the net fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities attributable to
the additional 17.18% interest acquired over the cost of the additional
interest acquired, and has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement as share of results of associates.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the unlisted investments include the
Group’s 40% equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International Container
Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”). Jiangyin Sunan is a sino-foreign
joint venture enterprise registered in the PRC and operates the
container terminal in Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Apart from the investment in Jiangyin Sunan, as at 31 March 2013
and 2012, the unlisted investments include the Group’s 45% equity
interest in Nantong Port Group Limited (“Nantong Port Group”),
which is a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise registered in the

PRC. Nantong Port Group is principally engaged in providing cargo
loading and off loading, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, ship
anchoring, ship repairing, port machinery, shipping logistics and ship
piloting services in Nantong Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

The financial year end date of Nantong Port Group and Jiangyin
Sunan is 31 December and their latest financial information that

is available to the Group is in respect of their financial year ended

31 December 2012. Accordingly, the Group’s share of results and
interests in these principal associates at 31 March 2013 and 2012 are
determined based on the financial information of the associates for
the year ended and as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 respectively.
No significant transaction or event is noted between the year end
dates of the associates and of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&= B Wil 7% ¥k 2% Bl 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued 25. BE DTS — &
Summarised financial information in respect of Nantong FHBABABNEERIRERENE E2012F
Port Group and Jiangyin Sunan based on financial year 12A31B L BFEE 2B BERDT ¢

ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BIE2012F  HZE20114F

12A31H 12A31H

IEFE IHFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial position: BRSO
Total assets BEE 4,649,482 4,596,218
Total liabilities weE (1,835,178) (1,876,187)
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR S (56,978) (51,774)
2,757,326 2,668,257
Group’s share of net assets of associates 7% B8 {552 A7) & EFE 1,206,888 1,162,182
Post-acquisition results: W R EE -
Turnover = 1,109,862 1,081,569
Profit for the year FERF 138,928 106,328
Other comprehensive income Hit 2wk 34,095 95,402
Group’s share of profits of REE#EHERRZ
associates for the year FERF 23,942 46,425
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued 25. MMENAIEE — &

The financial information in respect of PYE BVI based on

B PYE BVI R E £2013F3A318 IF BT X

the financial year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below: FEZHMATBERNAT
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Financial position: BRI
Total assets BWEE 3,503,265 -
Total liabilities BEE (2,780,005) -
Non-controlling interests FEER R (2,010) -
721,250 -
Group’s share of net assets of associate 7<= E 8 (5 5 & A 7) & & R E 342,738 -
Post-acquisition results: UehE e %48 -
Turnover R 868,902 -
Profit for the year FE&EMN 5,861 -
Other comprehensive income Hih & mEUWES 1,023 -
Group’s share of profits of AEBEEBREARZ
associate for the year FEm M 60,473 -

BRAAEEEMB SRR EREE2013F3A
SIALEMBFEZAHBAMBERMT

The combined summarised financial information in respect
of the Group’s other associates based on financial year
ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&T
Financial position: B ARA
Total assets BEE 2,863 120,828
Total liabilities MeaE (2,784) (42,486)
79 78,342
Group’s share of net assets of associates A% E B (55 < A7 & EFE 30 27,080
Post-acquisition results: G ES
Turnover L 57,011 552,939
Profit (loss) for the year Frm Al (EE) 791 (2,922)
Other comprehensive expense Hit 2 @Y (23) -
Group’s share of profits (losses) of AEEEEBRENRZ
associates for the year FEHEA (FE) 499 (1,046)
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLI

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share
of losses of one (2012: two) of the associates. The
accumulated unrecognised share of losses and the
amount of losses for the year attributable to the Group
(based on unaudited management accounts) are as

25.

DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&= B Wil 7% ¥k 2% Bl 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

BMENRERE — &

AEBERFEREGE (2012 ME)BER
AlZEE AERARFHBEBEERFALEE
BhpEeE (BaAEEREERA) M :

follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FET
Unrecognised share of losses of AERBEBMERRCEEERE
the associates for the year - (122)
Accumulated unrecognised share of RERBEHE AR 2 B8
losses of the associates (54,892) (54,892)

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March
2013 and 2012 are set out in note 54(b).

NEESEEHE QA MR2013%F k201243A
318 2 F B &SR M 5E54(0) ©

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26. HEEFIKERS
ENTITIES
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Cost of unlisted investments in REEEHIEEIE LHIREN A
jointly controlled entities 91,053 25,580
Share of post-acquisition profits and BB R 2w N & E 2 W as
other comprehensive income, MR E AR S
net of dividends received 643 5,734
91,696 31,314
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE

26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 26. HEEFIKERSE — &
ENTITIES — continued S8 B P 2 R i
The summarised financial information in respect of the MBEERBERAINMNT :

Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities which are
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Group’s share of assets and liabilities of 7%= B # (5 H R 12 HI #e 1% 2
jointly controlled entities: EENRBE:
Non-current assets EREEE 125,266 13,293
Current assets MENE E 13,763 201,082
Current liabilities MENEE (6,110) (181,814)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (41,223) (1,247)
Net assets BEFH 91,696 31,314
Group’s share of income and expenses of 7k 5= & # 5 £ 7] 3% i 1 1E 2
jointly controlled entities: WA R
Income recognised in profit or loss RIBE AR Z W= 700,895 382,318
Expense recognised in profit or loss RBRAER 2 FZ (690,320) (369,262)
10,575 13,056
Particulars of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entities RE B EHFE G B R2013F 20124
at 31 March 2013 and 2012 are set out in note 54(c). SABTA ZFFBH IR M FE54(c) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 27. AIEERE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHIT
Listed equity securities in ETRAE
Hong Kong G 265,370 -
Overseas EZIN 82 75
265,452 75
Overseas unlisted equity securities FHNE E TR E S 402,354 363,726
667,806 363,801
Represented by: R -
Non-current IET B 667,724 363,726
Current T ED 82 75
667,806 363,801
Market value of listed securities EEEME 265,452 75
Subsequent to the deemed disposal of Louis Xl (see note RBRIELER S+ = (RWE44()) % - A&EH
44(b)), the Group further disposed of 0.62% equity interest - HE0.62%E FH + = - R20135F3A
in Louis Xlll. As at 31 March 2013, the investment in Hong 31H REB FTRAEF 2K B 159.98%
Kong listed equity securities represents 9.98% equity S+ =Pk 494265,370,0000% 7T (2012 : &)
interest in Louis Xl of approximately HK$265,370,000
(2012: Nil). M201343H318 RBHMELTREAZFFB
EREBOREBERRIBERZ2FABAF
As at 31 March 2013, the investments in overseas unlisted 2 9.9%0% ¥ - %) &401,378,000/% jT (2012 :
equity securities include 9.9% equity interest in Yangkou 362,762,000/ 7T) °
Port Co, which is engaged in the business of development
of port and related infrastructures of approximately AN IE £ T AR AN B F 20134 K201243 A31
HK$401,378,000 (2012: HK$362,762,000). B2 EURERTER 2 ARRRE (WE)
e TIRAAATEBZEEGEHEAK
The investments in overseas unlisted equity securities KA EERBTEASEME

as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 were measured at cost,
less impairment if any, at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

28. LOANS RECEIVABLE

28. EWER

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
The amounts, net of allowance, BRFRE (R EE) BIRA TR R E
bear interest at the following rates:
2% over Hong Kong Best Lending Rate  Br&ESREERN X ([(BrxBREERE])

(“HKBLR") (note a) 2 (Hizta) - 68,468
5% over HKBLR (note b) BrEEREENEMSE (Fib) 44,000 -
6% over HKBLR (note c) B EREERENCE (K itc) 44,000 -
10% per annum E%'JZ‘ZWE - 8,148
Zero-coupon, convertible notes (note d) AR E R (M itd) 18,425 16,020
HKBLR 75 EE%?F%?‘HJ x - 10,000
Total amount HIB4E %E 106,425 102,636
Less: Amount due within one year or B R —FE AR E KBS

on demand shown under 7,%//@5%??2?
current assets (106,425) (86,616)
Amount due after one year —FRIB\z - 16,020
Analysed as: DR
Secured [z 44,000 10,000
Unsecured 43K 1 62,425 92,636
106,425 102,636

Included in the carrying amount of loans receivable as

at 31 March 2013 was accumulated impairment loss

of HK$19,813,000 (2012: HK$19,813,000) in respect

of the balance, which was past due at the end of the
reporting period and the relevant debtors were in financial
difficulties. Other than the above, no significant loans
receivable balance has been past due at the end of the
reporting period for which impairment loss has not been
recognised. No recognition of impairment loss for the
balance not yet past due at the end of the reporting period
was considered necessary, since there has been no past
default history in respect of those receivables.
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28. LOA

Notes:

(@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&= B Wil 7% ¥k 2% Bl 5

NS RECEIVABLE — continued

As at 31 March 2012, the amount of unsecured loan receivable (a)
of HK$68,468,000 bore variable interest rate at 2% over

HKBLR (i.e. 7%) per annum and was repaid during the current

year.

The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$44,000,000
(2012: Nil) bears variable interest rate at 5% over HKBLR (i.e.
10%) per annum and is repayable within one year.

The amount of secured loan receivable of HK$44,000,000
(2012: Nil) bears variable interest rate at 6% over HKBLR (i.e.
11%) per annum and is repayable within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group subscribed
for zero-coupon convertible notes with an aggregate face
value of HK$15,000,000 issued by EPI (Holdings) Limited,
an independent third party. The convertible notes are to be
redeemed at 130% of principal outstanding upon maturity in
September 2013. The amount included in loans receivable
represents the debt element of the convertible notes and is
determined using an effective interest rate of 15.03% per
annum at initial recognition. The fair values of the embedded
conversion option of the convertible notes as at 31 March
2013 and 2012 were insignificant.

’
M

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

28. EWER —#
BfaE

20129 3A31H %% % 468,468,000/ 7T 2
EFFRBERAE TREREEFR X M2E (A
TE)FE WERAFEEEE -

# & %8 /344,000,000 7T (2012 : ) 2 & 3
FEREFAATHERBEFEMSE (BI10E)
ZEMEGFE  WAR—FNEE -

% % % £44,000,0007 7T (2012 © ) 27 £ K 3
EREFUBTRESEENRMEE (H112)
ZEMERHE  WER—EREE -

NEZE2012F3A31BILFE A5 BEREH
BYFE=ARBEE(ZR) BRAAMET
4 B8R E 415,000,000 T2 T B A R ZE -
A ¥R = 4 5 2013479 A Bl B B 12 R 17 {8 AT
BERERASEZ130%EE - st AEBRERZ
EHSEAVARZRZEBESY LRI F
AR E FA15.03% 2 AR FF &R EE - o[ HRR
4 7 B R AR 20134 K201243A31H
ZAFEERTRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 29. BEUWEE N RIRIE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Unsecured other receivables, interest-free  # # 30 H fh fE I 7018 - % 2 19,102 35,819
As at 31 March 2013, the balance is repayable on M2013F3A31H  ZAEBRBENRERKEE - ©
demand. As at 31 March 2012, the balance was 2012F3A31H » ZAEMANRERFEER - EE
repayable on demand except an amount of approximately hEE S ML 429,084,000/ T 2 {= B Hi 590
HK$29,984,000 had credit period of 90 days and was HemMMBEPRTERUBEZAH27EERR
trade in nature. The aged analysis presented based on DMET
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Within 90 days 90H W - 436
More than 90 days and within 180 days #8908 W 180H A - 145
More than 180 days #BiR180H - 29,4083
Total @ - 29,984
As at 31 March 2012, the above balances with aged over 2012563 A31H « BRECHBIBO0R v Fill #5885
90 days were past due but not impaired. The directors EiRAE ﬂi BE - ARBEERR ZEEA
of the Company considered that there had not been a RIzEEH % WEEAESL BILHTETR
significant change in credit quality of the associates and 48 MR B ZFEER TULE o
there was no recent history of default. Therefore, the
amounts were considered recoverable. 30. EWHBEEHME FEEBRERE

30.

AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/A
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

As at 31 March 2013, the amount(s) due from jointly
controlled entities/a non-controlling interest are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. As at 31 March
2012, the amount(s) due from jointly controlled entities/a
non-controlling interest were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand, except for the amounts due from
jointly controlled entities of approximately HK$52,918,000
which had credit period of 90 days, were trade in nature
and aged within 90 days based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR 31. EW(EM EBEFEHNIERE
CONTRACT WORKS
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHBT
Contracts in progress at the end of NIRE AR 2 ERENIR
the reporting period:
Contract costs incurred to date BREXHIZENIEER - 41,127,376
Recognised profits less recognised losses 4% 7 32 i F Jak 48 7 52 85 18 - 1,122,628
- 42,250,004
Less: Progress billings AR - (42,589,846)
- (339,842
Represented by: (Ao
Amounts due from customers for EWEPFPE&HIERIA
contract works - 376,446
Amounts due to customers for EREPAHTIERIA
contract works - (716,288)
- (339,842
32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 2. EZRHMERER FTE&RBEMNRE
AND PREPAYMENTS
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade debtors (note a) FEWBR SR (B 7Fa) 60,185 799,658
Advance payment for ports and RPBRABORYERE
properties construction works in PRC TRRZBK 165,561 89,804
Retentions held by customers for EHNIREPFAZ
contract works (note b) RE S (HiEb) - 478,541
Interest-bearing advance (note ¢) SHEBR(Hite) - 279,259
Advance payment for contract works BHTRZBHN - 291,741
Consideration receivable for disposal HEFOBQRZ
of Yangkou Port Co (note d) JEWRAB (Hfatd) - 743,284
Deferred consideration receivables (note e) & WUE it (K (B (Kfite) - 7,000
Others (note f) Hofth, (ff5Ef) 175,109 628,016
Total amount SRIB4REE 400,855 3,317,303
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : B —F R Z|H1 5 &
under current assets BN A E 2 FUA (400,855) (2,688,836)
Amount due after one year —FiR B E 2B - 628,467
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 2. ESREMERER FTeRESRE
AND PREPAYMENTS — continued — &
The balance of trade and other debtors, deposits and ESREMBKER AT RBEMNRELHT
prepayments is net of allowance for doubtful debts and MR REEE mESHOT
the movements of allowance for doubtful debts is as
follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FAAE R 39,963 35,071
Amounts written off as uncollectible N Be W [ M 85 2 5K I8 (2,937) -
Amounts recovered during the year F AU E 2 FRIE (3,288) -
Provided for during the year FREE A 2,407 4,870
Disposal of subsidiaries LB A A (2,071) -
Exchange realignment M 5, 8 B 15 22
Balance at end of the year FRES 34,089 39,963
Included in the carrying amount of above receivables 201343 A31 Ei FERREBEERER
as at 31 March 2013 was accumulated impairment loss ARG EHEARAR R REEE
of HK$34,089,000 (2012: HK$39,963,000) in respect 34,089,000/ T (2012 © 39,963,000/ L) 1M
of balances which were past due at the end of the A & 74 A T B B A 2 o
reporting period and the relevant debtors were in financial
difficulties.
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32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes:

(@) The Group’s credit terms for customers of ports and logistics
segment normally range from 30 days to 90 days. Rental
income for property business is receivable according to the
agreements and the credit terms granted by the Group to
other debtors normally range from 30 days to 90 days. As at
31 March 2012, credit terms for the Paul Y. Engineering Group
segment were negotiated at terms determined and agreed
with its customers. The credit terms were ranging from 60
days to 90 days.

Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
are trade debtors of approximately HK$60,185,000 (2012:
HK$799,658,000). The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. Their aged analysis, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

2. EFREMBUERER ATERBENKE

— &
et -

(@) AEEBORMAIBZREFEEH—MKHI0
FOORTE -MEXEB A RA B L RE
BMEWT MALEGREMERERBELZE
EH— MR AB0E90H T - 201243A31H -
REZEEES B2 EGEHNRATFEER
WEZIERFE TR L o 2 B H— A H60E90H

T

BHREMBKRIER T2 RBANREADTA
#760,185,0007% 7t (2012 : 799,658,000/ 7T) 2
HHRUER AEBLTEREZSERTELE
MERG - NBERARAEE HRREEE
% ERAMEDRTHEFTZREDMZS0T

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Within 90 days 90H A 44,265 692,861
More than 90 days and HB#EI0H B R180H A

within 180 days 11,737 25,550

More than 180 days HBiB180H 4,183 81,247

60,185 799,658

As at 31 March 2013, included in the Group’s trade debtor
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$27,208,000 (2012: HK$94,426,000) which were past
due at the end of the reporting period for which impairment
loss has not been recognised. Trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have no history of defaulting on
repayments.

M2013F3A31H A @M B 5 EKRENE
#% B 1E B IR E 527,208,000 7T (2012 ¢
94,426,000/ 7T) 2 FEW BRI - AR ER RS
HEANCIBEYEERNERSE - L&D
HAEREZEHERBIERL EaMHEMN 2T
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes: — continued
(@ - continued

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not

32.

EZREMBERER FTERAMKE

— &

fitet - —#&

(@)

— &

CEBMERTFREZE S BERRR KR

impaired
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Overdue: BE
Within 90 days 90H K 20,912 19,230
More than 90 days and #B3BI0A WM 180H A
within 180 days 4,922 27,980
More than 180 days B3iA180H 1,374 47,216
27,208 94,426

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been
a significant change in credit quality of these trade debtors and
there is no recent history of default and therefore the amounts
are considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

(b) At 31 March 2012, an amount of approximately
HK$196,254,000 was expected to be recovered or settled in
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

(c) Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2012 was an aggregate sum of
approximately HK$262,865,000 which mainly represented
amounts recoverable (together with interest thereon) from
an independent third party which was a property developer,
in respect of amounts paid by the Group in previous years
for financing a property development project in Beijing, the
PRC (the “Project”). The principal amount was approximately
HK$184,733,000 and recoverable with interest calculated
at the benchmark lending interest rate as announced by the
People’s Bank of China (“PBC”) plus 8% per annum.

Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments as at 31 March 2012 was also an aggregate
sum of approximately HK$16,394,000 which represented an
advance (together with interest thereon) made to a related
company of the above independent third party in Hong Kong
in previous years. The principal amount of HK$10,000,000
carried interest at the best lending rate plus 8% per annum
and was due on 25 February 2006.
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32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes: — continued

(©)

— continued

To protect the Group’s interest, the Group had entered into
presale contracts with the property developer for certain
property units in this Project. The Group was in the course
of negotiation with an asset management company in the
PRC, which had certain interests in the above Project,

for the purpose of realising the properties under these
presale contracts held for full recovery of the amounts of
HK$262,865,000 and HK$16,394,000 outstanding as

at 31 March 2012. On the basis that the fair value of the
properties under presale contracts (according to a valuation
report issued by an independent property valuer) was higher
than the advances and accrued interest, the directors were
of the view that the amounts would be recovered in full and
as such no impairment loss on these had been recognised.
The estimated portion of such amounts which was expected
to be recovered after twelve months from 31 March 2012,
amounting to approximately HK$184,733,000, had been
classified as a non-current asset.

A writ of summons was served on 28 July 2011 upon Louis
Xl and two of its subsidiaries claiming for, amongst others,
damages in a sum of approximately RMB780 million related
to the Project. It was stated in the writ of summons that Louis
Xlll and two of its subsidiaries were alleged to be in breach of
certain terms contained in an alleged oral master agreement
(which was denied). Taken into consideration of a legal
opinion, Louis Xl was of the view that Louis Xlll and two of its
subsidiaries would put up a respectable defence against the
alleged claim and that it was probable that there would not be
material adverse impact on the financial position of the Group.

The amount was derecognised upon the deemed disposal of
Louis Xlll during the current year as detailed in note 44(b).

32.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

ESRAEMERER -TE&RESHE

o
— &

ftet - —4&

(©

— B

AREAEBRANN  AEECHRZBEETY
EBENEZYVEREHETCHEEAR A5 H
FH—WREMEEFHEESE TRSZFEE
ETEARETAN BHMEBEEETEETER
SHEEARZYMEEMNER  #EH2HEkER
20124 3A31H 2 K B & £ 51262,865,000/8 T
16,394,000 Tt - ERCHETHREARAZY
EBUAFEEREBLDEGEMEL
HERS) SRERKEFHE  EERAEZS
SBET2HKE - KA E I ERBEEE -
FE T # R 201293 A31H T+ — @ A % W E
ZZESBEE DX A184,733,000 T 0 I E W
DERERBEE -

— D EHASHRR2011ETA28E X EK FH+ =
REMEMNBAR  ZEBRHEHARETS
BLBAZEE ZENSHKEBEZ =R
HEMBARER —HAEE 2 DEB R
AHELEER(ERETE) BEREEER®%E
BE+T=BKST=REREHBE QT L%
iR B ROBEERE  MERAETGYHAR
SEZHBERRERERTFRIZE -

AHSEORAFRRFELHERS TR E
HEWR - FHIE R EE44(b) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes: — continued

(d) Included in other debtors was an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB602,800,000 as at 31 March 2012
(equivalent to approximately HK$743,284,000), which
represented remaining balance of the consideration receivable
from disposal of 50.1% equity interest in Yangkou Port
Co during the year ended 31 March 2012 amounting to
approximately RMB753,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$903,482,000 as at 26 May 2011) (note 44(c)) to be satisfied
by instalments, remaining instalments being RMB301,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$371,642,000) and
RMB301,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$371,642,000) to be paid on or before 31 December 2012
and 2013, respectively. As at 31 March 2012, the consideration
receivable in the amount of approximately HK$371,642,000
due after one year was shown under non-current assets and
approximately HK$371,642,000 due within one year was
shown under current assets. The deferred consideration
receivable bore interest equivalent to the benchmark lending
rate announced by the PBC at 6.65% per annum as at
31 March 2012 and was secured by a charge on the 50.1%
sale interest in Yangkou Port Co. During the year ended
31 March 2013, all the remaining consideration receivable is
settled and interest income of approximately HK$27,875,000
(2012: HK$54,451,000) is recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments as at 31 March 2012 was another amount of
approximately HK$7,000,000 which represented a deferred
consideration receivable from a third party in relation to
disposal of two subsidiaries, namely Unicon Concrete Products
(HK) Limited and Hamker Concrete Products Limited, during
the year ended 31 March 2006. The consideration for the
disposal was HK$19,000,000 which shall be settled in cash
by the purchaser on or before October 2009. Accumulated
settlement of HK$12,000,000 had been made as at 31 March
2012. The fair value of the deferred consideration at date of
initial recognition was determined based on the estimated
future cash flows discounted at 3% per annum. The amount
was unsecured and interest-free. The amount of deferred
consideration receivable was past due but not impaired as at
31 March 2012. The directors of the Company considered the
amount would be recoverable because the purchaser was of
good financial position.
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ESRAEMERRNR -TERBAENNE

_Zm
Mt — &

(d) M2012F3A31H  EMEKRERBEEHLY
A R 602,800,000t (18 & # 49743,284,000
BIL) 2 & HIEREE201293A31H L
FEHEFOBRAR01%KEZ ERRED
A R #753,500,0007T (A2011F5H8268 18
& 1 %9903,482,000% 7T) (i 5£44(c)) 2 #458 -
EHEREBSHKRER B THoHRBEARE
301,400,0007C (18 & K #1371,642,0007 L) &
A R #301,400,0007 (18 & 7 47371,642,0007%

7)) ¥ 5 B A20124F K 2013412 A31 B 8 Z Al
S f o B20129F3A31H - B EPR—F&
F| B2 #49371,642,0008 TR B AETRBEE -
MR —F A EIH 2 49371,642,0008 LB D5 B
REBEE ZERRECREBEPEARRT
TR RS 2 EREEF KRG B (R2012F3 A
31EAFEN26.65%)  YAEMEOB QT Z
50.1% & A - Bl Z2013F3A318 It
FE -FMEBRTREEREHEEE FMBEKRA
#727,875,0005% 7T (2012 : 54,451,000/ 7T) ©
REBE R

(e) M201243A31H - EZREMEBUWER 7]
© REMFRIEAXBIE—%£AH#7,000,0007%
TLEE - TR E E2006F3831H IFEE R
EMRXMBAT (DR ZABIERRTIRR (B
B)ERARAEREMRRELEFERAE) EM
—E=ZFRBZEERE - HEFTBEZREA
19,000,000/ 7T * 78 M B /5 M 20099104 sk 2
AT AR & 4505 - 25T 7 512,000,000/ 7T &
EA2012¢3)§31 B&E - EERERIIRERE

ATFEEDAEFARBESRELTFIRT
fﬁ%%io%ﬁﬂlﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁa% 20124
SASTAZENREERECBEE M ARRKE - A
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS 2. EZRHMEVWERR FTE&REMKE

AND PREPAYMENTS — continued — &

Notes: — continued Hfat - —4&

6] Included in trade and others debtors, deposits and 0] B REMEKIES I RENREF BE
prepayments is an amount of HK$50,000,000 (2012: — %50,000,000/% 7T (2012 : 50,000,000 7T )
HK$50,000,000) which represents a refundable earnest money e ERNGE—RBUE-EFHEZ—Z7R
made to an independent third party for undertaking a potential BHESUAP —BEEMEBERTE - K
property redevelopment project. In the opinion of directors of ARAEERAE BESRRELERKBEIED -
the Company, the earnest money is refundable upon request, WD ERRBEE -
therefore, it is classified under current asset.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 33. BFEEERE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Listed equity securities, ETRAFES -
at quoted bid price REARE
in Hong Kong BB 58,361 54,647
in overseas RSB 5,864 5,792
64,225 60,439
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM . EEABRTER  EHRITERRRT

BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure general banking facilities granted to

the Group. Deposits amounting to HK$646,520,000
(2012: HK$732,226,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities with maturity within one year
from the end of the reporting period and are therefore
classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits
included approximately RMB516,162,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$644,397,000) (2012: RMB575,064,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$709,080,000)) deposited
in Hong Kong, which were pledged to secure banking
facilities denominated in Hong Kong dollar and available in
Hong Kong.

EEREE

EERBRTEREAERETAEE Y — KR
TEEMmMERTIRTZER - A8646,520,000
77T (2012 : 732,226,000/ 7T) 2 7 X B F &
A EAERBREHEER—FANEEZ K
HITEE2EMR AmMHEIARBDEE - B K
WETERREAEHHARKES16,162,0007T
(18 & A 49644,397,000/8 7T) (2012 : AR #E
575,064,0007T (& 7 #7709,080,0007% 1)) 17
BEREBZRE BERBEDBENSITE
WA N EBBAZBITRE ZHF -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A31HIFFE
34. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM 4. BEEFRITEN EHRITERRRET
BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND HERBRE — &

CASH — continued BEREAERRESA SR EA 2SR

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits THERM S EF01E £3.25F (2012 : 0.01F
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed Z3.3E) 2 Bl E R E o $R17 4 17 T % 5 F X
interest rates ranging from 0.1% to 3.25% (2012: 0.01% BEFTE1.49E (2012 TE1.31E) °

to 3.3%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing
market interest rates ranging from nil to 1.49% (2012: nil
to 1.31%) per annum.

35. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND 35. ESRHMEMNKRARETRX

ACCRUED EXPENSES B 5 A A BB R A A B A 9 5 B
The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors Wz DT :
and accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Trade creditors aged, analysed based REZAMOT2E I ENER
on invoice date: 2 BRHER
Within 90 days 90H K 95,805 551,136
More than 90 days and within 180 days #8908 I 1808 1,497 957
More than 180 days HiE180H 28,221 51,105
125,523 603,198
Retentions held by the Group for AEBBEHNIRFEEFZ
contract works (note a) REZ (Kfata) - 343,882
Construction costs payable and EN REEHFOBARZ
accrual to Yangkou Port Co B 410,973 405,906
Other construction costs payables Eh TREEMNZIE 122,712 69,911
Advance receipt from customers IWELE P B3R 7,672 337,629
Other payables for staff retirement and BOEBBTRAREMBERZ
other benefits of port business (note b) H th FESTBR 3R (K 2b) 61,302 64,406
Other accruals E BT 13,075 74,057
Other payables H e ER AR 186,352 409,686
Total amount FRIE4REE 927,609 2,308,675
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : A —F R E B 5| AR 8
under current liabilities BEZHIA (864,736) (2,249,521)
Amount due after one year —FREIH 2 508 62,873 59,154
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TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES — continued

Notes:

(@) At 31 March 2012, an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$83,481,000 was to be paid or settled after more than
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

(b) At 31 March 2013, based on agreed payment terms, an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$40,267,000 (2012:
HK$46,598,000) is to be paid after more than twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and is determined using
an effective interest rate of 4.56% (2012: 4.56%) per annum.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, repayable

on demand and in non-financing nature, except for

an amount due to an associate of approximately
HK$37,453,000 (2012: Nil) bears interest at 7.8% per
annum and is repayable within one year, and an amount of
approximately HK$14,424,000 (2012: Nil) bears interest at
benchmark floating lending rate as announced by the PBC
or relevant borrowing rate, whichever is higher, plus 8%
per annum (i.e. 15.2%) and is repayable within one year.
As at 31 March 2012, an amount due to an associate

of approximately HK$82,390,000 (2013: Nil) which
represented retentions held by the Group for contract
works of which approximately HK$16,478,000 (2013: Nil)
was paid or settled after more than twelve months from
the end of the reporting period.

AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

35.

36.

37.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

EZREMENRRRETRAX — @
ftet -

(@)  M201243H31H * #)83,481,0008 T X R &
PremBat —EAREELEE

(o)  M2013F3A31H  REMTE ZNHRIER - &+
#940,267,0007 7T (2012 : 46,598,000/ 7T) 2
REFRRERATHEEBBET ARG
WZ B B F F|%4.56% (2012 : 4.56%) EE °

FEf B & D R FKIR

ZEFBLERF 228 EARERBEMR
SERE MY - HE— 28 437,453,000/ 7T (2012 :
E) N —BBE QAR RBRFENERTSER
AR —FRNEE AR —%F414,424,000% 7T
(2012 : ) v REEZEFPRARBITIAM 2 E
EZHEFFERAUAEEFN X (RS E A
X)) MBE 2 FHFEEF B (AM5.2E) KR —F A
818 - M20124E3A31H - — £ 482,390,000
PEIT (2013 &) 2 JES — B & A B 3R IE IR
AEBRENIRABEZRAS  EF  H
16,478,000/ T (2013 : ) N B @R E P =4
BER+ZER®BI NSRS -

FE& A5 $L [B] 2 4B 5K R

ZERARERR RO RNEREEN -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

38. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

38. EMFEREDR IR

INTERESTS
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Fixed-rate interest at 1% per FHEIEZ
annum (note (a)) TE M (B3t (=) 17,478 18,003
Interest-free (note (b)) % B (Mt p) 17,328 22,724
Total amount FRIE4REE 34,806 40,727
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : —F R B HIERB & E
under current liabilities 2 FIE (16,854) (7,583)
Amount due after one year R—F1EEIE 2 KB 17,952 33,144

Notes:

(@  The amounts are unsecured, in which approximately
HK$2,497,000 (2012: HK$740,000) is due within one year and
approximately HK$14,981,000 (2012: HK$17,263,000) is due
after twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

(b)  The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and in
non-financing nature except for the amounts of approximately
HK$17,328,000 (2012: HK$22,663,000), in which
HK$14,357,000 (2012: HK$6,782,000) is due within one year
and HK$2,971,000 (2012: HK$15,881,000) is due after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
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ZEREREER - B P K2,497,0008 T
(2012 : 740,000 70) W —F A E H - 1 4
14,981,0007% 7t (2012 : 17,263,000 7T) 2 &
BARRERTEEE T —@EBEHE -

ZEREAEERA REKEERIERENE
g — %5 A 417,328,000 78 (2012 ¢
22,663,000 L) 2N EBR I - B F -
14,357,000/ 7T (2012 : 6,782,000/ 7T ) 7> — 4
MW EH - 2,971,000 T (2012 : 15,881,000
BI) 2R BN RERATHEE T ZEAZIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
39. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 39. MITRHEMMER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET
Bank and other borrowings comprise: HRIT R EMERBE
Bank loans RITEX 2,301,813 2,388,749
Other loans HMER 183,420 246,255
2,485,233 2,635,004
Analysed as: DA
Secured HHEHE 1,386,457 1,748,565
Unsecured mEA 1,098,776 886,439
2,485,233 2,635,004
The bank and other borrowings are SRIT R H A RREE AN T -

repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand —F N IREAN 1,720,531 1,714,567
More than one year, but not iR —F  BETEmE

exceeding two years 351,911 430,210
More than two years, but not HBME  BENEAF

exceeding five years 291,692 286,772
More than five years BiRAF 121,099 203,455

2,485,233 2,635,004
Less: Amount due within one year oron & : —F RSB EIEREBEE
demand shown under

current liabilities (1,720,531) (1,714,567)
Amount due after one year —F &R 2 FE 764,702 920,437
The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate b #8R 17 18 3B 1E #9207,865,000/% 7 (2012
borrowings of approximately HK$207,865,000 (2012: 117,139,000 7T) 2 E BB - AR —FANE
HK$117,139,000) which are repayable within one year B RN T5EZE6.9F (2012 : 3.5FE8.9F)
and are carrying interest ranging from 5% to 6.9% (2012: ZEMEF S -

3.5% to 8.9%) per annum.

HHRITERAFSFN LR - R EH21E
The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest £917[E (2012 : 1.3EXE9.17E) 75 -
ranging from 2.1% t0 9.17% (2012: 1.3% to 9.17%) per
annum.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

39. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS — continued 39. MITRHMENR — &
The above other loans include fixed-rate borrowings of bt 88 1T 8 KB 3E £921,223,0007% 7T (2012 ¢
approximately HK$21,223,000 (2012: HK$67,817,000) 67,817,000 L) 2 E BfEH AR —FNE
which are repayable within one year and are carrying B WEN F8AEE10.5E (2012 : 6.59E =
interest ranging from 8.1% to 10.5% (2012: 6.59% 10.5/2) 2 FF EE B - 5162,197,000/% T
to 10.5%) per annum and HK$162,197,000 (2012: (2012 : 124,438,000/ 7T) ERX —FBETEM
HK$124,438,000) which are repayable more than one FERNEERE WIR1E (2012 1E) 2FEFERFB -
year but not exceeding two years and are carrying interest
at 1% (2012: 1%) per annum. 201263 A31H 2 AR H M (B KA F BRI K 5t
B FHERTEETAERS -
The remaining other loans as at 31 March 2012 carried
floating-rate interest ranging from 7% to 7.1% per annum.
40. DEFERRED TAXATION 40. EREBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) NTRAFERNEFEEBRZEIZRELTH
recognised and movements thereon during the current BEEEE)  UREESHER
and prior years:
Fair value
adjustment
Fairvalue  on project
adjustment under
Accelerated on development
tax Tax investment  and stock
depreciation losses  properties of properties Others Total
BRTEAR
REME NERE
MERERE HEFE ATEEAR ATEESR 2t &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tix THT THT T
At 1 April 2011 H2011F4R1H 13,468 (13,468) 230,149 195,906 58,322 484,377
Exchange realignment & 5 - - 9,277 7,408 2,205 18,890
(Credit) charge to consolidated FalER
income statement (note 14) (BA) 103 (A7 3514) (5,683) 5,683 36,243 (345) (2,144) 33,754
Transfer =] - - 6,967 (6,967) - -
At 31 March 2012 2012634310 7,785 (7,789) 282,636 196,002 58,383 537,021
Exchange realignment AR - - 4,704 2,285 603 7,592
Charge (credit) to consolidated GFalERL
income statement (note 14) R EN) (Hri14) - - 97,860 (1,368) (8,917) 87,575
Reclassified as held for sale ENNBARELE
(note 17) (Wit17) - - (13,601) - (11,730) (25,331)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELEMBAT
(hote 44(b) (Wi #44pp) (7,785) 7785 (24,275) - - (04,275)
Transfer =] - - 13,099 (13,099) - -
At 31 March 2013 2013534310 - - 360,423 183,820 38,339 582,582
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40. DEFERRED TAXATION — continued

41.

At 31 March 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$677,000,000 (2012: HK$950,000,000)
available to offset against future taxable profits. As at

31 March 2012, a deferred tax asset had been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$47,000,000 of such
losses. No deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining
tax losses of HK$677,000,000 (2012: HK$903,000,000)
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams on those subsidiaries. The unused tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax

liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$18,220,000 (2012: HK$82,501,000). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

DEFERRED INCOME

The amounts represented the government grants
related to certain ports construction projects and will be
recognised in profit or loss over the useful lives of the
related depreciable assets.

40.

41.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

LR IE — &

MR2013F3A31A  REBE B RERAMKEE
#1677,000,0007 7t (2012 : 950,000,000/
J0) Al RS R 2 FERR R FE - 20124
3A31H T # 447,000,000/ 7T 2 1B R
BEXEFMBEBEE -ARBUEINZSHBERRB
REMzZEDBE AT ERESTEER
677,000,0005% JT (2012 : 903,000,000 7T ) #&
RELCHBEE - AFERB 2RI EETERH
Mg o

REMTHEE  WBATERSRENEREM
MABRECHRBAGBC RN EZE2BELA
18,220,0005% 7T (2012 : 82,501,000/ 7T) ° H
RAEEREHBLEZEREGEE EZEH
BEBEAARENRERTTER Al E
RZEZFRRELCRHBRE -

B WA
ZERRRAMUETHEORERE 2HF
M- USKRERATHEEEZAERFHA
RBEPHER
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A3NAILEFE
42. SHARE CAPITAL 42. B
Number
of shares Value
BB EE 28
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FIROA0E T 2 & @k -
Authorised: VERE ¢
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 M20115F4HA1H « 201293 H31H
and 31 March 2013 201343 H31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRAR
At 1 April 2011 R20115F4 718 4,529,125,134 452,913
Issue of shares pursuant to IR AR BT &
scrip dividend scheme (Note (a)) BT (K it (a) 29,368,441 2,936
At 31 March 2012 7R2012%3HA31H 4,558,493,575 455,849
Issue of shares pursuant to IR AR BT &
scrip dividend scheme (Note (b)) BITRR D (M aEb)) 18,866,997 1,887
At 31 March 2013 F20134E3 A31 B 4,577,360,572 457,736
Notes: Ff 5t
(@)  Pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme which was announced (a) REARFN2011F9A308 Az ABRMK S5

by the Company on 30 September 2011, the Company issued g ARFAEZWER D AR E R ZE20115F
29,368,441 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the 3A31H IEFERBRK B 2 & H#1729,368,441
Company to the shareholders who elected to receive scrip BRAARGREECIOB T HERRK - ZE
dividend in respect of the final dividend for the year ended BRHEARFEREBZLRNESTEZEAR
31 March 2011. These shares rank pari passu with the then FEHAL ©
existing shares of the Company in all respects.
(o) BIEARRR2012F10A128 DM 2 AR
(b)  Pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme which was announced BEtél ARAMERBKBBRNDUAREEBZE
by the Company on 12 October 2012, the Company issued 20125 3ABIHLFERARE ZRERET
18,866,997 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the 18,866,997 AN A &l F R EE0.10B L 2 T &
Company to the shareholders who elected to receive scrip AR -ZERMNEAQAEREEZROHES
dividend in respect of the final dividend for the year ended FEEEREFHA -
31 March 2012. These shares rank pari passu with the then
existing shares of the Company in all respects.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 43. ARG EXNAREBEZRS
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (i) 2002%Ff8 MR =+ &
The share option scheme adopted by the Company AN A A FR2002F8 427 H R i 2 BE IR #E 7T
on 27 August 2002 (the “2002 Share Option 2l ([2002F FE iR = &l |) 7201248 A27
Scheme”) expired on 27 August 2012 (the “Expiry BiEm ([JEm A1) o 1R #B20024F & Ik #
Date”) and all the then outstanding share options PRI H MRS R ARITEZ P BIRE
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme NN =N
lapsed on the Expiry Date.
(a) Details of the share options granted on (a) 200412 4281 1R 520024 i i
28 December 2004 to certain directors and BAERTARBETES NES
advisers of the Company under the 2002 AZBRERRFEAZEBFBN

Share Option Scheme and movements in such N
holdings during the year are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of the share options

ROBRRERERTHRLARMEHAE

Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
price asat during as at during asat
Date of grant Exercise period per share 1.4.2011 the year 31.3.2012 the year 31.3.2013
#2015 120125 HR2013E
4A1H 3A31A 3A31H
RHAH Gix:&:] SRTRE WATE  RERXR HATE  RERXR AT
HKS
BT
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012 043762 22,100,000 - 22,100,000  (22,100,000) -
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012 052940 32,810,000 - 3810000 (32,810,000 -
54,910,000 - 54910000  (54,910,000) -
Exercisable at the end of the year 54,910,000 -

RERTREBT TR

il gzemaram 20155 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&x B Wil 75 ¥k 2% biil 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

— continued

(b)

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 43. LR EXAREZRS —#
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme — continued () 2002&E RS — &
Details of the share options granted to certain (b) 1RE2002EEREHEREAEER
directors, employees and advisers of the Group BAEEETAREERIBE#EE
and invested entities under the 2002 Share TEE EERIZMAIERER
Option Scheme during the current and prior SERENT
years and movements in such holdings are as
follows:
Number of shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise
of the share options
MERRERERTHALARGEA
Lapsed Lapsed
during during
Exercise  Outstanding theyear  Qutstanding theyear  Outstanding
price at ended at ended at
Type Dateof grant ~ Vesting date*  Exercise period per share 1.4.2011 3132012 3132012 32013 332018
HONE REZN2E O RO1E  BE0BE  R0NE
gh 4A1A 3A31A 3A31A 3A31A 3A318
Al L BREE  fIRE i@ WATE LEEAY  HAGE LEEXM HAGE
HKS
B
() 8.9.2006 892006  89.200610268.2012 0.85762 3,683,334 - 36833 (368333 -
1] 6.2.2007 6.22007  62.200710268.2012 105881 3,683,334 - 36833 (368333 -
] 3,6.2008 1102008 1.10.2008t0 26,2011 070584 17809523 (17,809,528 - - -
(i) 3.6.2008 1102000 1.10.200910 262011 070584 17809523 (17,809,523 - - -
(v 3.6.2008 142010 1.420101026.2011 0.70584 8904763 (8,904,763) - - -
(v 3,6.2008 1102010 1.10.2010t0 262011 0.70584 8904763 (8,904,763) - - -
(v 3,6.2008 362009  36.2009t026.2011 0.88232 5,006,660  (5,666,660) - - -
(v 3,6.2008 362010 36.2010t026.2011 105881 7083331 (7,083331) - - -
13045237 (66,178569) 7,306,068  (7,366,668) -
Exercisable af the
end of the year 73,545,237 7,366,668 -
REETERTTAME

All the above outstanding share options of the
Company were vested in the relevant grantees
upon the first date of their respective exercise
periods.

During both years, no share options were
granted to directors and employees under the
2002 Share Option Scheme.
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

— continued

)

2012 Share Option Scheme

On 10 September 2012 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a new share option scheme

(the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentive or reward to any employees,
executives or officers, directors of the Group or any
invested entity and any celebrity, consultant, adviser
or agent of any member of the Group or any invested
entity, who have contributed or will contribute to

the growth and development of the Group or any
invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The 2012 Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing after the Adoption date.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, HK$1.00

is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer and an offer
must be accepted on or before a date as specified
in writing, being a date not later than 30 days

after (i) the date on which the offer was issued; or
(i) the date on which the conditions for the offer

are satisfied. The directors may at their discretion
determine the specific exercise period which should
expire in any event no later than the last day of the
ten year period after the date of grant of the share
options. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the
higher of: (i) the subscription price as is permissible
under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

43. UIBROXAREZRSE — &

(ii)

’
M

2012F BB IR fE 5T &)

201269108 ([HHB]) » AR AR
IR EE AR AT & ([ 20126 BE AR 4 &1
2 5HEYIBSUAREERTIMNEE
BEERER 2 AEE ST MEERE Y
IMEE -TBRAESSHBE BER
MEANTET  REBEBTMAEKE R A KATMER
BHBZER FHAIREATEER
AT DT HEREER - 2012F BT
BB A RMBERREFERTE -

BE2012F IR R 2 - AR AR EMN
BREZLHRARA DR ZM1.008 T
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A3MAIEFE
43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 43.
— continued

(i) 2012 Share Option Scheme — continued
The maximum number of shares which may initially
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) adopted by the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company as at
the Adoption Date, i.e. 455,849,357 shares. Subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date
of approval by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares of the Company

in respect of which options may be granted to
each Eligible Person under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including those exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue from time to time unless such grant

has been duly approved by shareholders of the
Company at general meeting at which the Eligible
Person and his associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstained from voting. Options granted to

a substantial shareholder and/or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in any
12-month period in excess of 0.10% of total number
of shares in issue and have an aggregate value
exceeding HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting in
advance.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, no share

options under the 2012 Share Option Scheme were
granted, nor exercised, cancelled or lapsed.
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

— continued

(ii)

Share Option Scheme of Louis XIlI

On 7 September 2005, Louis Xlll adopted a share
option scheme (the “Louis Xlll Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to any
employees, executives or officers, directors of Louis
Xlll'and its subsidiaries or any invested entity and
any consultant, adviser or agent of any member of
Louis Xl and its subsidiaries or any invested entity,
who have contributed or will contribute to the growth
and development of Louis Xl and its subsidiaries or
any invested entity (“Louis XlII Eligible Person”). The
Louis Xl Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years from that date.

Under the Louis Xlll Scheme, the directors of Louis
Xl may at their discretion grant options to any Louis
Xl Eligible Person to subscribe for shares in Louis
Xilll. Consideration to be paid on each grant of option
is HK$1.00. The directors of Louis XlIl may at their
discretion determine the specific exercise period
which should expire in any event no later than ten
years from date of adoption of the Louis Xlll Scheme.
The exercise price is determined by the directors

of Louis Xlll and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under the Listing
Rules from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value of
the shares of Louis XIlI.

43.

Py1

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

— continued

(i)

Share Option Scheme of Louis Xl

— continued

The maximum number of shares that may initially
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Louis XlIl Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) adopted by Louis Xl must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
issued shares of Louis Xlll as at its adoption date,
i.e. 57,669,939 shares of Louis XlIl. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders of Louis XlII in general
meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the
total number of shares of Louis Xl in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders of Louis Xl in
general meeting. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the
maximum number of shares of Louis XlIl which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Louis Xl
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
Louis Xl must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
total number of shares of Louis XllI in issue from time
to time. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
at Louis XlII’s annual general meeting held on 26
August 2011, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed
to 60,695,432, representing 10% of the total number
of issued shares of Louis XlIl as at the date of such
meeting.

The maximum number of shares of Louis XllI

in respect of which options may be granted to

each Louis XlII Eligible Person under the Louis XllI
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
Louis Xl (including those exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of
Louis Xlll in issue from time to time unless such grant
has been duly approved by shareholders of Louis
Xlll'in general meeting at which the Louis XIlI Eligible
Person and his associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstained from voting. Options granted to

a substantial shareholder and/or an independent
non-executive director of Louis Xl or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10%
of the total number of Louis XlII in issue and have an
aggregate value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must be
approved by the shareholders of Louis Xl in general
meeting in advance.
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

— continued

(i)

Share Option Scheme of Louis Xl

— continued

No options were granted, exercised, lapsed or
cancelled under the Louis XlIl Scheme during the
year ended 31 March 2012 and the period from 1
April 2012 to 5 February 2013 (the date on which
Louis Xl ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
upon the deemed disposal of Louis XllI as detailed in
note 44(b)).

44. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
acquired a further 5.39% equity interest in Feeder
Port Holdings Limited, which was engaged in logistic
network solution, increasing its interest from 94.61%
to 100% by acquiring the non-controlling interests
for a cash consideration of HK$7,000,000. The
difference of approximately HK$148,000 between
the proportionate share of the carrying amount of

its net assets and the consideration paid for the
additional interest had been credited to retained
profits.

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

Following the completion of the placing of
2,938,236,000 shares of Louis XllIl, a company

listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
was engaged in management contracting, property
development management and property investment,
(the “Louis Xl Placing”) on 5 February 2013, the
Group’s interest in Louis Xl and its subsidiaries (the
“Louis XlIl Group”) was diluted from approximately
61.92% to approximately 10.60% and such dilution
constituted a deemed disposal of subsidiaries by the
Group. The Group’s interest in Louis Xlll is accounted
for as an available-for-sale investment upon and after
completion of the deemed disposal.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

43. IR ZRREZRSE — &

(i) BBT=2BREFTE — &
&S+ =58 2 BRERE =20124F
3A318 IFFE M2012%4 A1 8 £20134
2A58 (ZAARIELERZ T =%.KS
TETBRAARRZ —HEHBRR - &
BEE K T44(0)) BB ER L - 17 - %k
e RS o

44, W HEMBRRES

(a) HBEHEBELRRER

REZE2012F3A31BIEFE - A& H
A 38 4 R {87,000,00078 J Us B8 JF 22 A% 1
mZ AN EEREMRBABRBEARATRY
Feeder Port Holdings Limited 2 5.39% % 7&
X FHERAR4.61%LE A ZE100% °
BEFEERLOIE S 2 REEEBEN
W m TR E 2 2 Z 5 49148,000% 7T
BERARBHF -

(b) BRIELHEMBELQR

MN2013F2A5H * REERFTER T K E
ENFAEEE VELRETERVER
&2 5T = 5T L& E2,938,236,000
BRO(TBRST=REEHE])  AEBER
BSTZREWBRAR([KZ+=%2E)])
2 W A 4961.92% 8 = £910.60% + I
AERASEZGELENBAR - &
BRI ST =2 Eam N RIELE TRE &
ZEERA T ERE AR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

44, ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

(b)

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries — continued

Following the completion of the Louis XllI Placing,
the Group received special cash dividend of
approximately HK$97,715,000 and distribution

in specie of 375,826,317 shares (representing
approximately 30.34% interest) of PYE BVI from
Louis XIlIl. The Group’s interest in PYE BVI is
accounted for as interests in associates upon and
after completion of the deemed disposal.

The Group still has substantive involvement in the
construction business and other business activities
previously carried out by Louis XlIl through the
investment in PYE BVI. The directors of the Company
are of the view that the Group continues to carry on
these businesses and all these business activities will
continue to be presented as an operating segment,
namely Paul Y. Engineering Group after completion
of the deemed disposal.

Two subsidiaries jointly controlled by the Company
and Louis XlIl, namely #1/T £ & 2GR A7) and
M e iERHEFEE AR A A (collectively the “Meilian
Group”), which were engaged in property holding
and accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group
before completion of the Louis Xlll Placing, were
deconsolidated and reclassified as interests in jointly
controlled entities upon completion of the Louis XllI
Placing. The Group’s interests in these companies
were diluted from approximately 80.96% to 50%
and such dilution constituted a deemed disposal of
subsidiaries by the Group.
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44, ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries — continued

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

44, BB/ HENBAAERE — &
(b) HRELEWMBIR — &

HK$’000
FHET
Net assets of the Louis Xl Group and the HERS T SBENEBERE EEFE -
Meilian Group disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment L E IS 204,243
Investment properties wEME 230,100
Prepaid lease payments FEREENEA 19,783
Goodwill EES 61,646
Other intangible assets HMEEEE 7,570
Interests in associates RN v ey 27,542
Interests in jointly controlled entities HEZEGIEEER 23,744
Other debtors H h fE URR 3R 184,733
Amounts due from customers for contract works JEWEFE& AR 550,851
Trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments B 5) K H Ath FE U BR 7R Jﬁ SRS 2,184,040
Amounts due from associates JE Bk = R B 5RIE 25,885
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities JE s L [R] 422 o e 1 RRE 121,747
Loans receivable FEWER 8,148
Pledged bank deposits B IFIRITFR 1,315
Short term bank deposits EAEIRITER 25,357
Bank balances and cash WITHEIFRES 129,330
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEFAEHIREY (736,148)
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B 5 R HMEMNEER &Fg TR X (1,567,475)
Amounts due to associates FE Bt = A B 5RIE (565,904)
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities JE A< FE[R] 22 6 #E 18 RRE (38,014)
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEA FERRRAE A5 (61)
Taxation payable FER IR (7,214)
Bank and other borrowings 1T R H AR (639,363)
Deferred tax liabilities REERIEB G (24,275)
Total net assets FEERE 737,580
Less: non-controlling interests W FETERR R S (254,470)
483,110
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

44, ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

(b) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries — continued

44, WEEHEMBARER — &
b) RELEHBAR — =

HK$’000
FHET
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries: BIEHEMB AR Z WS
Net assets of the Louis Xl Group and the HER S+ =SB REHER
Meilian Group disposed of ZEEFE (737,580)
Non-controlling interests SRR 254,470
Initial recognition at fair value of 10.60% interest in TIRR A T EEERR
Louis XIll reclassified as an 5+ =210.60%E 25 E 75
available-for-sale investment (note i) AAHBERE (F) 254,434
Initial recognition at fair value of 30.34% interest in RN FEERERRPYEBVIZ
PYE BVI as interests in associates (note i) 30.34% 1 7 A M & A Bl a (MY a%i) 218,000
Initial recognition at fair value of 50% interest IRIR RN TFEERERR
in the Meilian Group as interests in EHEE 250% R A
jointly controlled entities (note i) FL[R] ¥ il e 1 i e (Y i) 72,123
Special cash dividend declared by Louis Xlll BT8R 2FHESKE 97,715
Transaction costs R G A (14,000)
Gain on deemed disposal before release JEFT R R AT 2
of attributable reserve WIEH &z 145,162
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of REKEWB A L H R A
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified EmEYEEa B
from equity to profit or loss on loss WEAREEFEREZ
of control of the subsidiaries RIRE H Z5 24,859
Gain on deemed disposal BIEH B WS 170,021
Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal: RIELEMEE 2R FR
Special cash dividend declared by Louis XIlI BOHT=5R2FRESRKRE 97,715
Less: transaction costs paid B BN R S (10,000)
Cash consideration received BBReNRE 87,715
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B TR ERTEFRES (154,687)
(66,972)

Notes:

(i) The fair value determined for the initial recognition of
10.60% interest in Louis Xlll is reference to quoted share
price in active market and the placing price at the date
of completion of the deemed disposal.
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44, ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries — continued

Notes: — continued

(ii) The fair value determined for the initial recognition of
30.34% interest in PYE BVI has been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out by Asset Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group.

The fair value of PYE BVI has been determined based
on the income approach to prepare 5-year cash

flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budget approved by its management. The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows is approximately 9.5%.
The income approach estimates the future economic
benefits and discounts these benefits to its present
worth using a discount rate appropriate for the risks
associated with realising those benefits.

(i) The fair value of the Meilian Group has been determined
mainly based on the fair value of its underlying
investment property. The valuation is carried out by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group.

The comparison method is adopted under which
comparison based on information of recent transacted
prices of comparable property is made. Comparable
property of similar size, character and location are
analysed in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital
values.

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year
contributed approximately HK$5,960 million to the
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013. During the year, they contributed about
HK$25 million to the net profit attributable to owners
of the Company and utilised net cash flow amounted
to approximately HK$153 million before the disposal.

Special reserve in relation to the above subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$124,695,000 had
been charged to the retained profits upon deemed
disposal of the subsidiaries.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

44, ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary
On 26 May 2011, the Group disposed of 50.1%
equity interest in Yangkou Port Co, which was
engaged in the business of development of port
and related infrastructures, at a consideration of
approximately RMB1,507 million (equivalent to

44. W/ HEWBLARESE — &

(c) HE-—HHWEAR

R201165 7260  REBUREBHAR
#15.0718 T (FHE R 418.07E B L) HE
ﬁ?ﬁé%%ﬂ&*ﬁ%@%k SHEERZEOE
NEZE501%M AR - EF OB RATH
t%/‘ﬂzmgﬂﬂ MAEBMPAEDE
RAIFTRB 2% TO.9%EZR N & %K

approximately HK$1,807 million). Yangkou Port BIERIHEEREAR-
Co ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
and the remaining 9.9% interest in Yangkou Port
Co retained by the Group was accounted for as
an available-for-sale investment upon and after
completion of the disposal.
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment L E 3 1,082,312
Investment properties "EYE 2,416,835
Project under development ERPIEAE 1,196,116
Stock of properties MEFE 1,124,698
Trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments B o R HMmEWKERER  5]& RFBIEA 544,299
Bank balances and cash wITREIFRES 69,554
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B 5 K HoAth FE A BR R R FE R 2 (224,081)
Taxation payable FERT IR (70,535)
Bank and other borrowings RIT R E AL (&R (1,258,993)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEE G (1,627,091)
Total net assets FEERE 3,253,114
Less: non-controlling interests o FEIERR R (1,252,559)
2,000,555
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44, ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Disposal of a subsidiary — continued

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

44. WHEHEMBARERZ — &
(c) HE—MHBAR — =

HK$’000
FHET
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—MEE AR 2 W
Consideration received and receivable B R FE U AE 1,806,964
Levies paid BENEE (903)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (3,253,114)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R T 1,252,559
Initial recognition at fair value of 9.9% interest in MREATFEEERRNEER
Yangkou Port Co retained by the Group as FOBRBTIRE 29.9% =
an available-for-sale investment RAIHHERE 352,758
Gain on disposal before taxation and release of PR 2 & 517k 45 18 B A
attributable reserve 2 BEREE 158,264
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the PR A MY B 2 RIHE il #ERE R
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity SN B  BHEZMBAR
to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiary BEFEEBAZREELE 230,797
Gain on disposal before taxation BRIz HEWE 389,061
Less: taxation (note 14) W BIE (M aE14) (126,832)
Gain on disposal after taxation PriiIEE 2 & W 262,229
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEE ZIREFR
Consideration received and receivable B R AE 1,806,964
Less: levies and income tax withheld A BB RS (127,735)
Less: deferred sales proceeds classified as other B D RRE M EYER R 2
receivables (note 32(d)) IRIE 58 5 TS 3 IA (M 3532(0)) (903,482)
Cash consideration received BUERESRE 775,747
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B TR ERTETRES (69,554)
706,193

The disposed subsidiary contributed approximately
HK$9,090,000 to the revenue of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2012. It did not contribute
significantly to the net profit attributable to owners
of the Company and the cash flow contributed

or utilised by this subsidiary for the year ended

31 March 2012 was not significant.

Capital reserve in relation to the above subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$247,958,000 had
been charged to the retained profits upon disposal
of the subsidiary.

BEHE KB AR NS £2012F3A831H
1F F JZ ¥ 7 & B Uk 25 & BE499,090,0005%8
JL o RELE2012F3A31H I FE - %M
BRARYARNBEE ABEEFFELE
EXER REMERSKMBACZESR
EVFREK -

BErAMNBLARAABEBZIEARBY

247,958,000 T E R EZWE QR R
REHE I8 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 45. €@ I A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SRMIAZEHR
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Financial assets SWMEE
FVTPL BAFEEZAEBDRE
- Investments held for trading —BEEECZKRE 64,225 60,439
Loans and receivables Bk EWFIE
— Loans receivable —ERER 106,425 102,636
— Trade and other debtors — 85 KEMEWERR
and deposits KEl & 269,823 2,889,383
— Amounts due from associates — FEUR S & A B FOR 19,102 35,819
— Amounts due from jointly — FE U [R5
controlled entities R 58 19 52,921
— Amount due from a — R IR R
non-controlling interest W25 FE 1,248 1,233
- Bank deposits —RITIFER 1,437,113 1,182,805
— Bank balances and cash —RITEERRS 445,013 557,656
2,278,743 4,822,453
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE
— Available-for-sale investments — At EERE 667,806 363,801
Total A&t 3,010,774 5,246,693
Financial liabilities at BREBHERRTEZ
amortised costs k- 3=
Trade and other creditors B 5 MEMEMERR 906,862 1,896,989
Amounts due to jointly JE - 2 (A T’E Gl
controlled entities T 112 95,401
Amounts due to associates JE 1< B ’A FRIE 110,630 108,059
Amounts due to non-controlling JRE 51 3 12 AR T’é % K18
interests 34,806 40,727
Bank and other borrowings RIT R H AL fE 5K 2,485,233 2,635,004
3,537,643 4,776,180
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade

and other debtors and deposits, loans receivable,
available-for-sale investments, investments held

for trading, trade and other creditors, amounts

due from (to) associates/jointly controlled entities/
non-controlling interests, bank and other borrowings.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

(@) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
is attributable to its financial instruments
that are subject to both variable rate and
fixed rate. Those financial instruments

of variable interest rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Details of the Group’s interest bearing
financial instruments at variable rate have
been disclosed in notes 28, 32, 34, 36
and 39. Financial instruments at fixed
interest rates expose the Group to fair
value interest risk. Details of the Group’s
interest bearing financial instruments at
fixed rate have been disclosed in notes
28, 34, 36, 38 and 39.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk,
the Group adopts a policy of maintaining
an appropriate mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings which is achieved
primarily through entering into different
contractual terms of borrowings. The
position is regularly monitored and
evaluated by reference of anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

EE2013FE3A31ALFE
45. €WMIE — &

b. SREMEEBERBE
AEBZEZSRTARFRREITER B
THERES  BZREMBWERRKET
¢ EBRER AIHHUERE BHIEEE
BE -BIREMBMERR - B ()8
BNR]HREGIHME R - R
ITHEMER LSBT ARMS 2 E
ZRBEAE SRR ZEEHINMT o
EREEBRERZERAR  ARRKE
BRERZERE  NEE 7 BERES
EFHERA -

(a) WHEER
() =R
REBZAERABRKEZER
TESMIA - ZEZESH
TAFEASEEHRESTER
KRR - AEBZEESHMT
BEFBRHKE28 3234
36RO E - TESBMIE
FEALEEEY A FEEFN SR
B AEErEE SR AR
B R 728 - 34 - 36+ 38}
39N FE °
ATENERR  AEED R
BRE  T2RBIVTRA
WREBZET  RETERT
BemIAZBEMRS - Hik
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(@ Market risk — continued

(i)

Interest rate risk — continued

The Group’s exposures to interest rate
risk on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the rates announced by
the PBC arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and advance at variable rates
and Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
and HKBLR arising from the Group’s HK
Dollars loans receivable and borrowings
at variable rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for variable rate instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at

the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel.

If interest rates are variable and had been
50 basis points (2012: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit
for the year ended 31 March 2013,
excluding the capitalised borrowing costs
of approximately HK$2,685,000 (2012:
HK$2,565,000), would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$7,857,000 (2012:
HK$8,783,000).

For loans receivable and bank balances,
the effect on interest rate risk to the
Group’s pre-tax profit is insignificant.
Therefore, the effect is not included in the
sensitivity analysis above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(@ Market risk — continued

(i)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
value of a monetary item will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Certain receivables of the Group
are denominated in foreign currencies
such as Macau Pataca (“MOP”), RMB
and United States Dollars (“US Dollars”)
and which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors
foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the
Group also operate in the Mainland China
with certain transactions denominated

in either RMB or US Dollars. RMB is

not freely convertible into other foreign
currencies and conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
Certain subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency transactions, including
purchase of materials, expenses and
borrowings. The Group manages

its exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the level of
foreign currency receipts and payments.
The Group ensures that the net exposure
to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.

All of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK Dollars and RMB.
The Group mainly draws borrowings in
the functional currencies of the entities as
management considers the repayments
can be sourced from income to be
generated in those currencies.

"
L~

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

45, €@ T H — &

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. LREAMEEEERERX —#
policies — continued (a) TERAE — &
(@ Market risk — continued (i) EMER — &

(i) Currency risk — continued A T B TR A A
As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, BEABTRNEERE 2%
the Group believes the exposure of RAIFTEI S AETTABMN 2
transactions denominated in US Dollars SFFEHEZBBRMTRE -
which are entered by group companies
with a functional currency of HK Dollars BB T zEXTSHE
to be insignificant. KB - TR R SR B BB P T

BBz ES R R E -
The exchange rates between HK
Dollars and MOP would not materially REBERR HINERBEZ
fluctuate, hence, the Group’s currency KEAREEETZER - &
risk in relation to MOP is expected to be SETHRTEEEREBEZ
minimal. HEHRARR G2 EBELTT
REROASEEY ZINE
The Group considers its foreign currency BB e
exposure is mainly arising from the
exposure of RMB against HK Dollars. The 7N 55 (B DA I 7 B8 iz 3 TE ¥ O
Group regularly reviews the balances of KRR EKEEREYEE
assets and liabilities and the currencies in (BERERRERE)RMEH
which the transactions are denominated THERZERBERT
so as to minimise the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities, with
exposure to foreign currency risk
which are considered as significant by
management, at the end of the reporting
periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
afE BE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HIK$'000
FHET FET THET FET
US Dollars ETT - - 603 1,091
RMB AR 3,711 123,815 1,216,366 2,061,185
HK Dollars BT 24,677 24,677 3 15,528
MOP SR - 442,166 6 429,525
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

@)
(i)

Market risk — continued

Currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and

decrease in RMB against HK Dollars

and HK Dollars against RMB. 5% is

the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against HK Dollars. For a 5% weakening
of RMB against HK Dollars, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year.

b.

&n 8 Wil 15 ¥k 2% Bid 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

45. ¢RI TH — &

CREREEAERKEX — &
(a) mHEREMR — &

(i) EXEE—%&

HEE DT
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TRBITH AREEXRE K
A% Z BRKE - B AR
HMEEERASERIMNERR
i DRAS %R REREELL X -
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NN BB E%IER B
1R REE & 25%% B #1738
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2013
HK$’000
FERT

2012
HK$’000
TET

Increase in profit R A N

for the year

50,628 80,885
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

#=201343A31HILFE
45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 45. TRT R — &
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. LREAMEEEERERX —#
policies — continued (a) WEERE — &

(@ Market risk — continued
(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk from its available-for-sale
investments and all of the held for trading
investments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk. The Group
has monitored the other price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks for investments in equity
instruments carried at fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower,

o post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2013 would increase/
decrease by HK$3,211,000 (2012:
HK$3,022,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments
held for trading; and

° investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by
HK$13,273,000 (2012: HK$4,000)
for the Group as a result of
the changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale investments.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge obligations by

the counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from:

- the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

—  the amount of contingent liabilities as
disclosed in note 48.

In order to minimise the credit risk of the
debtors, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
will understand the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines its credit limits. Credit

sales are made to customers with good credit
history. Credit limits attributed to customers
and credit term granted to customers on
different business units are reviewed regularly.
In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual customer
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(b) Credit risk — continued

The Group has concentration of credit risks as
follows:

For the Paul Y. Engineering Group segment as
at 31 March 2012, due to the fact that there
were only a few major property developers

in Hong Kong, the Group had significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers
and significant concentration of credit risk by
geographic location in Hong Kong. In view of
their credit standings, good payment record

in the past and long term relationships with

the Group, the directors of the Company
considered that the Group’s credit risk was not
material. As at 31 March 2012, the outstanding
balances with the five largest customers
amounted to approximately HK$527,778,000
in aggregate, of which the single largest
customer represented approximately 22% of
the total debtors as at 31 March 2012.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had advances
together with interest thereon to a non-

trade debtor and a related company of this
debtor which were included in trade and other
debtors, deposits and prepayments as at 31
March 2012, amounting to approximately
HK$262,865,000 and HK$16,394,000,
respectively, (see note 32(c) for details) which
exposed the Group to the concentration of
credit risk on these counterparties. To protect
the Group’s interest, the Group had entered
into presale contracts with property developer
for certain property units in the project and the
market value of such units was higher than the
carrying amount of the outstanding balances,
the directors of the Company considered that
the Group’s exposure to credit risk on these
balances was reduced.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(b)

Credit risk — continued

With respect to concentration of credit risk as
at 31 March 2012 arising from amounts due
from jointly controlled entities, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from default

of the counterparty was limited as the jointly
controlled entities had strong financial position
and the Group did not expect to incur a
significant loss for uncollected amounts due
from these jointly controlled entities.

With respect to concentration of credit risk

as at 31 March 2012 arising from deferred
consideration receivable amounting to
HK$743,284,000 as at 31 March 2012 (see
note 32(d) for details), the Group’s exposure

to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparty was limited as no history of
default payment from the counterparty and the
Group did not expect to incur significant loss.
The balance was settled during the year.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, the
exposure of which spreads over a number of
counterparties.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

45. ¢RI TH — &
b. ¢RERETEEERKE —&

(b)

FERR —&

#R20124E3 A31 B fE W 2 [ 12 41
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HEEHEE BRI RELY &
SERYFEOMELEZEERR
BR - -AEBABHITEARER
% 2k [R] 2E I 4 A Mk (o] e Rk 2L TR 4
B E 2 RIEMBBEABX -

M2012F3 8318 » 5t EH201243 A
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(©)

Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March
2013, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of approximately HK$377 million
(2012: HK$456 million). Details of the amounts
utilised at the end of the reporting period are
set out in note 39.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. There are unutilised banking facilities
available to finance the Group’s working capital
requirements. The Group relies on borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants. The
Group will also consider the issue of equity
instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on

the earliest date on which the Group can

be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

B=201343A31HLFE
45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 45, $®MIHE —#
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. LREABEEEERERX —#&
policies — continued () RBELER — &

(¢) Liquidity risk — continued LD B R T

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted More than Total

average  Ondemand 90 days and undiscounted
effective or within within More than cash Carrying
interest rate 90 days 365 days 365 days flows amount

mE¥S BEA #1890 AERRS

BRNE  H90AR BRISAA  BBISH b £4 REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
% TRL TRL TRL TRL TRL

2013
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ {4 ¢BER
Trade and other creditors BHREMENER - 694,295 149,694 62,873 906,862 906,862
Amounts due to associates/jointly ERBELNE/ LR
controlled entities/non-controlling BHIB IR
interests E=7E
- non interest bearing ) - 60,738 12,484 2,971 76,193 76,193
- fixed rate interest bearing —ER 5.6 38,195 2,620 15,457 56,272 54,931
- variable rate %8
interest bearing 15.2 14,424 - - 14,424 14,424
Bank and other borrowings BOREMER
- fixed rate T8 39 67,749 170,032 162,201 399,982 391,285
- variable rate -28 4.6 1,109,325 434,185 689,213 2,232,123 2,093,948
Financial guarantee contracts HBERED - - 43,696 219,988 263,684 -
1,984,726 812,711 1,162,703 3,950,140 3,537,643
2012
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ {74 &HE[E
Trade and other creditors BHRAMERER - 1,076,778 677,581 142635 1,896,989 1,896,989
Amounts due to associates/jointly EfBELNT/ LR
controlled entities/non-controlling BHEE/ FRRERTE
interests
- non interest bearing -8 - 122,387 71,438 32,359 226,184 226,184
- fixed rate interest bearing -EE 1 - 785 18,029 18,814 18,003
Bank and other borrowings BOREMER
- fixed rate T8 3.84 119,099 71,480 124,442 315,021 309,394
- variable rate -28 4.87 1,236,110 358,309 931,162 2,525,581 2,325,610
Financial guarantee contracts HBERED - 2,228 43,157 360,618 406,003 -

2,556,697 1,222,750 1,609,245 5,388,692 4,776,180
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HE2013F3A31HIEFE

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(©)

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed
amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is more likely than
not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee
which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments for non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

c. Fairvalue

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices; and

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

C.

Fair value — continued

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following fair value hierarchy provides an
analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

° LLevel 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at 31 March 2013, the fair values of the Group’s
investments held for trading of approximately
HK$64,225,000 (2012: HK$60,439,000) and
available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$265,452,000 (2012: HK$75,000) are based on
Level 1 measurement.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for

both years.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE2013F3A31HIFFE
46. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

47.

The 30.34% interest in PYE BVI classified as interests in
associates were received from distribution in specie by
Louis Xl as set out in notes 25 and 44(b).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of
the schemes are separately held in funds under the control
of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

With effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has
joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is

to make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES — continued 47.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to the
funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

RIKERGE

g ta 2 5t & F 2R KAE M A 8 R B 4R
BlRERNE  BERAKEIRFERATH
ZHEERAESENRERMNZHK -

-
— &

the scheme. FA- G R A I 2 RIRAE B ET &l it
= ﬁ@%ﬁ%}%%18,527,000?§7n(2012 : 18,022,000
During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme BIT) °
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$18,527,000 (2012:
HK$18,022,000).
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 48. HAREE
The Group has the following contingent liabilities (2012: AEBAUTHABE (2012 : # R MK 5E32(c)
together with the claim described in note 32(c)): Frat 2 &=18) -
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Indemnities issued to banks for BATATHEEZZESR
performance bonds in respect of MIRITIR B LR -
construction contracts undertaken by:
— an associate ——HEE AT - 5,589
— jointly controlled entities LRI il 4 1S - 33,255
- 38,844
Guarantees given to banks in respect BATATERZRITEELT
of banking facilities granted to: RITHER -
— third parties - =Vl 68,664 70,046
— an investee ——XRXWEERET 195,020 335,957
263,684 406,003
263,684 444 847

The Company’s directors consider that the fair value of the
financial guarantees at the initial date of providing these
guarantees is insignificant.

EERAVBERZAFEEREHR
BERYTEKX-

ZEER
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#HZ=2013F3A31HIEFE
49. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 49. REHEAE
(@) The Group as a lessee: (@ TEBEREBEA:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
leasehold interest in land, rented premises and plant
and machinery which fall due as follows:

RBEERTLER  AEEETARECZH
B HERAERE HRAMERKE
REWEEROAFE WS RRFERS K
AR - WEAREZZFBHOT :

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within one year —FR 11,230 28,666
In the second to fifth year inclusive @F_-_ZFERAF(EEMEBEENR) 9,459 41,995
Over five years HRiE T 7,719 7,640
28,408 78,301

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed,
for terms ranging from one to thirty years.

(b) The Group as a lessor: (b)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants in respect of its investment
properties for future minimum lease payments which
fall due as follows:

ROzEHRSARSEE  TEHRA
—EE=HETE

AEBEBHBA

RBEMEms AEERRREYEY
HEBRARBERSHETH - % 15
m -

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FN 9,317 11,667
In the second to fifth year inclusive @F_-_ZFZRAF(EEMEBEENRN) 15,072 21,042
Over five years HiE T EF 21,634 19,998
46,023 52,707

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year
to 10 years.
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HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
50. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 50. BEEEH

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets RBmERTHER  THEESERTFRITREY

were pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure BHE (EAREERE —REERE ZER

the general credit facilities granted to the Group:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Investment properties BEME 131,417 210,376
Property, plant and equipment Y - W R 846,879 863,295
Prepaid lease payments FERHEENRIE 244,722 248,959
Bank deposits (note) RITIF R (MY aE) 646,520 732,226
Trade receivables W & 5 8RR 16,580 12,330
Other intangible assets HERmEE 31,475 33,712
Stock of properties MEFE 45,869 144,783

1,963,462 2,245,681

In addition, the Company pledged its investment in certain S ARBARETHERARAZEREND
subsidiaries of approximately HK$360,761,000 (2012: 360,761,000/% 7T (2012 : 295,541,000/% 7T.) &
HK$295,541,000) to secure the facilities granted. As RATERHBE 2R - 201243A31R - £ &%
at 31 March 2012, the Group’s benefits under certain ERETRESNZMEZE TEA ERMHE
construction contracts were pledged to secure the REBE ZER-

facilities granted.

M EEBRTEREE —"S2BHHARE
516,162,0007T (48 & 1 #1644,397,000/% 7T )
(2012 : AR #575,064,0007T © 18 & R4
709,080,000/ 7T) MARMELEGFRE S

Note: The pledged bank deposits included approximately
RMB516,162,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$644,397,000) (2012: RMB575,064,000, equivalent to

approximately HK$709,080,000) which were denominated in ZHE
RMB and deposited in Hong Kong.
51. COMMITMENTS 51. &L
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T Fi
Expenditure contracted for but not BUEATIERE L
provided in the consolidated BRPEGEMBREA
financial statements in respect BEZRX
of acquisition of:
- Property, plant and equipment — W% R R 1,393 97,441
— Project under development —#REFIEE 14,012 -
15,405 97,441
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HE2013F3A31HIEFE

52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 52. BB ATRZ RE
BALANCES @ BEAMBERERAGCBERBEN T
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated AN REE TG EE TRBEA LTI
financial statements, the Group also entered into the BARS

following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:

2013 2012
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAEE A+ 2 KR RHME FHET FHET
Associates of the Group Sale of properties by the Group - 24,704
REEZHBE R A REBEEWE
Construction works charged by the Group 31,054 6,384
REBWMEETEE
Construction works charged to the Group - 98,565
REBZNELETRE
Interest charged by the Group 669 -
A& E YA A
Interest charged to the Group 1,123 -

REEXZAFE
Project management fees charged by the Group 2,368 -
REBWHIERERE

Consultancy fees charged to the Group 322 -
AEEZNERE
Service fees charged by the Group 815 610
REBWRRGE
Jointly controlled entities Service fees charged by the Group - 15
of the Group REBWRREE
& B 2 H AT IEE Construction works charged by the Group 751,716 260,536
REEKMEETIRE
Sub-contracting works charged to the Group 999 23,849
FEBEXNINBRETRE
Sale of properties by the Group - 19,956
NEBHEYE
Rentals charged to the Group 88 -
REEXNEE
Subsidiaries of ITC Rentals charged to the Group - 240
Corporation Limited REBEZNHAS
(“ITC”) (note i)
EHCEEERAT ([BERE]D
pd | 1)=VNEICTEz D)
Entity controlled by senior Service fees charged to the Group 72 -
management (note ij) KEBELZNRBEE

= ARE TR 2 AR (H aLii)
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HZE2013F3A31HIEFE
52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 52. BBATIRERES — &
BALANCES — continued .
(a) 8
(@@ — continued
et
Notes:
(i) EHPERARAIZEZREARHAA
) ITC is the substantial shareholder of, and has significant ABEEATEN W REREFLA
influence over, the Company. In addition, Dr. Chan BHCERRRAFAZEFERREESE -

Kwok Keung, Charles is the substantial shareholder and )
director of both ITC and the Company. (i) ZERFGBERCETHEI TERZFA
BERRKEHNBERS -

(ii) These transactions constituted the de minimis

connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules. et
Remark: B 7 B G BT Rt O - BEE R Bl R TR 2
BARGERCETEP) TERZBER SN
None of the related party transactions disclosed above FARERS -
other than those set out in note (i) constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined by EBEREMFTEZEEERE MEIBEHFMHNE
in the Listing Rules. BEg2ZARABZRERTBBEME

E o RIRET
(b)  The remuneration of directors and other members

of key management, which is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends, is as

follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Short-term benefits W HEATE T 24,613 80,068
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 683 557
25,296 80,625
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HE2013F3A31HIEFE
52. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 52. BBMALIRGRER — &
BALANCES — continued .
(b) =
(o) — continued FARTEEFRHKRITEABERRRY
Details of the share options for the Company’s ZHEREZFBEOT
shares granted to the directors or outstanding during
the year are set out below:
Outstanding
Exercise as at Lapsed Outstanding
price per 1.4.2011 and during asat
Name of director Date of grant Exercise period share 31.3.2012 the year 31.3.2013
R.4.2011%
31.3.2012 131.3.2013
BEpe RELAH T8 BRTEE i RATE FREN KT
HK$
B
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to £ 26.8.2012 0.43762 18,416,666 (18,416,666) -
25R 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to £ 26.8.2012 0.52940 18,416,666 (18,416,606) -
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to £ 26.8.2012 0.43762 1,841,666 (1,841,606) -
FR 122 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to £ 26.8.2012 0.52940 1,841,666 (1,841,606) -
Leung Po Wing, 8.9.2006 8.9.2006 to £ 26.8.2012 0.85762 3,683,334 (3,683,334) -
Bowen Joseph
2ER
Li Chang An 6.2.2007 6.2.2007 to £ 26.8.2012 1.05881 3,683,334 (3,683,334) -
ZER
Sub-total /N 47,883,332 (47,883,332 -
(c) Details of the balances with associates and jointly () MMEETLHER - M & Q8 R HERE
controlled entities at the end of the reporting period Bt 2 A B H IR M u£29 30 36}
are set out in notes 29, 30, 36 and 37. 37 °
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HZE2013F3A31HIEFE

53. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 53. ARFZHBEH

Financial information of the Company at the end of the R ERTERN  AEBEZHBERBE
reporting period includes:

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Assets BE 3,674,362 3,638,853
Liabilities BfE (2,076,304) (1,939,545)

1,598,058 1,699,308

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#HE

Share capital AR 457,736 455,849
Reserves (Note) & (Mt at) 1,140,322 1,243,459
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS BERES 1,598,058 1,699,308
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HE2013F3A3NAILEFE

53. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

53. RABZMBER — @

— continued Wit -
Note:
Share-
based
Share payment Retained
premium reserve profits Total
R4 X A+
ROEE MIERE REEF &t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET FAET FHET
At 1 April 2011 H2011F4 /811 489,421 9,551 1,020,755 1,519,727
Issue of shares under scrip dividend scheme BEBEARK ST EEITRG 4,073 - - 4,073
Release upon lapse of vested options 57 /5 B AR R 2K o e 8 - (7,102) 7,102 -
Distribution (note 15) Dk (KfF15) - - (135,874) (135,874)
Loss for the year FEEE - - (144,467) (144,467)
At 31 March 2012 20129 3A31H 493,494 2,449 747,516 1,243,459
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RIE AR B AT BT AR5
scheme 1,200 - - 1,200
Release upon lapse of vested options B 55 B B AR R R - (2,449) 2,449 -
Distribution (note 15) ik (£ 15) - - (68,566) (68,566)
Loss for the year FEBE - - (35,771) (35,771)
At 31 March 2013 M2013F3H31H 494,694 - 645,628 1,140,322
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE2013F3A31HIFFE
54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 54, TEMBRE -~ BE DT RHEEZG
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED BES
ENTITIES

(@) ARAEEME A FN2013F R20124F
(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at AR ZFHEBWMT :
31 March 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Percentage of issued
share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid BERITRE/BMEXESL
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
registration/ registered subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
ERTR
R/ &,/ BERRE 100 RN
[npe PR EENLH ARMEAR AREEE AEBERL TEEH
2012 2013 2012 2013
% % % %
China Earth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Investment holding
ERERRA B ordinary share below) below) HBELR
1B T LB 7D (FX (FX
Hii() Hii()
Corless Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Investment holding
RERUES ordinary shares below) below) HERK
2R E BB K (FX (FX
Hii() Hii()
Feeder Port Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$27,840 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
RERUES ordinary shares REER
27,840 L& B AR D
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
BIEAFR QA 'H ordinary shares REER
10,0007 7T & A% % 19
Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate The PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100  Development, investment
Development Co., Ltd. F registered capital and sale of properties
IHEERMEREERAR (note (ii) below) MELER BERHEE
8,800,000% 7 i} & A&
(X B (i)
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment  The PRC US$60,000,000 75 75 75 75  Development of
and Development Co., Ltd. H (2012: US$30,000,000) infrastructure and
IHFBRAEREERAT registered capital port related facilities
(note (iii) below) BERRkABORmER

60,000,000% 7T

(2012 : 30,000,000 75)
ERN-FN

('~ 3B (i)

Jiaxing Feeder Port Investment  Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100  Ports operation and
Limited 55 ordinary share infrastructure investment
ERATEREERAT 1B BREERERKE
ERRBH
Jiaxing International Container ~ The PRC RMB187,800,000 90 90 90 90  Port development
Feeder Port Limited H (2012: RMB128,800,000) BORE
FENTERELAEE registered capital
BERADA (note (iii) below)

AR #187,800,0007T
(2012 + AR#128,800,0007T)
(R 3CH (i)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES — continued

(@@ — continued

54, TEMBLAT BMELTARAREH K

BESN —@&

(@ —&

Percentage of issued
share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid BRTRA /EMELES L
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
registration/ registered subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
BEAK
g3 BrRE/ mMEARE
i) PNCEE EEHE ARER ERERE rEBEMN TEER
2012 2013 2012 2013
% % % %
Nation Cheer Investment Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 100 100 100 100  Securities investment
Limited N ordinary shares BHEE
FERERRRF 1,200,000 7T
)
Paul Y. Building Materials Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i) ©61.92 (note (i)  Trading and installation
Company Limited B8 ordinary shares below) below) of building materials
28T (FX (FX BENHESRER
) K () Hii()
Paul Y. Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100  Ports operation and
REEEERADA "H ordinary shares infrastructure
28T investment
Eilidien) BOBEREERE
Paul Y. - Concentric Hong Kong - 51 (note (i)  31.58 (note (i)  Civil engineering
Joint Venture EH (note (iv) below) below) below) TARIFE
(R Mzt (iv) (FxX (Fx
HiE) HiE()
Paul Y. - CRGL Hong Kong - 60 (note (i) 37.15 (note (i)  Civil engineering
Joint Venture BB (note (iv) below) below) below) TARI?E
(formerly known as (R Htat(iv) (FX (FX
Paul Y. - CREC(HK) HEt() HEth)
Joint Venture)
(31 F8Paul Y. - CREC(HK)
Joint Venture)
Paul Y. (E & M) Contractors Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 99.9998 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Provision of electrical,
Limited 7H ordinary shares below) below) mechanical and
RERETREERAA 20,000,000/ 75 (FX (FxX building services
Bk 0 Baa) KEi) RESEREERS
Paul Y. Builders Group Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Investment holding
Limited e ordinary shares below) below) EEER
REZEEEERDA 28T (FxX (FX
LB AR (D HiE) HiE)
HK$1,000,000 - (note (i) - (note (i)
non-voting below) below)
deferred shares (FxX (FxX
(note (v) below) B aE) B EE)
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(@)

— continued

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54, TEMBRE -~ BE DT RHEEZG

BES — &

(@ —&

Percentage of issued

share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid BRTRA /EMELES L
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
registration/ registered subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
BEAR
R/ =M/ BrRE/ HHEAR
MELRERE EEBY AMER ERRRE AEBEN TEER
2012 2013 2012 2013
% % % %
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HK$102,000,000 100 (note (i)  61.92 (note (i)  Building construction
REREERAA B ordinary shares below) below) TETFEE
102,000,0007% 7T (FX (FX
w7 HiE) HiE)

Paul Y. Construction & Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Building construction
Engineering Co. Limited B (2012: HK$42,000,000) below) below) and specialist works

REZETREBARADA ordinary shares (FTX (FX RBFEERFTEIR

100,000,000% 7T Hii() Hii()
(2012: 42,000,0007% 1T.)
LR R

Paul Y. Construction & Singapore $$300,000 100 (note (i)  61.92 (note (i)  Construction

Engineering Pte. Limited EAIE (2012: $$50,000) below) below) REETHRR
ordinary shares (FX (FX
300,000%7 AN T Htat() Ktat()
(2012: 50,0007 N IT)
L@k
Paul Y. Contracting Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Construction
BE ordinary shares below) below) FEHEIE
10078 7 & @ R AR 7 (FX (FX
Bath)) Bat))

Paul Y. Engineering (BVI) British Virgin Islands HK$123,868,229 100 (note (i)  ©61.92 (note (i)  Investment holding

Limited REELES ordinary shares below) below) HEEK
123,868,229/ 7T (FX (FX
w7 HiE) HiE)

Louis XIII Holdings Limited Bermuda HK$121,390,864 61.92 (note (i) 6192 (note (i)  Investment holding
(formerly known as Paul Y.  BRE ordinary shares below) below) HERK
Engineering Group Limited) 121,390,864 7T (FxX (FxX

B T=6BERDA(AIE TR R Hii() KrE)

RREZEEEERRA)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(@@ — continued

54, TEMBLAT BMELTARAREH K
BESN —@&

(@ —&

Percentage of issued
share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid BRTRA /EMELESL
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
registration/ registered subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
BRAKR
g3 #grRE/ mMEARE
i) PNCEE EEME A& ERERE rEBEMN TEEHR
2012 2013 2012 2013
% % % %
Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 (note (i)  61.92 (note (i)  Provision of finance
REGBEHRAT B ordinary share below) below) IR{EEVE
1B T EERRG (FxX (FxX
HiE() HiE()
Paul Y. General Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100 (note (i) ©61.92 (note (i)  Civil engineering and
Contractors Limited e ordinary shares below) below) building construction
REREZEFRRA 200,000,000% 7T (Tx (Fx EIARIBRETEE
LB AR (D HiE() HiE()
Paul Y. Interior Contractors Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i) Interior decoration
Limited e ordinary shares below) below) works and services
REEMHIRERDA QBT ERRRN (FxX (FX ZEREBEIRRRS
HiE) HiE()
Paul Y. Management British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Investment holding
Contracting Group RERZES ordinary shares below) below) BEAER
Limited 2,000 7T & AR A% 19 (FxX (FxX
REZRIREEERAA HiE) HiE()
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Trading and letting of
RERWHAEERAA N ordinary shares below) below) plant and machinery
QBT ERRRG (FX (FX RERER
HiE) HiE() BHREE
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i)  61.92 (note (i)  Civil engineering,
Company, Limited e ordinary shares below) below) building
REZEBERAT 2B EBRRG (FX (FxX construction
Ha() Ha) and investment
holding
TARIE BFRE
KR EER
HK$50,000,000 - (note (i) - (note (i)
non-voting below) below)
preferred shares (FX (FX
(note (vi) below) WEt) W)
50,000,000 7t &
REEERRRND
(T XCHaE(Vvi)
Paul Y. Construction (China) The PRC RMB120,000,000 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Civil engineering
Limited HE registered capital below) below) and building
RERE(RE)BRAR (note (i) below) (FX (FX construction
AR #120,000,0007T Baa) mem)) TARIBR
G
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 54. T EMBAF - BE QT R E 2= H

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(@)

— continued

BES — &

(@ —&

Percentage of issued

share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid BRTRAN /ZMEXAEIL
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
registration/ registered subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
BRAK
R/ &,/ BrRE/ mMEAR
HEARSZRE EEME ZMESR ARAEE AEEEMN TEEY
2012 2013 2012 2013
% % % %
Paul Y. Facilities Management ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i) ©61.92 (note (i)  Facilities management
Co., Limited B ordinary shares below) below) services
RESBERERAA BT EBBRRG (FTX (FX HRBEERS
HE) KtEE()
Paul Y. Foundation Holdings British Virgin Islands US$1 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Investment holding
Limited HRERZES ordinary share below) below) EHERK
1E g Bk G (FX (FX
Bat)) Hat))
Paul Y. Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 (note (i)  61.92 (note (i)  Civil engineering and
REHEERAF BE ordinary shares below) below) foundation works
10,000,000/ 7T (FX (FX TARIERWETIR
HRRRH w0 w2
Paul Y. Foundation (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 100 (note (i)  ©61.92 (note (i)  Civil engineering and
Limited o registered below) below) foundation works
REME (R BRAT capital (FX (FX +TARIBRWETIR
25,0002 7T Hii() Hi)
A A
Paul Y. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100  Investment holding
B ordinary shares REER
2B T EBBRRG
Paul Y. Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i)  61.92 (note (i) Management and
REEEERAA 5% ordinary shares below) below) secretarial services
BT EBBRRG (FX (FX EBRRWERB
HiE) Kta()
Paul Y. Project Management Hong Kong HK$2 100 (note (i)  ©61.92 (note (i)  Project management
International Limited B ordinary shares below) below) services and investment
REBAFIREEERAR 2B L BRRG (FX (FX holding
HE) M) BEEERER
REER
Paul Y. Specialist Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Construction
55 ordinary shares below) below) REETE
1,000 7T % i e fix 19 (FX (FX
Hii() KrE)
PY Construction (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 100 (note (i)  61.92 (note (i)  Construction
Limited | registered capital below) below) RETRE
REZZERE(RM) 25,0009 7T (TX (TX
BERADA Ealiig= %N HiE() Hta)
PYI Infrastructure Group British Virgin Islands US$1 100" 100* 100 100  Investment holding
Limited REELES ordinary share BEER
EVIR- Sl d)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(@)

— continued

54, TEMBQF -

BESN —@&

(a)

— &

Bre R R E S

Percentage of issued

share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid BTRE/EMEXT AL
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
registration/ registered subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
g3 #grRE/ mMEARE
i) PNCEE EEME A& AREEE rEBEMN TEXK
2012 2013 2012 2013
% % % %
PY| Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100  Management services
RESBERERAT BB ordinary shares ERRB
QBT ERRRN

PYI Min Sheng Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited B8 ordinary shares REER

REREREEBDA 2B T EBBRRG

PY! Properties (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding

REFE (FH)BRA N ordinary share REER

1B EBRRG

PYI Xingdong Properties The PRC US$20,000,000 100 100 100 100  Development, investment
(Jiangsu) Limited # registered capital and sale of properties

REBRE ¥ (TH) (note (i) below) MERRE RENHE
BERRQA 20,000,000% 75

AfMER
(T X ft a2 (i)

PYI Yichang Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100  Ports operation and
Limited BE ordinary share infrastructure investment
REBEREERAA 178 70 & B AR 0 BHELERERRE

Unistress Concrete Hong Kong HK$200,000 100 (note (i) 61.92 (note (i)  Manufacturing, trading
Products (H.K.) Limited N ordinary shares below) below) and installation of

BORRTER () 200,0007 7T (FX (FX concrete products and
BRAT Eilidien) W) Hat) construction works

BT E MBS
EHHERERBETR
HK$1,000,000 100 (note (i)  ©61.92 (note (i)
non-voting below) below)
deferred shares (FxX (FX
(note (v) below) W) W)
1,000,000/ 7T &
REREETRR
(R BteEw)
Yangtze Feeder Port Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
RZARABERRR N ordinary share REERR
/%E = ﬁﬂxﬂxfﬁ
Yichang Port Group Limited The PRC RMB203,690,000 51 51 51 51  Port operation
HEABKEEERETAR F registered capital BOEL

(note (iii) below)

AR #203,690,0007T

TR & AR
(T X (i)
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(@)

— continued

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54, TEMBRE -~ BE DT RHEEZG
BES — &

(@ —&

Percentage of issued
share capital/

Issued and registered capital
Place of fully paid BRTRA /EMELES L
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the
registration/ registered subsidiaries/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital Company* to the Group Principal activities
ERTR
R/ &,/ BrERE/ mMEAR
ope PR EENLH AMEAR ARFHE AEBERL TEEH
2012 2013 2012 2013
% % % %
MIRERBBRICRERART  The PRC US$41,000,000 100 100 100 100  LPG distribution
# registered capital and logistics
(note (i) below) RAL B RS R
41,000,000% 7T
AER
("R Hi st (i)
MR ERREREMER The PRC US$21,350,000 100 100 100 100  LPG technical research
BERRDA + (2012: US$15,000,000) and development
registered capital RIEABRREMHE
(notes (ii) and (vii) RER
below)
21,350,000% 7T
(2012 : 15,000,000% 7T)
(°F B 3 (i) % (vii))
HMIEHEEBRAR The PRC RMB30,000,000 100 (note (i  80.96 (note (i)  Investment holding
H registered capital below) below) BEER
(note (ii) below) (TX (TX
AR #30,000,0007C Hath) Hath)
FEaiig- ¥
(Xt (in)
MMEBRBREERAT The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 (note (i)  80.96 (note (i)  Property holding
& registered capital below) below) #BME
(note (i) below) (FX (FX
A K ®10,000,0007T Hath) Hath)
A A
("R Hi st (i)

* The company is directly held by the Company.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies
(2012: except Paul Y. — Concentric Joint Venture
and Paul Y. — CRGL Joint Venture which were
unincorporated bodies). Louis XlIl Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited) is listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange.

* ZABBARBEEREE -

FHFENBARERAERAR (2012 : {EPaul
Y. — Concentric Joint Venture &zPaul Y. — CRGL
Joint Venture BIEEABEE) - B H T+ =SB E
BRAR (ABREREXEEARRAR) EF B
RFTEMR LT o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 54, TEMBRE -~ BE QT RHEEEZEG H

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(@)

— continued

Notes:

M

These companies ceased to be subsidiaries of the
Company as a result of the deemed disposal of Louis
Xl completed during the year ended 31 March 2013
(note 44(b)).

Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

BER —&
(@) —#&
Bt
(i) AR E Z2013F3A31H L FE —HERME
LERSIT=ZMXIFTHK  ZERAT
BEAARRZK B AR (HiE44(b)) -
(i) WHERARAIEBELE-
(i) WERARARINEGEEERT -

vy HRAEELETEEAERE RALED
1T

WA FMER -
(iv)  There was no issued share capital/registered capital for
the joint ventures as they are unincorporated bodies. vy ULHEEREREIRFEABREZERE-
MERERTFAMBREFEZRE  BER
(v  The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are EREZAREERRLEEMBERLT S
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends J& 42 27100,000,000,000,000/% 7T F % A
for any financial year and are, on winding up or AEERFEAEAGHABRBREEZBR
otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the T EREEAR -
company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the Vi) HEEREREARBEAERERE-
holders of the ordinary shares of the company. MEEERRKE  BIEZRRTHIE
£ 45 %) %8 #100,000,000,0005 7T * £
(v The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are not HERAT REARATAPRFE
entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless ER—IEBFEAEZETHEIZER
the net profits of the company available for dividend B HBREREZLBEREDIRASE
exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they should 10,000,000,0007 7t F &% A 8 & i I 3%
be entitled to a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the EAEHERBREEZBERT BRE
rate of 5% per annum for any financial year and are, on B o
winding up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital after a total sum of (vi)  M2013F3HA31H ML RERREREK
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders fi7 3¢ & B PR A 8] B 8 1$18,082,000% 1T
of the ordinary shares of the company. (2012 : 11,732,000% 70) Z s & & -
(viij  Asat 31 March 2013, the registered capital of it
ML RARREEREMTER AR AT is paid up to
US$18,082,000 (2012: US$11,732,000). BRAMEViNEEZHBARN  IERTREE
iz = ZME L AR E £2013F &201243A
Remark: SIEEFENEHRAMER -

Except for the subsidiary as disclosed in note (vii), the
registered capital of all principal subsidiaries registered in the
PRC were fully paid up during the years ended 31 March 2013
and 2012.
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ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(b)

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates
indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2013

and 2012 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

FTEMB LT BELQTE R HE EH

BER —#

(o) ARFHEEHFBEZEZHEAFR2013F
FM2012FE3A31B Z#BWMT ¢

Issued and Percentage of
fully paid issued share
Place of share capital/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
BERARBE AEEEEERITRE
- NCIEE B3/ R it 2 BRAE/EREX AMEXBD L TEXK
2012 2013
% %
CSCEC - Paul Y. Construction The PRC US$10,000,000 21.47 (note (c) Civil engineering
Company Limited H registered capital below) and building
HEREREEBREMLRA (notes (a) and (b) (FX construction
below) Hit(c) TRIBR
10,000,000% 7T BFEE
&R
(Rl it(a) R (b))
GTECH - Paul Y. Joint Venture Hong Kong - 31 (note (c) Provision of electrical
BN (note (d) below) below) and mechanical
(FXMizt(a) (FxX services
Hrit(c)) RUBRRG
Jiangyin Sunan International The PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. H registered capital BOES
TREEER R RAEE (note (a) below)
BRAF A K #400,000,0007C
&R
(FxHiit(a))
Nantong Port Group Limited The PRC RMB966,004,400 45 45 Port operation
HRBEOSEBRAR H registered capital BOEY
(note (a) below)
AR #966,004,4007C
afhEA
(Fxftita))
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 54.

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

TEMBLRAF BMELTARAREH K
BESN —@&

by —#&
(b) — continued
Issued and Percentage of
fully paid issued share
Place of share capital/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
BERTRBE AEERLECRTRA
BEAE LR B3/ 5 M it 2 BA/EMER EZMERES L TEER
2012 2013
% %

Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project The PRC US$500,000 24.8 (note (c) Project management
Management Company Limited registered capital below) and consultancy

IRPFREIRBEAEE (note (a) below) (TX services
BRARA 500,000% 7T Htit(c)) BEEHEBRR

AR AR
(FxHtzt(a))

Paul Y. Engineering (BVI) British Virgin HK$123,868,229 (note (e) 47.52 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary shares below) in companies
(note (f) below) RBRELHES 123,868,229/ 1t (T X ffit(e)) engaged in provision
(T X M) el of comprehensive

All of the above associates are held by the Company
indirectly.

Notes:

(@) The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture
company.

(b)  Asat 31 March 2012, Louis Xl indirectly held 34.67%
interest of the company, which Louis Xlll was a then
61.92% held subsidiary of the Group.

(c) The companies ceased to be associates of the
Group as a result of the deemed disposal of Louis XllI
completed during the year (note 44(b)).

(d)  There was no issued share capital/registered capital for
the joint venture as it was an unincorporated body.

(e) The company becomes an associate of the Group
as a result of the deemed disposal of Louis XlIl and
distribution in specie completed during the year (note
44(p)).

M) Subsequently renamed as Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited on 7 June 2013.
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engineering and
property-related
services
REEBRAIE
REZEATRREME
MRS 27

LRFERE ARG BARAMERA -

(@ HARRTIHNEEAERAA-

puj

() M2012%43A31H KBHT+T-HMEFEZXL
Rl3467%HER KIHIT_EBHALREEES
61.92%Em BT -

) HRFA-—BRELEEZIT=NXHTHK "
ZERAATBEABASEEZEE QA (M
44(b)) °

(d) ABRAZEEIIEEABERE HABELHTR
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 54.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

()

Particulars of the Company’s principal jointly

controlled entities at 31 March 2013 and 2012 are

as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

TEMBLAT BMELTARAREZEH K

BES — &

() ARRAZEEHFREGEEN2013F K
201243 A31H Z BT ¢

Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place of share capital/ issued share
Name of jointly incorporation/ registered capital attributable
controlled entity registration capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTRBERE AEBERL
HEZHBEBEEE B3/ M it B JEmER BRITREAEAL TEEH
2012 2013
% %
WL EREHEREFR QA The PRC RMB22,264,900 22.95 22.95 Development and
H registered capital investment of
(note (a) below) properties
AR #22,264,9007T MEERREE
FMEAR
(FxHtita))
Laing O’ Rourke-Hsin Chong - Hong Kong - 13.9 (note (d) Civil engineering
Paul Y. Joint Venture B (notes (b) and (c) below) TARTRE
below) (FxX
(FXHi&tb)R(c) Htit(a)
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau - 31 (note (d) Construction
RE-RBHELT A (notes (b) and (e) below)  BRIE
below) (FxX
(FX M5t b) R (e) Htit(a)
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau MOP100,000 31 (note (d) Construction
Company Limited A registered capital below) BETE
RE-BEHZEERAH (note (e) below) (FxX
100,000 7T Ktit(a)
AR
(Fxftite)
Paul' Y. Penta-Ocean Joint Hong Kong - 31 (note (d) Civil engineering
Venture A5 (notes (b) and (e) below) IARIRE
below) (FxX
(FX K5t b) R (e) Ktit(a)

) gzemsraa 2onss 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE2013F3A31HIEFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 54. TEWMBE AT HBE QTR LR =S
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED BER —&
ENTITIES — continued © —&
o=
(c) — continued
Issued and
fully paid Percentage of
Place of share capital/ issued share
Name of jointly incorporation/ registered capital attributable
controlled entity registration capital to the Group Principal activities
ERORBERK AEEERL
HEZHEESE B3/ 5 M it 2 JEmER ERTREAESL TEER
2012 2013
% %
MIEBMEXERAR The PRC RMB30,000,000 (note (f) 50 Investment holding
H registered capital (T X HfzE(n) BEER
(note (g) below)
A K #30,000,0007C
&R
(FXHi i)
MINEEREREFTRDA The PRC RMB10,000,000 (note (f)) 50 Property holding
" registered capital (T X HfzE(n) BEME
(note (g) below)
AR #10,000,0007T
&R
(FXHi )
Notes: Mt &t -

(a) Being an equity joint venture company which 45%
interest was held by Yichang Port Group Limited, a 51%
held subsidiary of the Group.

(b)  There was no issued share capital/registered capital for
the joint venture as it was an unincorporated body.

(c) As at 31 March 2012, Louis Xlll indirectly held 22.5%
interest of the company, which Louis XlIl was a then
61.92% held subsidiary of the Group.

(d) The companies ceased to be jointly-controlled entities
of the Company as a result of the deemed disposal of
Louis Xilll completed during the year (note 44(b)).

(e) As at 31 March 2012, Louis XlIl indirectly held 50%
interest of the company, which Louis Xlll was a then
61.92% held subsidiary of the Group.

() The companies become jointly controlled entities of the
Company as a result of the deemed disposal of Louis
Xlll completed during the year (note 44(b)).

(9) Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 54.

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To provide details of other subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in excessive length of
particulars.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HZE2013F3A31HIEFE

TEMNELAR BMEATRARZHH
BEN — &
LRAIABEERREIEVEAEEFEESE
RARAERABHEEFEZARAMER
A BMEARRAREHBE -BEERA W
DR AL B AR B2 QA RAREGEEZ
ARBLRETE -

BEMBARENFRETEAELES -

il gzemaram 20nss 203



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Hil ¥5 16} =

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31IHLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FHET

RESULTS B
Turnover SR 4,835,005 4,260,421 5,357,200 5,159,142 6,497,590
Profit before taxation T AT 577,295 402,484 466,040 560,612 418,756
Taxation BUE (327,784)  (165,764) (166,852) (191,595)  (114,230)
Profit for the year FEmF 249,511 236,720 299,188 369,017 304,526
Attributable to: FEfL

Owners of the Company AAREA A 138,794 149,298 200,104 334,072 262,343

Non-controlling interests FEIERR R A 110,717 87,422 99,084 34,945 42,183

249,511 236,720 299,188 369,017 304,526
At 31 March
A3HA31H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FEIT FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets WEE 12,315,942 14,041,000 14,894,955 11,827,762 9,625,328
Total liabilities waE (7,767,925) (8,383,510) (8,569,395) (6,539,504) (4,252,979)
4,548,017 5,657,490 6,325,560 5,288,258 5,372,349

EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners PANIEZ DN

of the Company R i 3,646,596 4,129,679 4,500,613 4,609,939 4,841,175
Non-controlling interests JEIE A S 901,421 1,527,811 1,824,947 678,319 531,174

4,648,017 5,657,490 6,325,560 5,288,258 5,372,349
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
FSMEFR

STOCK OF PROPERTIES NERE
Location and area Existing use Lease term Group’s interest
TEREE REAR HE AEBREER
Nantong International Trade Center with Held for sale Leasehold with 100%
gross floor area of about 17,000 sq m held for sale BERE medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, HHEEERA
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
FEDI#AEET
2113885
HREERESR L
FHEHERERELN17,0007 75K
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REME
Location and area Existing use Lease term Group’s interest
NEREE BERZ HE AEBREER
Nantong International Trade Center with Rented for hotel Leasehold with 100%
gross floor area of about 6,000 sq m held for rental operation medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, AR R E REEERE
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
FEIIHEREBED
=)IIBk885%
HRERESHL
FRE LR 2 £ B 496,000 77 K
Commercial shops with gross floor area Rented for Leasehold with 51%
of about 5,000 sq m held for rental commercial use medium term
169 Yanjiang Road, Wujiagang District, HEEEERS HERERA
Yichang City, Hubei Province, the PRC
FESILEEED
HR M E ST KET1695
FrIE LR M 2 HE 45,0007 75K
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BRPREY=
Estimated
Stage of completion
Location and area Existing use completion date Group’s interest
TERER REAR E24123 CHES A REBFGRER
0.65 sq km land being formed Undetermined use Land leveling March 2014 75%
located at the west of the HARRTE A stage 2014438
outer gate of Yangkou Town, T R PR ER

Rudong County,
Nantong City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

FEITIHE EEm
INER ¥ OEESNFI A
0.65F AR FER T

il gzgmaram 20155 200



CORPORATE INFORMATION
ol &gk

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman and Managing Director
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Executive Director
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Non-Executive Director
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(With Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Shu Kin

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph aas, s,

Li Chang An

Wong Lai Kin Elsa

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph eas, up
Wong Lai Kin Elsa

Remuneration Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph aas, up

Nomination Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph eas, up

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom)

Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass, Jp
Wong Lai Kin Elsa

Ko Hiu Fung

Share Repurchase Committee
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass, up
(Alternate to Chan Shu Kin)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ko Hiu Fung

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Ko Hiu Fung
Wong Yiu Hung
(Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Ko Hiu Fung)

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Bank of Jiangsu

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd.

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.

DBS Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hankou Bank Co., Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Bank of East Asia Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

DLA Piper Hong Kong (Hong Kong)

JC Master Law Offices (PRC)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co. (Hong Kong)

FINANCIAL ADVISERS
Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consultants (Shenzhen) Limited

Somerley Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ol &gk

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES ADMINISTRATORS
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited

(Share Award Scheme — Trustee)
BOCI Securities Limited

(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;

Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
33/F, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel : +852 28318328

Fax : +852 2372 0641

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

26 Burnaby Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

WWW.PYiCcorp.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498
American Depository Receipt PYIFY
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW
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) ® E K ER A F
PYI Corporation Limited

’
i

33/F, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEBEREBS 1R REREH L33
Tel &5 :+852 2831 8328

Fax {58 :+852 2372 0641

WWW. pYiCorp.com
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